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PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ltem 1. Financial Statements

ALLY FINANCIAL INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME (unaudited)

Three months ended

Six months ended

June 30, June 30,
2009 200¢
($ in millions) 2010 2010
Financing revenue and other interest incom
Finance receivables and lo¢
Consume $ 1,12¢ $ 1,17¢ $ 2,25¢ $ 2,40¢
Commercial 45€ 434 891 852
Notes receivable from General Mot 40 47 95 89
Total finance receivables and lo¢ 1,62¢ 1,65¢ 3,24¢ 3,34¢
Loans hel-for-sale 15€ 84 371 16¢
Interest on trading securiti 6 34 7 57
Interest and dividends on availa-for-sale investment securiti 91 55 191 11z
Interest bearing cas 18 27 32 69
Other interest income, n 4 30 — 55
Operating lease 1,011 1,50 2,17¢ 3,10¢
Total financing revenue and other interest inct 2,90z 3,38¢ 6,01¢ 6,91¢
Interest expense
Interest on deposi 15E 17¢ 313 357
Interest on shc-term borrowings 10C 182 212 343
Interest on lon-term deb! 1,40¢ 1,57¢ 2,84¢ 3,23¢
Total interest expens 1,66¢ 1,94( 3,36¢ 3,93¢
Depreciation expense on operating lease a 52€ 1,05¢ 1,182 2,11¢
Net financing revenu 712 393 1,46¢ 867
Other revenue
Servicing fee: 384 393 76¢ 797
Servicing asset valuation and hedge activities (22) (225) (159 (577)
Total servicing income, n 363 16¢ 61t 22C
Insurance premiums and service revenue ec 477 49¢ 94t 991
Gain on mortgage and automotive loans, 26¢€ 20¢€ 537 48¢
(Loss) gain on extinguishment of d¢ 3 13 (127) 657
Other gain on investments, r 95 97 23t 83
Other income, net of loss 19C (113 27% (329)
Total other revenu 1,38¢ 867 2,48¢ 2,117
Total net revenue 2,10( 1,26( 3,954 2,98¢
Provision for loan losse: 22C 1,115 36€ 1,86:
Noninterest expenst
Compensation and benefits expe 38¢ 38¢ 81t 754
Insurance losses and loss adjustment exp 224 261 43t 54€
Other operating expens 822 1,07¢ 1,711 2,081
Total noninterest expen: 1,43¢ 1,72¢ 2,961 3,381
Income (loss) from continuing operations before in@me tax expensi 44¢€ (1,589 627 (2,260
Income tax expense from continuing operati 33 1,09¢ 69 972
Net income (loss) from continuing operations 413 (2,679 55€ (3,239
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, neag 152 (1,229) 16¢ (1,34¢€)
Net income (loss $ 56 $ (3,909 $ 727 $ (4,57¢)

The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statem@maudited) are an integral part of these statesnent
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ALLY FINANCIAL INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (unaudited)

(% in millions) June 30, 201 December 31, 20(
Assets
Cash and cash equivalel
Noninterest bearin $ 82C $ 1,84(
Interest bearin 13,52¢ 12,94¢
Total cash and cash equivale 14,34¢ 14,78¢
Trading securitie 20¢ 73¢
Investment securitie
Available-for-sale 12,71( 12,15t
Held-to-maturity — 3
Total investment securitie 12,71( 12,15¢
Loans hel-for-sale ($4,167 and $5,545 fair value elec 10,38: 20,62¢
Finance receivables and loans, net of unearnednia
Consumer ($2,345 and $1,303 fair value elec 55,34¢ 42,84¢
Commercial 37,00t 33,94
Notes receivable from General Mott 365 911
Allowance for loan losse (2,379 (2,445
Total finance receivables and loans, 90,33¢ 75,25¢
Investment in operating leases, 11,89t 15,99t
Mortgage servicing right 2,98: 3,55¢
Premiums receivable and other insurance a 2,251 2,72
Other asset 19,64¢ 19,88
Assets of operations hefor-sale ($8,398 fair value elected at June 30, 2 12,03¢ 6,584
Total asset $ 176,80: $ 172,30t
Liabilities
Deposit liabilities
Noninterest bearin $ 2,27¢ $ 1,75k
Interest bearini 32,93¢ 30,00:
Total deposit liabilities 35,21+ 31,75¢
Debt
Shor-term borrowings 7,054 10,29:
Long-term debt ($2,178 and $1,293 fair value elec 85,20¢ 88,02:
Total debt 92,25¢ 98,31:
Interest payabl 1,692 1,63
Unearned insurance premiums and service rev 2,99( 3,192
Reserves for insurance losses and loss adjustrrpense: 962 1,21¢
Accrued expenses and other liabilit 11,57¢ 10,45¢
Liabilities of operations he-for-sale ($7,857 fair value elected at June 30, 2 11,330 4,89¢
Total liabilities 156,02¢ 151,46
Equity
Common stock and pe-in capital 13,82¢ 13,82¢
Preferred stock held by U.S. Department of Trea 10,89: 10,89:
Preferred stoc 1,287 1,28
Accumulated defici (5,42)) (5,630
Accumulated other comprehensive inca 18t 46(
Total equity 20,77: 20,83¢
Total liabilities and equit $ 176,80: $ 172,30t
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ALLY FINANCIAL INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (unaudited)

The assets of consolidated variable interest estitiat can be used only to settle obligations®ftbnsolidated variable interest entities
and the liabilities of these entities for whichditers (or beneficial interest holders) do not hesgourse to our general credit at June 30, :
were as follows.

($ in millions)
Assets
Cash and cash equivalel
Noninterest bearin $ 3
Loans hel-for-sale 92
Finance receivables and loans, net of unearnednia
Consumer ($2,345 fair value elect 19,91(
Commercial 12,41¢
Allowance for loan losse (349)
Total finance receivables and loans, 31,98:
Investment in operating leases, 3,36¢
Other asset 4,30¢
Assets of operations hefor-sale 10,48:
Total asset $50,22¢
Liabilities
Debt
Shor-term borrowings $ 1,61(
Long-term debt ($2,178 fair value electe 26,65
Total debi 28,26¢
Interest payabl 28
Accrued expenses and other liabilit 60¢
Liabilities of operations he-for-sale 10,541
Total liabilities $39,44"

The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statem@maudited) are an integral part of these statesnent
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ALLY FINANCIAL INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (unaudi ted)
Six Months Ended June 30, 2010 and 2009

Preferred
interests
held by Accumulated
u.s. other
Members’ Department Preferred Retainec comprehensive Comprehensive
Total
($ in millions) interests of Treasury interests earnings (loss) income equity (loss) income
Balance at January 1, 2009 $ 9,67 $ 5,00( $ 1,287 $ 6,28¢ $ (389) $21,85¢
Capital contributions (& 1,247 1,247
Net loss (4,57¢) (4,57¢) $ (4,57¢)
Preferred interests dividends paid to the U.S. Btepnt of
Treasury (260) (160)
Preferred interests dividen (29%) (295)
Dividends to members (i (119) (119
Issuance of preferred interests held by U.S. Depart of
Treasury 7,50( 7,50(
Other comprehensive incon 497 497 497
Balance at June 30, 2009, before conversion fronmlited
liability company to a corporation (b) $ 10,917 $  12,50( $ 1281 $ 1,23 $ 10¢ $26,04¢ $ (4,087)
Preferred
stock
held by Accumulated
Common u.s. other
stock and Department Preferred Retainec comprehensive Comprehensive
paid-in Total
($ in millions) capital of Treasury stock earnings income equity loss
Balance at June 30, 2009, after conversion from liit@d
liability company to a corporation $ 10,91° $ 12,50( $ 1,287 $ 1,23¢ $ 10¢€ $26,04¢ $ (4,087)

6
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ALLY FINANCIAL INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (unaudi ted)
Six Months Ended June 30, 2010 and 2009

Preferred
Common stock
held by Accumulated
stock anc u.s. other
Department Preferred comprehensive Comprehensive
paid-in Accumulated Total

($ in millions) capital of Treasury stock deficit income equity income (loss)
Balance at January 1, 2010, before cumulative

effect of adjustments $ 13,82¢ $ 10,89: $ 1,281 $ (5,630 $ 46C $20,83¢
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting priteip

net of tax (c} (57) 4 (53)
Balance at January 1, 2010, after cumulative effec

of adjustments $ 13,82¢ $ 10,89: $ 1,28] $ (5,687) $ 464 $20,78¢
Net income 727 727 $ 7217
Preferred stock dividends paid to the U.S. Depantn

of Treasury (386€) (386)
Preferred stock dividends ( (142) (142)
Dividends to shareholders ( @) @)
Other comprehensive lo (279) 279 279
Other (d) 74 74
Balance at June 30, 2010 $ 13,82¢ $ 10,89: $ 1,28 $ (5,427) $ 18t $20,77: $ 44§

(a) Referto Note 17 to the Consolidated FinancialeStents for further detail

(b) Effective June 30, 2009, we converted from &aare limited liability company into a Delawarerporation. Each unit of each class of common mestbprinterest issued and
outstanding immediately prior to the conversion wasverted into an equivalent number of shareoofroon stock with substantially the same rights mrederences as the common
membership interests. Upon conversion, holdersiopeeferred membership interests also receiveebaivalent number of preferred stock with substdigtthe same rights and
preferences as the former preferred membershipestte

(c) Cumulative effect of change in accounting pipfes net of tax, due to adoption of ASU 2009-A8counting for Transfers of Financial Asseend ASU 2009-17mprovements to
Financial Reporting by Enterprises Involved withridhle Interest Entitie:. Refer to Note 1 for additional informatic

(d) Represents a reduction of the estimated payammtied for tax distributions as a result of tmpletion of the GMAC LLC U.S. Return of Partnegshicome for the tax period
January 1, 2009, through June 30, 2(

The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statem@maudited) are an integral part of these statesnent
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ALLY FINANCIAL INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (unaudited)

Six months ended June ($ in millions) 2010 2009
Operating activities
Net income (loss 727 $ (4,57¢)
Reconciliation of net income (loss) to net cashvjated by operating activitie!
Depreciation and amortizatic 2,24¢ 3,30z
Impairment of goodwill and other intangible as: — 607
Other impairmen 16 —
Amortization and valuation adjustments of mortgagericing rights 944 (309)
Provision for loan losse 382 2,007
(Gain) loss on sale of loans, 1 (559 154
Net (gain) loss on investment securi (25€) 55
Loss (gain) on extinguishment of d¢ 11€ (657)
Originations and purchases of loans -for-sale (27,600 (44,399
Proceeds from sales and repayments of loan-for-sale 35,56+ 40,24¢
Net change in
Trading securitie: (28) 69¢
Deferred income taxe (19¢) 1,11¢
Interest payabl 61 17¢
Other asset 1,322 1,51«
Other liabilities 37E 672
Other, ne (1,5372) 1,66¢
Net cash provided by operating activit 11,58: 2,281
Investing activities
Purchases of availal-for-sale securitie (12,999 (8,080
Proceeds from sales of availe-for-sale securitie 9,85¢4 2,722
Proceeds from maturities of availa-for-sale securitie 2,53¢ 2,12t
Net (increase) decrease in finance receivabledoams (8,297 9,60¢
Proceeds from sales of finance receivables and 2,362 462
Change in notes receivable from C 11€ 647
Purchases of operating lease as (1,49)) (302)
Disposals of operating lease as 4,43¢ 3,41¢
(Purchases) sales of mortgage servicing rights (22) 13
Sale of business unit, net | (12 82
Other, ne 1,69¢ (489
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activi (80§ 10,21
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ALLY FINANCIAL INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (unaudited)

Six months ended June ($ in millions) 2010 2009
Financing activities
Net change in shc-term debr (3,827 (1,762)
Net increase in bank depos 2,72 5,46(
Proceeds from issuance of I-term debr 20,99¢ 14,81
Repayments of lor-term debt (32,307 (36,51
Proceeds from issuance of preferred intereststheld.S. Department of Treasu — 7,50(
Proceeds from issuance of common men’ interests — 1,245
Dividends paic (532 (44%)
Other, ne 773 851
Net cash used in financing activiti (12,177 (8,856
Effect of exchanc-rate changes on cash and cash equiva 61¢ (132)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equis (783 3,50¢
Adjustment for change in cash and cash equivaldriperations he-for-sale (a) (b 343 —
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 14,78¢ 15,15
Cash and cash equivalents at June $ 14,34¢ $ 18,65t
Supplemental disclosures
Cash paid for

Interest $ 3,20¢ $ 4,057

Income taxe: 30€ 247
Noncash items

Increase in finance receivables and loans duect@mage in accounting principle | 17,99( —

Increase in lon-term debt due to a change in accounting princig) 17,05¢ —

Loans hel-for-sale transferred to finance receivables and I 27 771

Finance receivables and loans transferred to -helc-for sale 40 1,29

Finance receivables and loans transferred to aibmst: 12¢ 25t

Originations of mortgage servicing rights from stadns 94 18¢
Other disclosures

Proceeds from sales and repayments of mortgage lead-for-investment originally designated as held

for-sale 24¢ 32¢

Proceeds from sales of repossessed, foreclosedyvamet real estal 317 59C

Consolidation of loans, n — 1,41(C

Consolidation of collateralized borrowin — 1,18¢

(a) Net of cash and cash equivalents of $745 milliothefbusiness unit at the time of dispositi

(b) Cash flows of operations held-for-sale areee#d within operating, investing, and financingaties in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Elowhe cash balance of these
operations are reported as assets of operatiod-for-sale on the Consolidated Balance Sh

(c) Relates to the adoption of ASU 2009-A8counting for Transfers of Financial Asseend ASU 2009-17mprovements to Financial Reporting by Enterpriseslved with Variable
Interest Entities. Refer to Note 1 for additional informatic

The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statem@maudited) are an integral part of these statesnent
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ALLY FINANCIAL INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (unaudit ed)

1. Description of Business, Basis of Presentatioand Changes in Significant Accounting Policies

Ally Financial Inc. (formerly GMAC Inc. and refeteo herein as Ally, we, our, or us) is one of Warld’s largest automotive financial
services companies. On December 24, 2008, we beadrark holding company under the Bank Holding CamypAct of 1956, as amended
(the BHC Act). Our primary banking subsidiary idyABank, which is an indirect wholly owned subsigiaf Ally Financial Inc.

Our accounting and reporting policies conform toaamting principles generally accepted in the Whisates of America (GAAP).
Additionally, where applicable, the policies confoto the accounting and reporting guidelines pibsedrby bank regulatory authorities. The
preparation of financial statements in conformiiffmMGAAP requires management to make estimatesiasgmptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities at the date efitiancial statements and that affect income apeém@ses during the reporting period. In
developing the estimates and assumptions, managersenall available evidence; however, actuallt®sould differ because of
uncertainties associated with estimating the ansyuiming, and likelihood of possible outcomes.

The Consolidated Financial Statements as of Jun2@®, and for the three months and six monthe@&ddne 30, 2010 and 2009, are
unaudited but reflect all adjustments that arenanagement’s opinion, necessary for the fair ptasien of the results for the interim periods
presented. All such adjustments are of a normairreng nature. These unaudited Consolidated FishiStatements should be read in
conjunction with the audited Consolidated Finan8igtements (and the related notes) included irhonual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2009, as filed with the SeSurities and Exchange Commiss|

Residential Capital, LLC

Residential Capital, LLC (ResCap), one of our magty subsidiaries, was negatively impacted by tleatsvand conditions in the
mortgage banking industry and the broader econdimg.market deterioration led to fewer sources d, significantly reduced levels of,
liquidity available to finance ResCap’s operatidResCap is highly leveraged relative to its castv#nd previously recognized credit and
valuation losses resulting in a significant detexiimn in capital. ResCap’s consolidated tangitdeworth, as defined, was $793 million as of
June 30, 2010, and ResCap remained in compliartbealliof its consolidated tangible net worth coaets. For this purpose, consolidated
tangible net worth is defined as ResCap’s cons@diaquity excluding intangible assets. There oot to be a risk that ResCap will not be
able to meet its debt service obligations, willadéf on its financial debt covenants due to insigfit capital, and/or will be in a negative
liquidity position in 2010 or future periods.

ResCap actively manages its liquidity and capitaliftons and is continually working on initiativesaddress its debt covenant
compliance and liquidity needs including debt miaigiin the next twelve months and other risks amceutainties. ResCap’s initiatives
include, but are not limited to, the following: ¢oning to work with key credit providers to optirei all available liquidity options; continued
reduction of assets and other restructuring a@sjifocusing production on government and printgaaning products; exploring strategic
alternatives such as alliances, joint ventures,ahdr transactions with third parties; and cordihexploration of opportunities for funding
and capital support from Ally and its affiliateshd outcomes of most of these initiatives are teeatgextent outside of ResCap’s control
resulting in increased uncertainty as to their sasful execution.

On December 30, 2009, we announced that as a it ongoing strategic review of how to bestldg@lly’s current and future
capital liquidity, we decided to pursue stratedieraatives with respect to ResCap. These alteremtieing considered include one or more
sales, spin-offs, or other potential transactidifee timing and form of execution of any such traisas will depend on market conditions.

Coincident with this announcement, ResCap annouimc2d09 its decision to commit to a plan to selli.K. and continental Europe
platforms. On April 12, 2010, we reached agreememsell our mortgage assets and businesses lirtihed Kingdom and continental
Europe. We classified the U.K. and continental Beroperations as held-for-sale during the threethsoended December 31, 2009. Refer to
Note 2 for additional informatiot

In the future, Ally and ResCap may take additicaelons with respect to ResCap as each party dapprspriate. These actions may
include Ally providing or declining to provide adidinal liquidity and capital support for ResCap;

10
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ALLY FINANCIAL INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (unaudit ed)

refinancing or restructuring some or all of ResGaxisting debt; the purchase or sale of ResCapseehrities in the public or private
markets for cash or other consideration; enternig derivative or other hedging or similar trangatd with respect to ResCap or its debt
securities; Ally purchasing assets from ResCapinaiertaking corporate transactions such as a teffigror exchange offer for some or al
ResCap’s outstanding debt securities, a mergex, aaet sales, consolidation, spin-off, distrdotor other business combination or
reorganization or similar action with respect tiooalpart of ResCap and/or its affiliates. In tb@ntext, Ally and ResCap typically consider a
number of factors to the extent applicable and @gmate including, without limitation, the finantieondition, results of operations, and
prospects of Ally and ResCap; ResCap’s abilitylitam third-party financing; tax considerationse turrent and anticipated future trading
price levels of ResCap’s debt instruments; condgim the mortgage banking industry and generat@mic conditions; other investment and
business opportunities available to Ally and/or ®as; and any nonpublic information that ResCap passess or that Ally receives from
ResCap.

ResCap remains heavily dependent on Ally and fietés for funding and capital support, and thea@ be no assurance that Ally or its
affiliates will continue such actions or that Allyll be successful in executing one or more sapB)-offs, or other potential transactions with
respect to ResCap.

Although our continued actions through various fagdand capital initiatives demonstrate supportResCap, there are currently no
commitments or assurances for future funding ancipital support. Consequently, there remains anbiat doubt about ResCap’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Should we no longetiroge to support the capital or liquidity need€RefsCap or should ResCap be unable to
successfully execute other initiatives, it wouldvdr@ material adverse effect on ResCap’s businessits of operations, and financial
position.

Ally has extensive financing and hedging arrangdmeiith ResCap that could be at risk of nonpaynifédResCap were to file for
bankruptcy. As of June 30, 2010, we had approxilp&2.2 billion in secured financing arrangementthvResCap of which approximately
$1.4 billion in loans was utilized. Amounts outstarg under the secured financing and hedging aenaegts fluctuate. If ResCap were to file
for bankruptcy, ResCap'repayments of its financing facilities, includitigpse with us, could be slower. In addition, waldde an unsecurt
creditor of ResCap to the extent that the procé&eds the sale of our collateral are insufficienrépay ResCap’s obligations to us. It is
possible that other ResCap creditors would see&dioaracterize our loans to ResCap as equity baoiths or to seek equitable
subordination of our claims so that the claimstbio creditors would have priority over our claifrsaddition, should ResCap file for
bankruptcy, our $793 million investment relatedRiesCap’s equity position would likely be reducedeoo. If a ResCap bankruptcy were to
occur and a substantial amount of our credit exgoisunot repaid to us, it would have an adverggithon our near-term net income and
capital position, but we do not believe it wouldzé@a materially adverse impact on Ayconsolidated financial position over the longent.

Corporate Conversion

Effective June 30, 2009, we converted (the Coneajdrom a Delaware limited liability company td&laware corporation pursuant to
Section 18216 of the Delaware Limited Liability Company ActcaSection 265 of the Delaware General Corpordtam. In connection wit
the Conversion, each unit of each class of commadnpaeferred membership interests issued and odiis;immediately prior to the
Conversion was converted into shares of capitaksiith substantially the same rights and prefeesras such membership interests. Ref
Note 16 for additional information regarding thg tapact of the conversio

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards
Accounting for Transfers of Financial Assets (ASLDRS-16)

As of January 1, 2010, we adopted ASU 2009-16 (fniywSFAS No. 166), which amended Accounting Stasi&odification
(ASC) Topic 860Transfers and Servicin@his standard removed the concept of a qualifyper&l-purpose entity (QSPE) and created more
stringent conditions for reporting a sale when dipo of a financial asset is transferred. To deiee if a transfer is to be accounted for as a
sale, the transferor must assess whether the ¢éransind all of the entities included in the transf’s consolidated financial statements
surrendered control of the assets. For partialt &assesfers, the transferred portion must repreagmd rata component of the entire asset with
no form of subordination. This standard is apppeaspectively for transfers that occur on or affer effective date; however, the elimination
of the QSPE concept required us to retrospectiasbess all current off-balance sheet QSPE strisctoreonsolidation under
ASC Topic 810,

11
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ALLY FINANCIAL INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (unaudit ed)

Consolidationand record a cumulative-effect adjustment to rethiearnings for any consolidation change. Retrdisqgeapplication of
ASU 2009-16, specifically the QSPE removal, wagsssd as part of the analysis required by ASU 2008nprovements to Financial
Reporting by Enterprises Involved with Variablechaist Entities. Refer to the section below for further informatielated to ASU 2009-17.

Improvements to Financial Reporting by Enterprisésvolved with Variable Interest Entities (ASU 20-17)

As of January 1, 2010, we adopted ASU 2009-17 (#lyrSFAS No. 167), which amended ASC Topic 820nsolidation. This
standard addresses the primary beneficiary assassniteria for determining whether an entity igu&ed to consolidate a variable interest
entity (VIE). This standard requires an entity edetmine whether it is the primary beneficiary leyfprming a qualitative assessment rather
than using the quantitative-based model that wasimed under the previous accounting guidance.dqutaditative assessment consists of
determining whether the entity has both the powaetitect the activities that most significantly iagh the VIE’'s economic performance and
the right to receive benefits or obligation to abslosses that could potentially be significantite VIE. As a result of the implementation of
ASU 2009-16 and ASU 2009-17, several of our seigatibn structures previously held off-balance $hezre recognized as consolidated
entities resulting in a day-one increase of $11l®b to assets and liabilities on our ConsolidhBalance Sheet ($10.1 billion of the increase
related to operations classified as held-for-sa#is)part of the day-one entry, there was an imnatadjustment to our opening equity
balance.

Expanded Disclosures about Fair Value Measureme(AsSU 201(-06)

As of March 31, 2010, we adopted the majority ol AZ10-06, which amends ASC Topic 8&ajr Value Measurement$he ASU
requires fair value disclosures for each assetiahility class, disclosures related to inputs &athiation methods for measurements that use
Level 2 or Level 3 inputs, disclosures of signifittransfers between Levels 1 and 2, and the gnesentation of significant transfers into or
out of Level 3 within the Level 3 rollforward. TH&SU also requires the gross presentation of puesasles, issuances, and settlements
within the Level 3 rollforward; however, this spicirequirement will be effective for us during ttleee months ended March 31, 2011. The
disclosure requirement by class is a higher lef/disaggregation compared to the previous requirgnmehich was based on the major asset
or liability category. While the adoption of ASURD-06 expanded our disclosures related to fairevedeasurements, it did not modify the
accounting treatment or measurement of items avédile and, as such, did not have a material itlnpaour financial statements.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards
Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables (A200¢-13)

In October 2009, the Financial Accounting Stand&dard (FASB) issued ASU 2009-13, which amends AB@ic 605,Revenue
Recognitior. The guidance significantly changes the accourfingevenue recognition in arrangements with rpldtdeliverables and
eliminates the residual method, which allocateddiseount of a multiple deliverable arrangement agiihe delivered items. Under the
guidance, entities will be required to allocatetibtal consideration to all deliverables at inceptusing the relative selling price and to
allocate any discount in the arrangement propaatigrio each deliverable based on each deliveratsielling price. ASU 2009-13 is effective
for revenue arrangements that we enter into or ma#itemodify on or after January 1, 2011. We da erpect the adoption to have a material
impact to our consolidated financial condition esullts of operation.

Derivatives and Hedgin— Scope Exception Related to Embedded Credit Dénres (ASU 2010-11)

In March 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-11, whiletiftes that the transfer of credit risk that idyin the form of subordination of
one financial instrument to another financial instent (such as the subordination of one benefitiatest to another tranche of a
securitization) is an embedded derivative featlihe embedded derivative feature should not be sutmgotential bifurcation or separate
accounting under ASC 81Begrivatives and Hedgingln addition, the ASU provides guidance on whetiteer embedded credit derivatives
in financial instruments are subject to bifurcatand separate accounting. ASU 2QDwill be effective for us on July 1, 2010, and dgenot
expect the adoption to have a material impact erconsolidated financial condition or results obogtion.
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Disclosures about the Credit Quality of Financingdgeivables and the Allowance for Credit Losses (AZ)1(-20)

In July 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-20, whidjuiees expanded disclosures related to the crediity of finance receivables and
loans. This disclosure will be effective for usidgrthe December 31, 2010, reporting period. Thé& A&o requires a rollforward of the
allowance for loan losses for each reporting penduch will be effective for us during the March,2011, reporting period. Since the
guidance relates only to disclosures, adoptionmatlhave a material effect on our consolidatedrfaial condition or results of operation.

2. Discontinued and Held-for-sale Operations

Discontinued Operations

During 2009, we committed to sell certain operaiohResCap’s International Business Group (IBGesSe operations include
residential mortgage loan origination, acquisitiservicing, asset management, sale, and secudtizan the United Kingdom and continet
Europe (the Netherlands and Germany). During theetmonths ended June 30, 2010, we classified tiedperations as discontinued. The
continental Europe operations met the discontirapetations criteria during the three months endeceihber 31, 2009. We expect to
complete the sale of these operations during 2010.

During 2009, we committed to sell the U.S. consupteperty and casualty insurance business of aurémce operations. These
operations provided vehicle and home insuranckerUnited States through a number of distributioanmels including independent agents,
affinity groups, and the internet. The sale of Ous. consumer property and casualty insurance bsisiwas completed during the first qua
of 2010. Additionally, during 2009, we committedsell the U.K. consumer property and casualty iasce business. We expect to complete
the sale during 2010.

During the three months ended June 30, 2010, weedda operate at our International Automotive Raeaoperations in Australia and
Russia and classified them as discontinued.

During 2009, we committed to sell certain operatiohour International Automotive Finance operagiarcluding our Argentina, Poland,
and Ecuador operations and our Masterlease opesdticAustralia, Belgium, France, Italy, MexicoetNetherlands, Poland, and the United
Kingdom. Our Masterlease operations provide futi#ee individual leasing and fleet leasing produntduding maintenance, fleet, and
accident management services as well as fuel progrshort-term vehicle rental, and title and licGegservices. As of December 31, 2009,
the sales of the Masterlease operations in Italyxibb, and the Netherlands were completed. Duhieghree months ended June 30, 201(
completed the sale of our Poland operations and/@sterlease operations in Australia, Poland, Beftgiand France. In July 2010, we
completed the sale of our Argentina operations.@ifgect to complete the sale of our Ecuador opersitmd Masterlease operations in the
United Kingdom during 2010.

During 2009, we committed to sell the North Amenidaased factoring business of our Commercial Fiedhioup. On April 30, 2010,
the sale of the North American-based factoring iess was completed.

We classified these operations as discontinuedatipes using generally accepted accounting priasipl the United States of America,
as the associated operations and cash flows wélibrénated from our ongoing operations and we wit have any significant continuing
involvement in their operations after the respectale transactions. For all periods presentedf #ie operating results for these operations
were removed from continuing operations and aregireed separately as discontinued operations f m&t.orhe Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements were adjusted to exclude disueed operations unless otherwise noted.

The pretax income or loss recognized through JOn@@&L0, for the discontinued operations, includimgdirect costs to transact a sale,
could differ from the ultimate sales price duette fluidity of ongoing negotiations, price volatflj changing interest rates, changing foreign
currency rates, and future economic conditions.
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Selected financial information of discontinued @tiems is summarized below.

Three months endec

Six months endec

June 30, June 30,
($ in millions) 2010 2009 2010 2009
Select Mortgage operatio
Total net revenue (los $ 16 (57¢€) 44 $ (58¢)
Pretax income (loss) including direct costs to $ear a sal 89 (63¢) 10z (770
Tax (benefit) expens 9) 1 (8) —
Select Insurance operatio
Total net revenu $ 61 352 30C $ 754
Pretax (loss) including direct costs to transasdla (a (6) (57%) (6) (552)
Tax (benefit) expens (5) 11 (D] 14
Select International operatio
Total net revenu $ 36 87 73 $ 162
Pretax income including direct costs to transasdla (a) 48 7 58 2
Tax (benefit) expens (6) 4 1 4
Select Commercial Finance operatis
Total net revenu $ 3 8 11 $ 15
Pretax (loss) income including direct costs to $eam a sale (¢ ©) 2 7 (8)
Tax (benefit) (4) — — —

(&) Includes certain income tax activity recognizedooy Corporate and Other operatio
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Held-for-sale Operations

All of our discontinued operations were classifeedheld-for-sale except for our International Autbie Finance operations in Australia
and Russia. During the three months ended Jun2030, we also classified certain international iasge operations that are part of our
Insurance operations as held-&ale. Since these operations did not qualify asodisnued operations, the results are reflecteal @amponer
of continuing operations. No impairment was recagdito present these held-for-sale operationsedbther of cost or fair value less costs to
sell. We expect to complete the sale of these ams#r operations within the next twelve months. a$eets and liabilities held-for-sale at
June 30, 2010, are summarized below.

Total
Select Select Select held-for-
Mortgage Insurance International sale

($ in millions) operations (a operations (b’ operations (c operations
Assets
Cash and cash equivalel

Noninterest bearin $ 63 $ 14 $ 49 $ 12€

Interest bearin 33¢ 3 5 347

Total cash and cash equivale 40z 17 54 473
Investment securitie— available-for-sale — 46€ — 46€
Loans hel-for-sale 18C — — 18C
Finance receivables and loans, net of unearned

income

Consumer ($8,398 fair value electt 10,39¢ — 303 10,70:

Allowance for loan losse a7 — 3 (20

Total finance receivables and loans, 10,38: — 30C 10,68:
Investment in operating leases, — — 36¢ 36¢
Premiums receivable and other insurance

asset: — 154 — 154
Other asset 51z 13t 43 69C
Impairment on assets of held-for-sale

operations (60€) (210) (159) (975)
Total asset $ 10,87( $ 562 $ 607 $ 12,03¢
Liabilities
Debt

Shor-term borrowings $ — $ — $ 38 $ 38

Long-term debt ($7,857 fair value electe 9,57¢ — 16¢ 9,744

Total debt 9,57¢ — 207 9,78:
Interest payabl — — 2 2
Unearned insurance premiums and service

revenue — 14C — 14C
Reserves for insurance losses and loss

adjustment expensi — 35¢ — 35¢
Accrued expenses and other liabilit 964 31 60 1,05¢
Total liabilities $ 10,53¢ $ 52¢ $ 26¢ $ 11,33

(@) Includes operations of ResCap’s InternationaiBess Group in continental Europe and in theddni@ingdom. Balances include assets and liabilities were consolidated
beginning on January 1, 2010, due to the adoptigkSdJ 200¢-16 and ASU 20C-17. Refer to Note 1 for additional informatic

(b) Includes the U.K. consumer property and casuakyrance business and certain international inseraperations

(c) Includes the International Automotive Finance opiers of Argentina, Ecuador, and Masterlease intthit¢ed Kingdom.
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The assets and liabilities of held-for-sale operatiat December 31, 2009, are summarized below.

Select Total
Select Select Select Commercial held-for-
Mortgage Insurance Internationa Finance Grou sale

(% in millions) operations (& operations (k operations (¢ operations (d operation
Assets
Cash and cash equivalel

Noninterest bearin $ 4 $ 57¢ $ 33 $ — $ 61t

Interest bearin 151 — 11 — 162

Total cash and cash equivale 15¢ 57¢ 44 — 777
Trading securitie 36 — — — 36
Investment securities — availabl

for-sale — 794 — — 794
Loans hel-for-sale 214 — — — 214
Finance receivables and loans, 1

of unearned incom

Consume 2,65(C — 40C — 3,05(C

Commercial — — 24¢€ 238 47¢

Notes receivable from General

Motors — — 14 — 14
Allowance for loan losse (89) — (12) — (100
Total finance receivables and
loans, ne 2,561 — 64¢ 233 3,44:

Investment in operating leases, — — 88t — 88t
Mortgage servicing right (26) — — — (26)
Premiums receivable and other

insurance asse — 1,12¢ — — 1,12¢
Other asset 512 17¢€ 13E — 82:
Impairment on assets of held-for

sale operation (909 (231) (329 (30 (1,48%)
Total asset $ 2,54¢ $ 2,44: $ 1,38¢ $ 202 $ 6,58/
Liabilities
Debt

Shor-term borrowings $ — $ 34 $ 57 $ — $ 91

Long-term debi 1,74¢ — 237 — 1,98¢

Total debt 1,74¢ 34 294 — 2,071
Interest payabl 3 — 1 — 4
Unearned insurance premiums &

service revenu — 517 — — 517
Reserves for insurance losses and

loss adjustment expens — 1,471 — — 1,471
Accrued expenses and other

liabilities 43C 84 12€ 187 82¢
Total liabilities $ 2,182 $ 2,10¢ $ 428 $ 187 $ 4,89¢

(&) Includes the operations of Res('s International Business Group in continental Eerapd in the United Kingdor
(b) Includes the U.S. and U.K. consumer property asdigily insurance business

(c) Includes the International Automotive Finance opiers of Argentina, Ecuador, and Poland and Masasé in Australia, Belgium,

(d) Includes the North Americi-based factoring business of our Commercial Fin&@raip.
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Recurring Fair Value

The following tables display the assets and liibgiof our held-for-sale operations measurediatéue on a recurring basis including
financial instruments where we elected the faiugalption. We often economically hedge the faiugathange of our assets or liabilities with
derivatives and other financial instruments. Thees below display the hedges separately from dugéd items; therefore, they do not
directly display the impact of our risk managemastivities. Refer to Note 18 for descriptions ofuzion methodologies used to measure
material assets and liabilities at fair value aathils of the valuation models, key inputs to theselels, and significant assumptions used.

Recurring fair value measurements
June 30, 201($ in millions) Level 1 Level 2 Level 2 Total
Assets
Investment securitie
Available-for-sale securitie
Debt securitie!

Foreign governmer $ 32¢ $ — $ — $ 32¢

Other — 143 — 143

Total debt securitie 325 14z — 46€
Consumer mortgage finance receivables and loahsf m@earned income (i — — 8,39¢ 8,39¢

Other asset
Fair value of derivative contracts in receivablsipon

Interest rate contrac — 7 — 7
Foreign currency contrac — 49 — 49
Total fair value of derivative contracts in recdil@position — 56 — 56
Total asset $ 32t $ 19¢ $ 8,39¢ $ 8,92(
Liabilities
Secured det
Or-balance sheet securitization debt $ — & — $(7,857) $(7,857)

Accrued expenses and other liabilit
Fair value of derivative contracts in liability psn
Interest rate contrac — (774 — (774
Total liabilities $ — % (779 $(7,857) $(8,63)

(@) Carried at fair value due to fair value option éitegs.
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Recurring fair value measureme
December 31, 20C($ in millions) Level 1 Level 2 Level : Total
Assets
Trading securitie
Mortgagebacked
Residentia $ — $ — $ 36 $ 36
Total trading securitie — — 36 36
Investment securitie
Available-for-sale securitie
Debt securitie!

U.S. Treasury and federal agenc 243 2 — 24t
States and political subdivisio — 24 — 24
Foreign governmer 32¢ — — 32¢
Corporate debt securiti — 7 — 7
Other — 18¢ — 18¢
Total debt securitie 572 22z — 794
Mortgage servicing right — — (26) (26)
Other asset
Interests retained in financial asset si — — 15z 152
Fair value of derivative contracts in receivablsifion
Interest rate contrac — 60 — 60
Total asset $ 572 $ 282 $ 168 $1,017
Liabilities

Accrued expenses and other liabilit
Fair value of derivative contracts in liability psn
Interest rate contrac $ — $ (40 $ — $ (40

Total liabilities $ — $ (40 $ — $ (40

The following tables present the reconciliationdtirLevel 3 assets and liabilities of our held-&ale operations measured at fair value on
a recurring basis. We often economically hedgedaheralue change of our assets or liabilities va#rivatives and other financial instrume
The Level 3 items presented below may be hedgetkhyatives and other financial instruments that@assified as Level 1 or Level 2. Tt
the following tables do not fully reflect the impanf our risk management activities.

Level 3 recurring fair value measurements

Net unrealizec

Purchases gains includec
Fair value Net realized/unrealizec issuances, Fair value in earnings
as of and as of still held as of
April 1, gains included settlements June 30, June 30,
(% in millions) 2010 in earnings (a) net 2010 2010 (a)
Assets
Consumer mortgage finance
receivables and loans, net
of unearned income (| $ 9,18« $ 201 $ (989 $ 8,39 $ 71
Total asset $ 9,18 $ 201 $ (983 $ 8,39 $ 71
Liabilities
Secured det
On-balance sheet
securitization debt (k $ (8,829 $ 59 $ 90€ $ (7,859 $ 85
Total liabilities $ (8,829 $ 59 $ 90¢€ $ (7,85) $ 85

(@) Reported as income (loss) from discontinued opamatinet of tax, in the Consolidated Statemenhobine.
(b) Carried at fair value due to fair value option éitegs.
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Level 3 recurring fair value measurements

Net unrealizec

Purchases gains includec
Fair value issuances, Fair value in earnings
as of Net realized/unrealizec and as of still held as of
January 1, gains included settlements June 30, June 30,
($ in millions) 2010 in earnings (a) net 2010 2010 (a)
Assets
Trading securitie:
Mortgage¢backed
Residentia $ 36 $ — $ (36) $ — $ —
Total trading securitie 36 — (36) — —
Consumer mortgage finance
receivables and loans, net
of unearned income (| — 41F 7,98: 8,39¢ 14¢
Mortgage servicing right (26) — 26 — —
Other asset
Interests retained in
financial asset sale 152 — (159 —
Total asset $ 162 $ 41E $ 7,82( $ 8,39¢ $ 14¢
Liabilities
Secured det
On-balance sheet
securitization debt (k $ — $ 197 $ (8,059 $ (7,85) $ 25E
Total liabilities $ — $ 197 $ (8,059 $ (7,857 $ 25E

(@) Reported as income (loss) from discontinued opamatinet of tax, in the Consolidated Statemenhobine.
(b) Carried at fair value due to fair value option éitegs.

3. Other Income, Net of Losse:

Details of other income, net of losses, were dsvidl.

Three months endec

Six months endec

June 30, June 30,

($ in millions) 2010 2009 2010 2009

Mortgage processing fees and other mortgage inc $ 41 $ 9 $ 94 $ 15
Remarketing fee 36 38 67 71
Late charges and other administrative fee! 35 33 72 72
Full-service leasing fee 13 33 41 64
Other equity method investmer 13 4 25 8
Real estate services, 1 2 (2249) 9 (25¢)
Fair value adjustment on certain derivatives 2 96 (58) (62)
Change due to fair value option elections, ne (56) (63) (129 (93
Other, ne 10€ (39 154 (147
Total other income, net of loss $ 19C $ (119 $ 27¢ $ (329

(@) Includes nonmortgage securitization fe
(b) Refer to Note 15 for a description of derivativetmments and hedging activitie
(c) Refer to Note 18 for a description of fair valudiop elections
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4. Other Operating Expenses

Details of other operating expenses were as follows

Three months endec

Six months endec

June 30, June 30,
(% in millions) 2010 2009 2010 2009
Insurance commissiot $ 15C $ 15k $ 29¢ $ 314
Technology and communications expe 134 152 273 301
Mortgage representation and warranty expense 97 237 14¢€ 41C
Professional service 63 11¢ 12 20t
Advertising and marketin 50 36 74 74
Vehicle remarketing and repossess 48 57 10z 10t
State and local n-income taxe: 36 36 61 55
Lease and loan administrati 35 43 66 81
Rent and storag 26 23 51 51
Regulatory and licensing fe 25 29 55 49
Premises and equipment deprecia 20 20 38 44
Restructuring expensi 14 — 56 —
Full-service leasing vehicle maintenance c 6 32 36 65
Other 11€ 137 337 327
Total other operating expens $ 822 $ 1,07¢ $ 1,711 $ 2,081
5. Trading Securities
The fair value for our portfolio of trading secig# by type was as follows.

($ in millions) June 30, 201 December 31, 20(
Trading securitie:

U.S. Treasun $ 75 $ —

Mortgagebacked

Residentia 47 14z

Asse-backec 87 59€

Total trading securitie $ 20¢ $ 73¢
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6. Investment Securities

Our portfolio of securities includes bonds, equitgurities, asset- and mortgage-backed securitiéss, interests in securitization trusts,
and other investments. The cost, fair value, andgunrealized gains and losses on available-ferasal held-to-maturity securities were as
follows.

June 30, 201( December 31, 200
Gross unrealized Fair Gross unrealize Fair
($ in millions) Cost gains losses value Cost gains  losses value
Available-for-sale securities
Debt securitie:
U.S. Treasury and federal agenc $398:. $ 51 % — $4,03: $3501 $ 15 $ (6) $ 3,51C
States and political subdivisio 7 — — 7 77¢ 36 4 811
Foreign governmer 1,19t 32 2 1,22t 1,161 20 (8) 1,17z
Mortgage¢backed
Residential (a 3,451 69 (22) 3,49¢ 3,404 76 a9 3,461
Asse-backec 1,68¢ 15 1) 1,70( 1,00( 7 2 1,00¢
Corporate dek 1,252 52 2 1,30z 1,40¢ 74 9) 1,47:
Other 1 — — 1 47 — — 47
Total debt securities (t 11,57« 21¢ (27)  11,76¢ 11,30( 22¢ (48  11,48(
Equity securities 1,06¢€ 1 (123 944 631 52 (8 67E
Total availabl-for-sale securities (c $12,64C $ 22C $ (150 $12,71C $11,937 $ 28C $ (56) $12,15¢
Held-to-maturity securities
Total hel-to-maturity securitie: $ —3$ — 3 — $ — 3 3$ — % — % 3

(a) Residential mortga¢-backed securities include age-backed bonds totaling $2,271 million and $2,248iamlat June 30, 2010, and December 31, 2009, ctspy.

(b) In connection with certain borrowings and Iegtef credit relating to certain assumed reinsueasontracts, $153 million and $164 million of priihaU.K. Treasury securities were
pledged as collateral as of June 30, 2010, andrbleee31, 2009, respectivel

(c) Certain entities related to our Insurance ofpena are required to deposit securities with staggilatory authorities. These deposited secutitizded $16 million and $15 million at
June 30, 2010, and December 31, 2009, respect

The maturity distribution of available-for-sale dslcurities outstanding is summarized in the foihg tables. Prepayments may cause
actual maturities to differ from scheduled matesti

Due after Due after
Due in one year five years
one year through through Due after
Total or less five years ten years ten years (a)
June 30, 201($ in millions) Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield
Fair value of available-for-sale debt
securities (b
U.S. Treasury and federal agenc $ 4,032 15% $ 172 08% $ 3,80C 15% $ 61 33% $ — —%
States and political subdivisio 7 5.9 — — 3 6.2 — — 4 57
Foreign governmer 1,228 3.8 87 0E 92t 4.2 21 44 — —
Mortgage¢backed
Residentia 3,49¢ 43 — — 8 5.2 64 4.t 3,42¢ 4.3
Asse-backec 1,70C 25 21 47 1,197 24 36C 2.7 12z 34
Corporate dek 1,30z 5.3 91 5.9 62z 5.C 54z 5.t 47 5.8
Other 1 — - — — — - — 1 —

Total availabl-for-sale debt securitie $11,76¢ 3.2% $ 371 2.2% $ 6558 24% $ 124 4% $ 3,600 4.2%
Amortized cost of available-for-sale
debt securitie $11,57¢ $ 37C $ 6,45¢ $ 1,19¢ $ 3,55(

(&) Investments with no stated maturities are incluagigdontractual maturities of greater than 10 yefsrgial maturities may differ due to call or prepssnt options
(b) Yields on ta-exempt obligations are computed on e-equivalent basis
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Due after Due after
Due in one year five years
one year through through Due after
Total or less five years ten year: ten years (a
December 31, 20C($ in millions) Amount Yield  Amouni Yield  Amoun Yield = Amoun! Yield Amount Yield
Fair value of available-for-sale debt
securities (b
U.S. Treasury and federal agenc $351C 1% $ 10 11% $339A 1% $ 17 41% $ — —%
States and political subdivisio 811 7.C 9 7.C 178 7.2 147 7.C 48C 6.9
Foreign governmer 1,17 3.8 66 1.7 87z 3. 22  4F 6 5.3
Mortgage¢backed
Residentia 3,461 6.5 — — 2 6L 36 13.C 3,42 6.4
Asse-backec 1,008 25 34 5.2 73t 2.3 18¢ 2.6 50 3.¢
Corporate dek 1,47 5.2 28 3.4 57t 5. 57C 5.4 45 6.9
Other 47 3. — — 32 34 15 4.C — —
Total availabl-for-sale debt securitie $11,48( 4.3% $ 495 2.8% $ 5781 2.8% $ 1200 52% $ 4,00/ 6.5%
Amortized cost of available-for-sale deb
securities $11,30( $ 47% $ 5,72¢ $ 1,16¢ $ 3,93(

(&) Investments with no stated maturities are incluaggdontractual maturities of greater than 10 yefsrgial maturities may differ due to call or prepssnt options
(b) Yields on ta-exempt obligations are computed on e-equivalent basis

Certain investment securities with an original miggwof 90 days or less are classified as cashvedgiits and are composed primarily of
money market accounts and short-term securities.cairying value of cash equivalents approxima@s/alue. The balance of cash
equivalents was $934 million and $1.8 billion atdB0, 2010, and December 31, 2009, respectively.

The following table presents gross gains and lossaized upon the sales of available-for-sale ises and other-than-temporary
impairment.

Three months ended Six months ended

June 30, June 30,
($ in millions) 2010 2009 2010 2009
Gross realized gair $ 12t $ 91 $ 277 $ 14C
Gross realized lossi (13 (39 (21) (63)
Other-thar-temporary impairmer (1) (D) (D) (47)
Net realized gain $ 111 $ 56 $ 25E $ 30

The following table presents interest and divideosvailable-for-sale securities.

Three months endec Six months endec

June 30, June 30,
(% in millions) 2010 2009 2010 2009
Taxable interes $ 84 $ 45 $ 173 $ 93
Taxable dividend. 4 3 8 3
Interest and dividends exempt from U.S. federabine tax 3 7 10 17
Total interest and dividenc $ 91 $ 55 $ 191 $ 112
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The table below summarizes available-$ate securities in an unrealized loss positiorcoueulated other comprehensive income. B
on the methodology described below that was apppigbdese securities, we believe that the unredliasses relate to factors other than credit
losses in the current market environment. As oEJM 2010, we do not have the intent to sell #ie decurities with an unrealized loss
position in accumulated other comprehensive incand, it is not more likely than not that we will lEuired to sell these securities before
recovery of their amortized cost basis. As of J80e2010, we had the ability and intent to holdiggsecurities with an unrealized loss
position in accumulated other comprehensive incokse result, we believe that the securities withuarealized loss position in accumula
other comprehensive income are not considered tih®-than-temporarily impaired as of June 30,0201

June 30, 201( December 31, 200
12 month:
Less than 12 months Less than
12 months or longer 12 months or longer
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealizet Unrealize:
Fair Fair Fair Fair
($ in millions) value loss value loss value loss value loss
Available-for-sale securities
Debt securitie:
U.S. Treasury and federal agenc $ 3 % — $ — 3 —  $143C $ ® $— 9 —
States and political subdivisio — — — — 82 2 8 2
Foreign government securiti 96 2 — — 53€ (8) — —
Mortgagebacked securitie 637 (20 10 2 811 (14) 6 (5)
Asse-backed securitie 77 Q) 8 — 202 Q) 22 @
Corporate debt securiti 64 (1) 20 (1) 47 (1) 12C (8)
Other — — — — 7 — — —
Total temporarily impaired debt securit 877 (24) 38 ©)] 3,11t 32 15€ (16)
Temporarily impaired equity securiti 882 (123 — — 11E (5) 52 (©)]
Total temporarily impaired available-for-
sale securitie $1,75¢ $ (147 $ 38 % (3) $3,23C $ (37) $20¢ ¢ (19)

We employ a systematic methodology that consideaiadble evidence in evaluating potential othemttb@mporary impairment of our
investments classified as available-for-sale. éf tbst of an investment exceeds its fair valuegwaduate, among other factors, the magnitude
and duration of the decline in fair value, the finl health of and business outlook for the isscleanges to the rating of the security by a
rating agency, the performance of the underlyirsgptsfor interests in securitized assets, whetleeintend to sell the investment, and whe
it is more likely than not we will be required tellghe debt security before recovery of its anzadi cost basis. We had other-than-temporary
impairment write-downs of $1 million for both therée months and six months ended June 30, 201(qarechto $1 million and $47 million
for the three months and six months ended Jun2C®, respectively. The $1 million impairment foetthree months ended June 30, 2010,
related to corporate debt securities that we hlagéntent to sell and was accordingly recognizegamings.

7. Loans Helc-for-sale

The composition of loans held-for-sale was as fedlo

June 30, 2010 December 31, 200

($ in millions) Domestic  Foreign Total Domestic  Foreigr Total
Consume

Automobile $ 129 $ 167 $1468 $ 9417 $ 184 $ 9,601

1st Mortgage 7,771 152 7,92% 9,26¢ 53C 9,79¢

Home equity 98¢ — 98¢ 1,06¢ — 1,06¢
Total consumer (e 10,05¢ 31¢ 10,371 19,75¢ 714 20,46¢
Commercial

Commercial and industrii

Other — 5 5 — 157 157

Total loans hel-for-sale $ 10,05¢ $ 324 $10,38:. $ 19,75« $ 871 $20,62¢

(a) Domestic residential mortgages include $4.lobiland $5.5 billion at fair value as a resulfaif value option elections as of June 30, 201@, Racember 31, 2009, respectively.
Refer to Note 18 for additional informatic
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8. Finance Receivables and Loans, Net of Unearnedcbome

The composition of finance receivables and loaasphunearned income outstanding, before allowémckan losses, was as follows.

June 30, 201( December 31, 200
($ in millions) Domestic Foreign  Total Domestic Foreigr  Total
Consume
Automobile $ 26,45( $15,26F $41,71F $ 12,51 $17,73. $30,24*
1st Mortgage 8,43% 93¢ 9,374 7,96( 40t 8,36%
Home equity 4,257 — 4,25 4,23¢ 1 4,23¢
Total consumer (e 39,14: 16,20+ 55,34¢ 24,71: 18,137 42,84¢
Commercial
Commercial and industri;
Automobile 21,77¢ 8,107 29,88: 19,60: 7,03t 26,63¢
Mortgage 1,807 75 1,87¢ 1,57z 96 1,66¢
Resort financt 644 — 644 84:c — 8432
Other 1,77¢ 401 2,17¢ 1,84¢ 437 2,282
Commercial real esta
Automobile 2,09( 20¢ 2,29¢ 2,00¢ 221 2,22¢
Mortgage 5 11€ 12z 121 162 2832
Total commercia 28,09¢ 8,90¢  37,00¢ 25,99( 7,951 33,94
Notes receivable from General Mot — 365 36¢ 3 90¢ 911
Total finance receivables and loans $ 67,23t $25,47¢ $92,71¢ $ 50,70 $26,99¢ $77,70:

(a) Residential mortgages include $2.3 billion and $filfBon at fair value as a result of fair valuetiom elections as of June 30, 2010, and Decembe2(®19, respectively. Refer to N¢
18 for additional informatior
(b) Totals are net of unearned income of $2.6 billiod &2.5 billion at June 30, 2010, and Decembe809, respectively

The following tables present an analysis of thevagtin the allowance for loan losses on finaneeaivables and loans, net of unearned
income.

Three months ended June 30,

2010 2009
($ in millions) Consumel Commercial Total Consume Commercis Total
Allowance at April 1, $ 1,754 $ 72€ $2,48( $ 2,75¢ $ 887 $ 3,64t
Provision for loan losse 21¢€ 4 22C 72¢ 38¢ 1,117
Charge-offs
Domestic (22¢) (92) (319 (835) (305) (1,140
Foreign (50) (49 (99 (549 (9) (55§)
Total charg-offs (278) (140 (418 (1,389 (3149) (1,699
Recoveries
Domestic 78 5 83 59 4 63
Foreign 19 9 28 15 — 15
Total recoverie: 97 14 111 74 4 78
Net charg-offs (181) (12¢) (307) (1,310 (310 (1,620
Other (10 (6) (16) 13C 29 15¢
Allowance at June 3! $  1,77¢ $ 59¢ $2,37i $ 2,30 $ 994 $ 3,301
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Six months ended June 3(
2010 2009
($ in millions) Consumel Commercial Total Consume Commercig Total
Allowance at January . $ 1,664 $ 781 $2,44¢ $ 2,53¢ $ 897 $ 3,43¢
Provision for loan losse 344 22 36€ 1,29¢ 56¢ 1,86:
Chargeoffs
Domestic (546) (152) (69¢) (1,240 (473 (1,719
Foreign (117 (53 (164 (615) (18) (639)
Total charg-offs (657) (205) (862) (1,855 (497 (2,346
Recoveries
Domestic 18t 9 194 11C 7 117
Foreign 36 9 45 29 1 30
Total recoverie: 221 18 23¢ 13¢ 8 147
Net charg-offs (43€) (187) (623) (1,716 (483 (2,199
Addition of allowance due to change in
accounting principle (¢ 222 — 222 — — —
Other (15) (18 (33 19: 11 204
Allowance at June 3( $  1,77¢ $ 59¢ $2,37i $ 2,307 $ 994 $ 3,301

@

Enterprises Involved with Variable Interest Entt. Refer to Note 1 for additional informatic

The following tables present information about mopaired finance receivables and loans.

June 30, 201(

December 31, 20C

Effect of change in accounting principle duadwmption of ASU 2009-1&\ccounting for Transfers of Financial Assetnd ASU 2009-17mprovements to Financial Reporting by

($ in millions) Consumel Commercial Total Consume Commercig Total
Impaired finance receivables and loi
With an allowanct $ 36& $ 1,194 $1,55¢ $ 252 $ 1,76C $2,01z
Without an allowanc 33 34z 37t 16 29¢ 312
Total impaired loan $ 39¢ $ 1,53¢ $1,93¢ $ 26€ $ 2,05¢€ $2,32¢
Allowance for impaired loan $ 102 $ 48¢ $ 59C $ 80 $ 48¢€ $ 56¢
Three months ended June 3(
2010 2009
(% in millions) Consumel Commercial Total Consume Commercis Total
Average balance of impaired lozs $ 367 $ 1,69¢ $2,061 $ 63€ $ 2,72¢ $3,362
Interest income recognized on impaired lo $ 4 $ 2 $ 6 $ 8 $ 6 $ 14
Six months ended June 3(
2010 2009
($ in millions) Consumel Commercial Total Consume Commercig Total
Average balance of impaired lozs $ 327 $ 1,811 $2,14¢ $ 511 $ 2,721 $3,23:
Interest income recognized on impaired lo $ 7 $ 4 $ 11 $ 16 $ 20 $ 36

At June 30, 2010, and December 31, 2009, commaeargimmitments to lend additional funds to debtoringweceivables whose terms

had been modified in troubled debt restructuringes&l5 million and $12 million, respectively.
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9. Off-balance Sheet Securitizations

We sell pools of automotive and residential moregk@ns via securitization transactions, which mleypermanent funding and facilita
asset and liability management. In executing tleisiization transactions, we typically sell theofto wholly owned special-purpose
entities (SPEs), which then sell the loans to assp, transaction-specific, bankruptcy-remote &P&ecuritization trust) for cash, servicing
rights, and in some transactions, retained inter@ste securitization trust issues and sells istert® investors that are collateralized by the
secured loans and entitle the investors to speciféesh flows generated from the securitized loans.

Our securitization transactions are accounted fidetthe requirements of ASC 81pnsolidation, and ASC 860Jransfers and
Servicing. ASU 2009-16Accounting for Transfers of Financial Assetnd ASU 2009-14mprovements to Financial Reporting by
Enterprises Involved with Variable Interest Enst, which amended ASC 810 and ASC 860, became aféeoti January 1, 2010, and
required the prospective consolidation of certaicusitization assets and liabilities that were presly held off-balance sheet. We reflected
our economic interest in these newly consolidataettires primarily through loans and secured datbier than as interests held in off-
balance sheet securitization trusts. Refer to Ndt additional information related to the adoptaf ASU 2009-16 and ASU 2009-17. Refer
to Note 19 for additional information related t@ ttonsolidation of certain securitization truste ¢luthe adoption of the new standards.

The following discussion and related informatiomidy applicable to the transfers of finance reables and loans that qualify for off-
balance sheet treatment.

Each securitization is governed by various legaudeents that limit and specify the activities of 8ecuritization vehicle. The
securitization vehicle is generally allowed to acgthe loans being sold to it, to issue interéstigvestors to fund the acquisition of the lo:
and to enter into derivatives or other yield maiatece contracts to hedge or mitigate certain risleded to the asset pool or debt securities.
Additionally, the securitization vehicle is requdr® service the assets it holds and the debtterdst it issues. A servicer appointed within
underlying legal documents performs these functi®esvicing functions include, but are not limited collecting payments from borrowers,
performing escrow functions, monitoring delinquesgiliquidating assets, investing funds until disition, remitting payments to investors,
and accounting for and reporting information todastors.

As part of our offbalance sheet securitizations, we typically resgrvicing responsibilities and, in some cases,rattsignificant retaine
interests. Accordingly, our servicing responsil@hitresult in continued involvement in the formsefvicing the underlying asset (primary
servicing) and/or servicing the bonds resultingrfrilie securitization transactions (master servjdingugh servicing platforms. Certain
securitizations require the servicer to advancedualed principal and interest payments due on tioé iegardless of whether they are
received from borrowers. Accordingly, we are regdito provide these servicing advances when afigdicaypically, we conclude that the
fee we are paid for servicing retail automotiveafine receivables represents adequate compensatibnpnsequently, we do not recognize a
servicing asset or liability. Refer to Note 1 te tionsolidated Financial Statements in our 2009u&hReport on Form 10-K regarding the
valuation of servicing rights.

Subsequent to the adoption of ASU 2009-16 and AGQ92L7 as of January 1, 2010, we generally do olat $ignificant or potentially
significant retained interests in our securitizatinusts that qualify for off-balance sheet treatimender ASU 2009-17.

Generally, the assets initially transferred inte siecuritization vehicle are the sole funding sedocthe investors in the securitization t
and the various other parties that perform senfioethe transaction, such as the servicer orrilde. In certain transactions, a liquidity
provider or facility may exist to provide tempordiguidity to the structure. The liquidity providgenerally is reimbursed prior to other
parties in subsequent distribution periods. Borsthiance may also exist to cover certain shortfaltsertain investors. As noted above, in
certain securitizations, the servicer is requieddvance scheduled principal and interest paynter@on the pool regardless of whether they
were received from the borrowers. The servicellisved to reimburse itself for these servicing athes. Additionally, certain securitization
transactions may allow for the acquisition of aiddial loans subsequent to the initial loan. Priatigmllections on other loans and/or the
issuance of new interests, such as variable funalings, generally fund these loans; we are oftatractually required to invest in these new
interests. Lastly, we provide certain guaranteadisgaissed in Note 30 to the Consolidated Fina8talements in our 2009 Annual Report on
Form 10-K.
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The investors and/or securitization trusts haveemourse to us with the exception of market custgmepresentation and warranty
repurchase provisions and, in certain transactieaidy payment default provisions. Representatimhwarranty repurchase provisions
generally require us to repurchase loans to thenéxtis subsequently determined that the loang weeligible or were otherwise defective at
the time of sale. Due to market conditions, eadyrpent default provisions are included in cert@icusitization transactions that require us to
repurchase loans if the borrower is delinquent &kimg certain specific payments subsequent todlee s

We generally hold certain conditional repurchasiong that allow us to repurchase assets fromehargization. The majority of the
securitizations provide us, as servicer, with dagation that allows us to repurchase the remaimisgets or outstanding debt once the asset
pool reaches a predefined level, which represéetoint where servicing is burdensome rather beareficial. Such an option is referred to
as a clean-up call. As servicer, we are able tootsesthis option at our discretion anytime after asset pool size falls below the predefined
level. The repurchase price for the loans is typiqaar plus accrued interest. Additionally, we mfegld other conditional repurchase options
that allow us to repurchase the asset if certaémisy outside our control, are met. The typicalditional repurchase option is a delinquent
loan repurchase option that gives us the optigrutohase the loan if it exceeds a certain prespdaifelinquency level. We have complete
discretion regarding when or if we will exercisesk options, but generally, we would do so whé&iit our best interest.

The loans sold into off-balance sheet securitiratiansactions are removed from our balance shhetassets obtained from the
securitization are primarily reported as cash, isémy rights, or (if retained) retained interedi¢e elected fair value treatment for our existing
mortgage servicing rights portfolio. Liabilitiescarred as part of the transaction, such as repiegmmand warranty provisions, are recorded
at fair value at the time of sale and are repoatedccrued expenses and other liabilities on ons@imated Balance Sheet. Upon the sale of
the loans, we recognize a gain or loss on salthéodifference between the assets recognized sgetsaaderecognized, and the liabilities
recognized as part of the transaction.

The following summarizes the pretax gains and sseognized on the types of loans sold into offiee sheet securitization
transactions.

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30, June 30,
($ in millions) 2010 2009 2010 2009
Retail finance receivable $ — $ — $ — $ —
Automotive wholesale loar — 38 — 102
Mortgage loan: 1 — 4 (4
Total pretax gain on c-balance sheet activitit $ 1 $ 38 $ 4 $ 98

The following summarizes the type and amount offolaeld by the securitization trusts in transactittvat qualified for off-balance sheet
treatment.

($ in billions) June 30, 201 December 31, 20(
Retail finance receivable $ — $ 7.5
Automotive wholesale loar — —
Mortgage loans (& 80.7 99.€
Total off-balance sheet activitit $ 80.2 $ 107.]

(@) Excludes $168 million and $237 million of dejirent loans held by securitization trusts as oJM 2010, and December 31, 2009, respectivedy vik have the option to
repurchasias they are included in consumer finance receigadnbel loans and mortgage loans -for-sale.
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10. Mortgage Servicing Rights

The following tables summarize activity relatedM8Rs carried at fair value. Sufficient market irgpakist to determine the fair value of
our recognized servicing assets and servicinglitizsi.

Three months endec

June 30,

($ in millions) 2010 2009
Estimated fair value at April : $ 3,64 $ 2,58i
Additions obtained from sales of financial as: 167 254
Additions from purchases of servicing as: 20 6
Subtractions from sales of servicing as: — (29
Changes in fair valu

Due to changes in valuation inputs or assumpticesl in the valuation mod (549 1,03t

Other changes in fair value ( (20€) (352)
Other changes that affect the bala 2 (2)
Estimated fair value at June < $ 2,98: $ 3,50¢

(@) Other changes in fair value primarily include tler@tion of the present value of the discount eeldb forecasted cash flows and the economic rwfdffe portfolio.

Six months endec

June 30,

($ in millions) 2010 2009
Estimated fair value at January $ 3,55¢ $ 2,84¢
Additions obtained from sales of financial as: 36¢ 373
Additions from purchases of servicing as¢ 21 6
Subtractions from sales of servicing as: — (29
Changes in fair valu

Due to changes in valuation inputs or assumpticesl in the valuation mod (4949) 99t

Other changes in fair value ( (450 (692)
Decrease due to change in accounting principl (19 —
Other changes that affect the bala 2 2
Estimated fair value at June ! $ 2,98¢ $ 3,50¢

(@) Other changes in fair value primarily include tleeration of the present value of the discount eslab forecasted cash flows and the economic rwfdffe portfolio.
(b) The effect of change in accounting principleswdaie to the adoption of ASU 2009-¥&;counting for Transfers of Financial Assetnd ASU 2009-11mprovements to Financial
Reporting by Enterprises Involved with Variableelst Entities. Refer to Note 1 for additional informatic

We pledged MSRs of $1.5 billion as collateral forfowings at both June 30, 2010, and December@®19.2

Changes in fair value due to changes in valuatipnts or assumptions used in the valuation modelade all changes due to revalua
by a model or by a benchmarking exercise. Othengds in fair value primarily include the accretimfrthe present value of the discount
related to forecasted cash flows and the econamiaff of the portfolio, foreign currency translatiadjustments, and the extinguishment of
MSRs related to the exercise of clean-up callsotigtization transactions.

Key assumptions we use in valuing our MSRs arelkmafs.

June 30,
2010 2009
Range of prepayment spee 9.2-42.0%  0.7-49.0%
Range of discount rat 2.6-24.8% 3.3-130.3%
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The primary risk of our servicing rights is intereate risk and the resulting impact on prepaymehtsgnificant decline in interest rates
could lead to higher-than-expected prepayments;iwtould reduce the value of the MSRs. We have@uoarally hedged the income
statement impact of these risks with both derivatind nonderivative financial instruments. Thesgérimments include interest rate swaps,
caps and floors, options to purchase these itamggs, and forward contracts and/or purchasirggting U.S. Treasury and principal-only
securities. The net fair value of derivative finmhnstruments used to mitigate these risks anmexlitd $855 million and $443 million at
June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The chamgiedrivalue of the derivative financial instrumgm@tmounted to a gain of $790 million and
a loss of $902 million for the six months endedel@a, 2010 and 2009, respectively, and were indudservicing asset valuation and hedge
activities, net, in the Consolidated Statemennebme.

The components of mortgage servicing fees werelsifs.

Three months endec Six months endec
June 30, June 30,
(% in millions) 2010 2009 2010 2009
Contractual servicing fees, net of guarantee fadsrecluding subservicin $ 26€ $ 27t $ 524 $ 558
Late fees 19 21 38 45
Ancillary fees 43 38 90 74
Total $ 32¢ $ 334 $ 652 $ 672

Our Mortgage operations that conduct primary andteraservicing activities are required to maintagntain servicer ratings in
accordance with master agreements entered intogwiternment-sponsored entities. At June 30, 200OMprtgage operations were in
compliance with the servicer-rating requirementthef master agreements.

11. Other Assets

The components of other assets were as follows.

($ in millions) June 30, 201 December 31, 20(
Property and equipment at ci $ 1,282 $ 1,41¢
Accumulated depreciatic (922) (1,080
Net property and equipme 36C 33¢€
Fair value of derivative contracts in receivablsifion 4,84¢ 2,65¢
Restricted cash collections for securitizationtsygs) 2,34¢ 3,65¢
Servicer advance 2,007 2,18(
Restricted cash and cash equivale 1,96¢ 1,59(
Cash reserve deposits b-for-securitization trusts (t 1,30: 1,59¢
Collateral placed with counterparti 844 1,76(C
Other accounts receivak 844 572
Debt issuance cos 81C 82¢
Prepaid expenses and depo 662 74¢
Goodwill 524 52€
Interests retained in financial asset si 46E 471
Investment in used vehicles h-for-sale 45C 522
Accrued interest and rent receiva 307 32¢€
Real estate and other investme 27C 34C
Repossessed and foreclosed assets, net, at lowestadr fair valut 243 33¢€
Other asset 1,397 1,44
Total other asse $ 19,64¢ $ 19,88"

(@) Represents cash collection from customer paymengeouritized receivables. These funds are digaibto investors as payments on the related seciaiet
(b) Represents credit enhancement in the form of aasdrves for various securitization transactis
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The changes in the carrying amounts of goodwiltii@r periods shown were as follows.

International

Automotive Finance Insurance
($ in millions) operations operations Total
Goodwill at December 31, 20( $ 46¢ $ 57 $ 52€
Transfer to assets of discontinued operations-for-sale — 6 6
Foreign currency translation effe — (8) (8)
Goodwill at June 30, 201 $ 46¢ $ 55 $ 524
12. Deposit Liabilities
Deposit liabilities consisted of the following.

($ in millions) June 30, 201 December 31, 20(
Domestic deposit

Noninteres-bearing deposit $ 2,26z $ 1,75t

NOW and money market checking accot 7,94¢ 7,215

Certificates of depos 20,597 19,86:

Dealer deposit 1,251 1,041
Total domestic deposi 32,06+ 29,87(
Foreign deposit

Noninteres-bearing deposit 14 —

NOW and money market checking accot 541 165

Certificates of depos 2,35( 1,55¢

Dealer deposit 24E 16€
Total foreign deposit 3,15( 1,88¢
Total deposit liabilities $ 35,21« $ 31,75¢

Noninterest bearing deposits primarily represeimtitharty escrows associated with our Mortgage afi@ns’ loan servicing portfolio.
The escrow deposits are not subject to an exeagexEment and can be withdrawn without penaltyatiane. At June 30, 2010, and
December 31, 2009, certificates of deposit inclup®ed billion and $4.8 billion, respectively, ofrdestic certificates of deposit in
denominations of $100 thousand or more.
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13. Debt

The following table presents the composition of debt portfolio at June 30, 2010, and Decembe3Q9.

June 30, 201( December 31, 200

($ in millions) Unsecurec Securec  Total Unsecure Secure  Total
Shor-term deb!

Commercial pape $ - $ — % — 3 8 $§ — ¢ 8

Demand note 1,59¢ — 1,59¢ 1,311 — 1,311

Bank loans and overdral 1,78¢ — 1,78¢ 1,59¢ — 1,59¢

Repurchase agreements and othe 34k 3,324 3,66¢ 34¢ 7,021 7,37¢
Total shor-term deb 3,73( 3,32¢ 7,054 3,26¢ 7,027 10,29:
Long-term debi

Due within one yea 6,202  13,73¢ 19,93% 7,42¢ 18,89¢ 26,327

Due after one year (! 39,45 25,02( 64,47 38,331 22,83¢ 61,16¢
Total lon¢-term debt (¢ 45,65¢  38,75¢ 84,41( 45,76(  41,73: 87,49:
Fair value adjustment (i 79E — 79E 52¢ — 52¢
Total debt $ 50,187 $42,07¢ $92,25¢ $ 49,55¢ $48,75¢ $98,31!

(@) Repurchase agreements consist of secured filgpaorangements with third parties at our Mortgagerations. Other primarily includes nonbank sedurorrowings and notes

payable to GM. Refer to Note 17 for additional imf@tion.

(b) Includes $7.4 billion at both June 30, 201@J Brecember 31, 2009, guaranteed by the Federalditdpsurance Corporation (FDIC) under the Tempotaquidity Guarantee

Program (TLGP)

(c) Secured long-term debt includes $2.2 billiod &4.3 billion at fair value as of June 30, 201t ®ecember 31, 2009, respectively, as a resti#tiofalue option elections. Refer to

Note 18 for additional informatiol
(d) Amount represents the hedge accounting adjustmefixed rate debt

The following table presents the scheduled matafitpng-term debt at June 30, 2010, assumingrtbaarly redemptions occur. The
actual payment of secured debt may vary basedeopayiment activity of the related pledged assets.

Year ended December :, ($ in millions) Unsecured ( Secured (k Total

2010 $ 2,14¢ $  7,46¢ $ 9,61¢
2011 9,39: 13,27¢ 22,67:
2012 12,61( 5,92 18,53:
2013 1,88¢ 5,72¢ 7,61«
2014 1,967 1,72% 3,69(
2015 and thereaftt 21,40¢ 1,70¢ 23,11
Original issue discount ( (3,757) — (3,75%)
Troubled debt restructuring concession — 39¢€ 39€
Long-term debi 45,65¢ 36,21¢ 81,87«
Collateralized borrowings in securitization trug — 2,53¢ 2,53¢
Total lon¢-term deb $ 45,65¢ $ 38,75¢ $84,41(

@)

Scheduled maturities of ResCap unsecured lemg-tiebt are as follows: $419 million in 2010; $20@ion in 2011; $340 million in 2012; $529 milicin 2013; $97 million in 2014;
and $112 million in 2015 and thereafter. These mitigg exclude ResCap debt held by A

Scheduled maturities of ResCap secured teng-debt are as follows: $661 million in 2010; 85fillion in 2011; $0 million in 2012; $707 millioim 2013; $707 million in 2014; ar
$910 million in 2015 and thereafter. These masigxclude ResCap debt held by Ally and collateedliborrowings in securitization trus

Scheduled remaining amortization of originalie discount is as follows: $640 million in 20106% million in 2011; $342 million in 2012; $255 v in 2013; $183 million in
2014; and $1,370 million in 2015 and thereal

In the second quarter of 2008, ResCap exeartezkchange offer that resulted in a concessiamgbeicognized as an adjustment to the carryingevaficertain new secured notes .
This concession is being amortized over the lifehefnew notes through a reduction to interest e@eising an effective yield methodology. Schedubedaining amortization of the
troubled debt restructuring concession is as fato$49 million in 2010; $101 million in 2011; $1@fllion in 2012; $82 million in 2013; $46 milliomi2014; and $13 million in 20:
and thereaftel

Collateralized borrowings in securitization trustpresent mortgar-lendin¢-related debt that is repaid on the principal paymefthe underlying asse
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The following summarizes assets restricted astesfihfor the payment of the related debt obligafimarily arising from secured
financing arrangements, securitization transactamt®unted for as secured borrowings, and repuecigeements.

June 30, 201( December 31, 20C

Related secure: Related secur
($ in millions) Assets debt (a) Assets debt (a)
Loans hel-for-sale $ 2,64¢ $ 74¢ $ 1,42( $ 454
Mortgage assets hefor-investment and lending receivab 2,832 2,50¢ 1,94¢ 1,67:
Retail automotive finance receivables 22,43¢ 19,24¢ 19,20: 13,591
Wholesale automotive finance receivak 12,09¢ 6,74¢ 16,35: 8,56¢
Investment securitie 39 — 63 —
Investment in operating leases, 5,36¢ 3,711 13,32 9,20¢
Real estate investments and other as 3,94( 4,141 4,46¢ 5,12¢
Ally Bank (c) 19,15t 4,971 24,27¢ 10,13:
Total $68,50¢ $ 42,07¢ $ 81,05 $ 48,75¢

(@) Included as part of secured debt are repurciigig®@ments of $979 million and $26 million at J80e2010, and December 31, 2009, respectivelyetdsapproximating the value of
the debt were pledged as collateral for both peti

(b) Included as part of retail automotive finance reables are $13.3 billion of assets and dbillion of secured debt related to Ally Bar

(c) Ally Bank has an advance agreement with the Fedtwaie Loan Bank of Pittsburgh (FHLB) and accesthéoFederal Reserve Bank Discount Window. Ally Baakl assets pledg
and restricted as collateral to the FHLB and Fddeeaerve Bank totaling $15.2 billion and $22.4idl as of June 30, 2010, and December 31, 20@pgestively. Furthermore, unc
the advance agreement, the FHLB has a blankebhiezertain Ally Bank assets including approximatelyl..6 billion and $11.5 billion in real estateateld finance receivables and
loans and $3.2 billion and $2.7 billion in othesets as of June 30, 2010, and December 31, 20§f®&ctively. Availability under these programs isgelly only for the operations
Ally Bank and cannot be used to fund the operat@mrigbilities of Ally or its subsidiaries

Funding Facilities

The following table highlights credit capacity un@eir secured and unsecured funding facilitiesfalkioe 30, 2010, and
December 31, 2009. We utilize both committed ancbommitted credit facilities. The financial instits providing the uncommitted
facilities are not legally obligated to advancedsmnder them. The amounts in the outstanding aoiarthe table below are generally
included on our Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Total capacity Unused capacity (a) Outstanding
June 30 Dec 31 June 30 Dec 31
June 30, Dec 31,

(% in billions) 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Committed unsecure

Automotive Finance operatiol $ 0& $ 08 % 01 % 01 $ 07 $ 07
Committed secure

Automotive Finance operations and ot 29.€ 36.C 17.2 12.2 12.7 23.¢

Mortgage operation 1.7 2.1 0.3 0.4 1.4 1.7
Total committed facilitie: 32.4 38.¢ 17.€ 12.7 14.¢ 26.2
Uncommitted unsecure

Automotive Finance operatiol 1.1 0.¢ 0.2 0.1 0.¢ 0.8
Uncommitted secure

Automotive Finance operations ( 34 5.7 3.1 2.C 0.3 3.7

Mortgage operations (c) (i 7.1 8.€ 2.1 1.9 5.C 6.7
Total uncommitted facilitie 11.€ 15.2 5.4 4.C 6.2 11.2
Total facilities 44.C 54.1 23.C 16.7 21.C 37.4
Whole-loan forward flow agreements ( 1kt 9.4 1.E 9.4 — —
Total commitment: $ 455 $ 63 $ 245t $ 261 $ 21.C $ 374

(@) Funding for committed secured facilities is gely available on request as excess collatesidles in certain facilities or to the extent incesmtal collateral is available and
contributed to the facilitie:

(b) Included $3.0 billion and $5.3 billion of cajtgdrom Federal Reserve Bank advances with $dl@biand $3.4 billion outstanding as of June 301@, and December 31, 2009,
respectively

(c) Included $0.8 billion and $2.5 billion of cajgdfrom Federal Reserve Bank advances with $0lbiand $1.6 billion outstanding as of June 301@, and December 31, 2009,
respectively

d) Included $5.7 billion and $5.9 billion of capacftpm FHLB advances with $4.5 billion and $5.1 ltli outstanding as of June 30, 2010, and Decembe&08D, respectively

e) Represents commitments of financial institutionpiochase U.S. automotive retail assets. One sktherangements expired in June 2010 while the ett@res in October 201
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14. Regulatory Capital

As a bank holding company, we and our wholly owhadking subsidiary, Ally Bank, are subject to risksed capital and leverage
guidelines by federal regulators that require thatcapital-to-assets ratios meet certain minimtandards. Failure to meet minimum capital
requirements can initiate certain mandatory anaipbsadditional discretionary action by regulatthat, if undertaken, could have a direct
material effect on our consolidated financial staats. Under capital adequacy guidelines and thaatory framework for prompt correcti
action, we must meet specific capital guidelineg thvolve quantitative measures of our assetscandin off-balance sheet items as
calculated under regulatory accounting practices.dpital amounts and classifications are alsgestibo qualitative judgments by the
regulators about components, risk-weightings, ahdrdactors.

The risk-based capital ratio is determined by allimg assets and specified off-balance sheet fiahimstruments into several broad risk
categories with higher levels of capital being iieeplifor the categories perceived as representiegter risk. Under the guidelines, total
capital is divided into two tiers: Tier 1 capitaldaTier 2 capital. Tier 1 capital generally consist common equity, minority interests, and
qualifying preferred stock (including fixed-ratensulative preferred stock issued and sold to theduey) less goodwill and other
adjustments. Tier 2 capital generally consistsrefgrred stock not qualifying as Tier 1 capitahited amounts of subordinated debt and the
allowance for loan losses, and other adjustmerits.aimount of Tier 2 capital may not exceed the arhofiTier 1 capital.

Total riskbased capital is the sum of Tier 1 capital and Zieapital. Under the guidelines, banking orgamniret are required to mainte
a minimum Total risk-based capital ratio (totalitalto risk-weighted assets) of 8% and a Tiersk-thased capital ratio of 4%.

The federal banking regulators also establishednmiim leverage ratio guidelines. The leverage riatibefined as Tier 1 capital divided
by adjusted average total assets (which reflectsaiatients for disallowed goodwill and certain intteyassets). The minimum Tier 1 lever
ratio is 3% or 4% depending on factors specifiethearegulations.

A banking institution is considered “well-capitaid’ when its Total risk-based capital ratio equalexceeds 10% and its Tier 1 risk-
based capital ratio equals or exceeds 6% unlegscsub regulatory directive to maintain higher italjpevels and for insured depository
institutions, a leverage ratio that equals or estsds.

In conjunction with the conclusion of the SupemisiCapital Assessment Program (S-CAP), the baniegglators developed an
additional measure of capital called “Tier 1 comfhdefined as Tier 1 capital less noncommon elemimrtisiding qualified perpetual
preferred stock, qualifying minority interest inbsidiaries and qualifying trust preferred secusitie

On July 21, 2008, Ally, FIM Holdings, IB Finance lding Company, LLC, Ally Bank, and the FDIC enteiiatb a Capital and Liquidity
Maintenance Agreement (CLMA). The CLMA requiresitapat Ally Bank to be maintained at a level sulcht Ally Bank's leverage ratio is
at least 11% for a three-year period and thereaterain “well-capitalized.” For this purpose, tegerage ratio is determined in accordance
with the FDIC's regulations related to capital meaimance.

Additionally, on May 21, 2009, the Federal ReséBeard (FRB) granted Ally Bank an expanded exempftiom Section 23A of the
Federal Reserve Act. The exemption enables AllyjkBarmake certain extensions of credit for the pase of GM vehicles or vehicles
floorplanned by Ally. The exemption requires Alty maintain a Total risk-based capital ratio of 1844 Ally Bank to maintain a Tier 1
leverage ratio of 15%.

The minimum risk-based capital requirements adoptethe federal banking agencies follow the Capgiatord of the Basel Committee
on Banking Supervision. Currently all U.S. banks subject to the Basel | capital rules. The Basghfittee issued Basel Il Capital Rules,
and the U.S. regulators issued companion rulescaiybé to certain U.S.-domiciled institutions. Atipalifies as a “mandatory” bank holding
company that must comply with the U.S. Basel lesulThe Basel Committee on Banking Supervisioregsuditional guidance regarding
market risk capital rules and Basel Il capital suler securitizations. U.S. banking regulators haweyet issued any companion guidance. We
continue to monitor developments with respect tedB#l requirements and are working to ensure ssfakexecution within the required
time.
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On January 28, 2010, the federal banking agenciBkshed a final rule amending the risk-based ehpuidelines associated with the
implementation of ASU 2009-16 and ASU 2009-17. Tide permits banking organizations to phase irefffiects of the consolidation on risk-
weighted assets and also makes provisions asseitethe impact of allowance for loan and leasssés effects on Tier 2 capital during
2010. Ally elected to utilize this optional phaseapproach. Refer to Note 1 for additional inforimatrelated to the adoption of ASU 2008-
and ASU 2009-17.

The following table summarizes our capital ratios.

June 30, 2010 December 31, 20C Ca\é)\étezillizet
Required
($ in millions) Amount  Ratio Amount Ratio Minimum Minimum
Risk-based capite
Tier 1 (to risk-weighted asset:
Ally Financial Inc. $22,38¢ 1531% $ 22,39 14.1%% 4.00% 6.00%
Ally Bank 8,172 20.2'% 7,76¢ 20.85% (@) 6.00%
Total (to risl-weighted assett
Ally Financial Inc. $24,62¢ 16.8% $ 24,62 15.55%  15.00% (b 10.00%
Ally Bank 8,68( 21.51% 8,231 22.1% @) 10.00%
Tier 1 leverage (to adjusted average asset:
Ally Financial Inc. 3.00—
$22,38¢ 126% $ 22,39¢ 12.7(% 4.00% (d)
Ally Bank 8,17 15.9% 7,76¢ 15.42%  15.00% (a 5.00%
Tier 1 common (to ris-weighted assett
Ally Financial Inc. $ 766¢ 52% $ 7,67¢ 4.85% n/a n/a
Ally Bank n/a n/a n/e n/e n/a n/a

n/a = not applicable

(@) Ally Bank, in accordance with the FRB exemptfoom Section 23A, is required to maintain a Tideterage ratio of 15%. Ally Bank is also requitednaintain well-capitalized
levels for Tier 1 ris-based capital and total r-based ratios pursuant to the CLV

(b) Ally, in accordance with the FRB exemption from @t 23A, is required to maintain a Total 1-based capital ratio of 159

(c) Federal regulatory reporting guidelines requiredaleulation of adjusted average assets usinglya aeérage methodology. We currently calculate gisicombination of monthly al
daily average methodologies. We are in the prooessodifying information systems to address thdydaverage requiremer

(d) There is no Tier 1 leverage component in the didimiof a wel-capitalized bank holding compar

At June 30, 2010, Ally and Ally Bank met all reqadrminimum ratios and exceeded “well-capitalizestjuirements under the federal
regulatory agencies’ definitions as summarizedhatable above.

15. Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

We enter into interest rate and foreign currencgsy futures, forwards, options, swaptions, andicdefault swaps in connection with
our market risk management activities. Derivativiliuments are used to manage interest rate teikngeto specific groups of assets and
liabilities, including investment securities, lodmedd-for-sale, mortgage servicing rights, debt daposits. In addition, we use foreign
exchange contracts to mitigate foreign currendy associated with foreign-currencggnominated debt and foreign exchange transaciiaun
primary objective for utilizing derivative finandimstruments is to manage market risk volatilissaciated with interest rate and foreign
currency risks related to the assets and liatslitsieour automotive finance and mortgage operations

Interest Rate Risk

We execute interest rate swaps to modify our exoiuinterest rate risk by converting certain dixate instruments to a variable rate.
We apply hedge accounting for certain derivativariments used to hedge fixed-rate debt. We moaitomix of fixed- and variable-rate
debt in relationship to the rate profile of ouretssWhen it is cost effective to do so, we maeimito interest rate swaps to achieve our
desired mix of fixed- and variable-rate debt. Oualifying accounting hedges consist of hedgesxadirate debt obligations in which
receive-fixed swaps are designated as hedges dfisgixed-rate debt obligations.
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We enter into economic hedges to mitigate expofurthe following categories:

MSRs and retained interes — Our MSRs and retained interest portfolios anmeegally subject to loss in value when mortgage
rates decline. Declining mortgage rates generalylt in an increase in refinancing activity thatreases prepayments and resul
a decline in the value of MSRs and retained interd® mitigate the impact of this risk, we maintaiportfolio of financial
instruments, primarily derivatives that increaseafue when interest rates decline. The primargabje is to minimize the overall
risk of loss in the value of mortgage servicinghtigdue to the change in fair value caused byéasteate changes and their
interrelated impact to prepaymer

We use a multitude of derivative instruments to aggnthe interest rate risk related to MSRs andnedanterests. They
include, but are not limited to, interest rate fagicontracts, call or put options on U.S. Treasuswaptions, MBS futures,
U.S. Treasury futures, interest rate swaps, inteads floors, and interest rate caps. While wadibutilize nonderivative
instruments (e.g., U.S. Treasuries) to hedge thiglio, we utilized them in the past and mayimélthem again in the future. We
monitor and actively manage our risk on a dailyidand therefore trading volume can be large.

Mortgage loan commitments and mortgage and autometioans hel-for-sale — We are exposed to interest rate risk from the
time an interest rate lock commitment (IRLC) is mauhtil the time the mortgage loan is sold. Charnigésterest rates impact the
market price for our loans; as market interestsrdtline, the value of existing IRLCs and loanisglffer-sale go up and vice versa.
Our primary objective in risk management activitielated to IRLCs and mortgage and automotive |betd-for-sale is to
eliminate or greatly reduce any interest rate ais&ociated with these iten

The primary derivative instrument we use to accashphis objective for mortgage loans and IRLCkoisvard sales of
mortgage-backed securities, primarily Fannie MaEreddie Mac to-be-announced securities. Thesmimsints typically are
entered into at the time the IRLC is made. The&alithe forward sales contracts moves in the ampdgection of the value of o
IRLCs and mortgage loans held-for-sale. We alsootiser derivatives, such as interest rate swapgrap and futures, to hedge
automotive loans held-for-sale and certain portiointhe mortgage portfolio. Nonderivative instrurteemay also be periodically
used to economically hedge the mortgage portfelich as short positions on U.S. Treasuries. Wetoroand actively manage our
risk on a daily basis. We do not apply hedge actiogrio our derivative portfolio held to economigahedge the IRLCs and
mortgage and automotive loans held-for-sale.

Debt — As part of our previous on-balance sheet sdzatibns and/or secured aggregation facilitiestadeinterest rate swaps or
interest rate caps were included within consolida@&riable interest entities; these swaps or cagse @enerally required to meet
certain rating agency requirements or were requiethe facility lender or provider. The intereata swaps and/or caps are
generally entered into when the debt is issuedyraiagly, current trading activity on this partiaulderivative portfolio is minimal.
Additionally, effective January 1, 2010, the detives that were hedging off-balance sheet secatitin activities are now hedging
these securitizations as on-balance sheet seatiotizactivities. We consolidated the off-balankeet securitizations on

January 1, 2010, due to accounting principle chaiagsociated with ASU 2009-16 and ASU 2aJd9-Refer to Note 1 for addition
information related to the recent adopti

With the exception of a portion of our fixed-ratebd, we do not apply hedge accounting to our daviegortfolio held to
economically hedge our debt portfolio. Typicallyetsignificant terms of the interest rate swapshtte significant terms of the
underlying debt resulting in an effective convensid the rate of the related debt.

Other — We enter into futures, options, swaptions, amdlit default swaps to economically hedge our ixedfversus variable
interest rate exposur

Foreign Currency Risk

We enter into derivative financial instrument cawts to hedge exposure to variability in cash floglated to foreign currency financial
instruments. Currency swaps and forwards are ushddge foreign exchange exposure on foreign-coyrdenominated debt by converting
the funding currency to the same currency of tlsetssbeing financed.
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Similar to our interest rate hedges, the swapganerally entered into or traded concurrent withdkbt issuance with the terms of the swap
matching the terms of the underlying debt.

Our non-U.S. subsidiaries maintain both assetdiahiiities in local currencies; these local curcis are generally the subsidiaries’
functional currencies for accounting purposes. igoreurrency exchange rate gains and losses ahiea e assets or liabilities of our
subsidiaries are denominated in currencies thégrdifom its functional currency. In addition, ceguity is impacted by the cumulative
translation adjustments resulting from the tramstadf foreign subsidiary results; this impactédlected in our other comprehensive income
(loss). We enter into foreign currency forwardshnéikternal counterparties to hedge foreign exchamgesure on our net investments in
foreign subsidiaries. Our net investment hedgesearerded at fair value with changes recorded tierotomprehensive income (loss) with the
exception of the spot to forward difference thakisorded in current period earnings. The net déxig gain or loss remains in other
comprehensive income (loss) until earnings are atgehby the sale or the liquidation of the asseddbreign operation.

In addition, we have a centralized lending progtarmanage liquidity for all of our subsidiary buséses. Foreign-currency-denominated
loan agreements are executed with our foreign digs@s in their local currencies. We evaluatefooeign currency exposure resulting from
intercompany lending and manage our currency piglogure by entering into foreign currency derivesiwith external counterparties. Our
foreign currency derivatives are recorded at falue with changes recorded as income offsettingyélies and losses on the hedged foreign
currency transactions.

With limited exceptions, we elected not to treat &areign currency derivatives as hedges for actingrpurposes principally because the
changes in the fair values of the foreign curreswgps are substantially offset by the foreign awyerevaluation gains and losses of the
underlying assets and liabilities.

Credit Risk

Derivative financial instruments contain an elenafndredit risk if counterparties are unable to tibe terms of the agreements. Credit
risk associated with derivative financial instrurteeis measured as the net replacement cost sHoultbtinterparties that owe us under the
contract completely fail to perform under the temhghose contracts, assuming no recoveries oflyidg collateral as measured by the
market value of the derivative financial instrument

To further mitigate the risk of counterparty defaule maintain collateral agreements with cert@inrterparties. The agreements require
both parties to maintain collateral in the eveset féir values of the derivative financial instrurteemeet established thresholds. In the event
that either party defaults on the obligation, thewsed party may seize the collateral. Generally collateral arrangements are bilateral such
that we and the counterparty post collateral fenthlue of their total obligation to each othern@actual terms provide for standard and
customary exchange of collateral based on chamgthe imarket value of the outstanding derivatiid® securing party posts additional
collateral when their obligation rises or removeBateral when it falls. We also have unilaterdlateral agreements whereby we are the only
entity required to post collateral.

We placed collateral totaling $844 million and $hion at June 30, 2010, and December 31, 20@pewively, in accounts maintained
by counterparties. We received cash collateral fcoomterparties totaling $1.3 billion and $432 ioillat June 30, 2010, and
December 31, 2009, respectively. The collateralgaaand received are included on our Consolidatddride Sheet in other assets and
accrued expenses and other liabilities, respegtivelcertain circumstances, we receive or postirsées as collateral with counterparties. We
do not record such collateral received on our clidsied balance sheet unless certain conditionsate

36



Table of Contents

ALLY FINANCIAL INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (unaudit ed)

Balance Sheet Presentation

The following tables summarize the fair value antswf derivative instruments reported on our Codsdéd Balance Sheet. The fair
value amounts are presented on a gross basiggregated by derivatives that are designated aalifyjng as hedging instruments or those
that are not, and are further segregated by typemtfact within those two categories.

Fair value of
derivative contracts in Notional
receivable liability
June 30, 201($ in millions) position (a) position (b) amount
Qualifying accounting hedge
Interest rate risl
Fair value accounting hedg $ 723 $ — $ 16,99:
Foreign exchange ris
Net investment accounting hedc¢ 86 13 2,96¢
Cash flow accounting hedg 10 12¢ 43:
Total foreign exchange ris 96 142 3,39¢
Total qualifying accounting hedg 81¢ 14z 20,39(
Economic hedge
Interest rate risl
MSRs and retained intere: 3,12¢ 2,27¢ 269,91!
Mortgage loan commitments and mortgage and autemtians hel-for-sale 18¢ 22t 42,06¢
Debt 262 251 30,38¢
Other 74 63 11,88t
Total interest rate ris 3,65¢ 2,81z 354,25
Foreign exchange ris 37E 223 15,66¢
Total economic hedge 4,02¢ 3,03¢ 369,92!
Total derivatives $ 4,84¢ $ 3,17¢ $390,31.

(@) Reported as other assets on the Consolidated Bafimeet. Includes accrued interest of $273 mil
(b) Reported as accrued expenses and other liabilitigke Consolidated Balance Sheet. Includes acénieast of $42 million
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Fair value of
derivative contracts i
receivable liability Notional
December 31, 20C($ in millions) position (a position (b amount
Qualifying accounting hedge
Interest rate risl
Fair value accounting hedg $ 47¢ $ 47 $ 16,93¢
Foreign exchange ris
Net investment accounting hedc¢ 10 41 2,41¢
Cash flow accounting hedg — 112 334
Total foreign exchange ris 10 152 2,74¢
Total qualifying accounting hedg 48¢ 20C 19,68¢
Economic hedge
Interest rate risl
MSRs and retained intere: 80¢& 81¢€ 153,81¢
Mortgage loan commitments and mortgage and autemtians hel-for-sale 22t 132 45,47(
Off-balance sheet securitization activit 13¢ — 4,44(
Debt 39z 54¢ 53,50:
Other 50 24 12,62¢
Total interest rate ris 1,611 1,52C 269,85¢
Foreign exchange ris 55E 17¢% 22,92%
Total economic hedge 2,16¢ 1,69t 292,78!
Total derivatives $ 2,65¢ $ 1,89 $312,47:

(a) Reported as other assets on the Consolidated Bagimeet. Includes accrued interest of $314 mil
(b) Reported as accrued expenses and other liabititidhe Consolidated Balance Sheet. Includes acéntedkst of $91 million

38



Table of Contents

ALLY FINANCIAL INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (unaudit ed)

Statement of Income Presentation
The following table summarizes the location and ants of gains and losses reported in our ConseliiStatement of Income on
derivative instruments.

Three months endec Six months endec
June 30, June 30,
(% in millions) 2010 2009 2010 2009
Qualifying accounting hedge
Gain (loss) recognized in earnings on derivat
Interest rate contrac
Interest on lon-term debt $ 31€ $ (180 $ 397 $ (@377
(Loss) gain recognized in earnings on hedged i
Interest rate contrac
Interest on lon-term deb! (28E) 15E (347) 32C
Total qualifying accounting hedg 31 (25 50 (57
Economic hedge
Gain (loss) recognized in earnings on derivat
Interest rate contrac

Servicing asset valuation and hedge activities 727 (902 79C (882)

Loss on mortgage and automotive loans, (257) (40 (401) (269)

Other loss on investments, 1 — @) — (8)

Other income, net of loss 3 48 (50) 36

Other operating expens (2) (14 (6) (16)

Total interest rate contrac 471 (915) 333 (1,139
Foreign exchange contracts

Interest on lon-term debt 18 (8) (14) 8

Other income, net of loss (5) 10 (8) (217)

Total foreign exchange contras 13 2 (22) (219

Gain (loss) recognized in earnings on derivat $ 51E $ (939 $ 361 $ (1,415

(@) Amqunlglrepresents the difference between thegbs in the fair values of the currency hedgephtte revaluation of the related foreign denortedadebt or foreign denominated

recelvable

16. Income Taxes

Effective June 30, 2009, we converted (the Coneajdrom a limited liability company (LLC) treatex a pass-through entity for
U.S. federal income tax purposes to a corporafisra result of the Conversion, we became subjecbtporate U.S. federal, state, and local
taxes beginning in the third quarter of 2009. Duthts change in tax status as of June 30, 2008ddiional net deferred tax liability of
$1.2 billion was established through income taxegyge from continuing operations.

Prior to the Conversion, certain U.S. entities wemass-through entities for U.S. federal incomepiasposes. U.S. federal, state, and local
income taxes were generally not provided for thergtéies as they were not taxable entities exaeptfiew local jurisdictions that tax LLCs or
partnerships. LLC members were required to repait share of our taxable income on their respedticome tax returns. In addition, our
banking, insurance, and foreign subsidiaries gdiges@re and continue to be corporations that atgext to, and required to provide for U.S.
and foreign income taxes. The Conversion did nahgke the tax status of these subsidiaries.
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We recognized total income tax expense from coit@operations of $33 million and $69 million duithe three months and six
months ended June 30, 2010, respectively, anditatame tax expense from continuing operationslof illion and $972 million during the
three months and six months ended June 30, 2088 cBvely. A reconciliation of the statutory Uf€deral income tax rate to our effective
income tax rate for continuing operations is shawthe following table.

Three months endec Six months endec
June 30, June 30,
2010 2009 2010 2009
Statutory U.S. federal tax re 35.(% 35.(% 35.(% 35.(%
Change in tax rate resulting frc
Effect of valuation allowance chan (34.5) (0.9 (30.7) (0.5)
Foreign capital los 12.1 — 8.€ —
Active Finance Exceptic-expiration (9.9 — 0.2 —
Taxes on unremitted earnings of subsidia 5.¢ — 0.5 —
Foreign income tax rate different (2.9 (0.6) 1.0 0.3
State and local income taxes, net of federal inctardenefit (0.5 1.2 0.7 0.¢
Tax-exempt incomq (0.9 0.1 (0.7) 0.2
Change in tax statt — (76.7) — (53.79)
LLC results not subject to federal or state incdenes — (25.9 — (24.])
Other, ne 2.C (1.4 (1.5 (1.7)
Effective tax rate 7.4% (69.2)% 11.(% (43.0%

The valuation allowances that were previously distiaéd against our domestic net deferred tax assetertain international net
deferred tax assets declined by approximately $d@fbn and $701 million during the three monthsiaix months ended June 30, 2010,
respectively, as a result of profitability of oyseyations in various tax jurisdictions in combioatiwith an election made by the company to
treat the U.S. consumer property and casualty &mag business disposition as an asset sale vessoiskasale for U.S. tax purposes. This
election resulted in a smaller ordinary loss thendapital loss that was previously recorded.

The amount of unrecognized tax benefits that,abgmized, would impact our effective tax rate ipragimately $144 million as of
June 30, 2010, compared to $157 million at DecerBheR009. We do not expect a significant changdeénunrecognized tax benefits within
the next 12 months.
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17. Related Party Transactions

The related party activities represent transactieitts GM, FIM Holdings, and affiliated companiesMGnd FIM Holdings have both a
direct and indirect ownership interest in Ally.

Balance Sheet
A summary of the balance sheet effect of transastwith GM, FIM Holdings, and affiliated companfedows.

(% in millions) June 30, 201 December 31, 20(
Assets
Available-for-sale investment in as-backed securit— GM (a) $ 8 $ 20
Securec
Finance receivables and loans, net of unearnedna
Wholesale automotive financir— GM (b) 291 28C
Term loans to deale— GM (b) 72 71
Lending receivable— affiliates of FIM Holdings 65 54
Investment in operating leases, — GM (c) 63 69
Notes receivable from GM (« 354 884
Other asset
Other— GM 52 102
Total securet 897 1,46(
Unsecurec
Notes receivable from GM (« 11 27
Other asset
Subvention receivables (rate and residual sup— GM 152 16E
Lease pu-ahead receivab— GM 21 21
Other— GM 18 26
Total unsecure 203 23¢
Liabilities
Unsecured det
Notes payable to G $ 25 $ 154
Accrued expenses and other liabilit
Wholesale payabl— GM 28¢ 161
Other payable— GM 61 18

(@) In November 2006, Ally retained an investmenainote secured by operating lease assets treststerGM. As part of the transfer, Ally providedhate to a trust, a wholly owned
subsidiary of GM. The note was classified in investt securities on the Consolidated Balance S

(b) Represents wholesale financing and term loarettain dealerships wholly owned by GM or in whiM has an interest. The loans are generally seldoy the underlying vehicles
or assets of the dealershi

c) Primarily represents buildings classified as opegalease assets that are leased tc-affiliated entities. These leases are secured éyitiuerlying asset

) Represents wholesale financing we provide to B ehicles, parts, and accessories in which @#ins title while consigned to us or dealers prityan Italy in 2010 and in the
United Kingdom and Italy in 2009. The financingG@® remains outstanding until the title is transéerto Ally or the dealers. The amount of finangimgvided to GM under this
arrangement varies based on inventory levels. Tlese are secured by the underlying vehicles loerodssets (except loans relating to parts andsaedes in Italy)
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Statement of Income
A summary of the statement of income effect ofseamions with GM, FIM Holdings, and affiliated coarpes follows.

Three months endec Six months endec
June 30, June 30,

(% in millions) 2010 2009 2010 2009
Net financing revenue
GM and affiliates lease residual value support —thldmerican

operations (a $ (6) $ 56 $ 1 $ 14C
GM and affiliates rate suppc— North American operatior 15¢ 194 32t 383
Wholesale subvention and service fees from 40 59 86 11€
Interest earned on wholesale automotive finan — 5 2 10
Interest earned on term loans to dea — 1 — 1
Interest expense on loans with C @ (11 4 (22)
Interest on notes receivable from GM and affilic 4) 13 5 34
Interest on wholesale settlements 44 34 90 55
Interest income on loans with FIM Holdings affigat ne: 1 1 2 2
Consumer lease payments from GM 3 21 15 60
Other revenue
Insurance premiums earned from ( 40 43 80 83
Service fees on transactions with ( 2 1 3 4
Revenues from Gl-leased properties, n 2 3 4 5
Other (d) — (1) (1) (5)
Servicing fees
U.S. automotive operating leases 1 7 2 18
Expense
Off-lease vehicle selling expense reimbursemer 4 (7 (8) (15
Payments to GM for services, rent, and marketipgeages (g 34 33 67 51

(@) Represents total amount of residual support alkdsharing (incurred) earned under the residual stmd risl-sharing programs

(b) The settlement terms related to the wholesale &imanof certain GM products are at shipment datetie extent that wholesale settlements with GMnaaele before the expiration
transit, we receive interest from Gl

(c) GM sponsors lease pull-ahead programs wherebgumers are encouraged to terminate lease cangady in conjunction with the acquisition of asn€M vehicle with the
customer’s remaining payment obligation waived. &ntain programs, GM compensates us for the waiegthents adjusted based on remarketing resultiassd with the
underlying vehicle

(d) Includes income or (expense) related to derivatiarsactions that we enter into with GM as couraayp

(e) Represents servicing income related to automoéaeds distributed as a dividend to GM on NovemBeRQ06.

(f) An agreement with GM provides for the reimbursentdrtertain selling expenses incurred by us otlease vehicles sold by GM at aucti

(@) We reimburse GM for certain services providedis. This amount includes rental payments forpsimary executive and administrative offices locdaite the Renaissance Center in
Detroit, Michigan, and exclusivity and royalty fe:
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Statement of Changes in Equity

A summary of the changes to the statement of ctsimgequity related to transactions with GM, FIMI#ings, and affiliated companies
follows.

Six months ende!

Year ended
($ in millions) June 30, 2010 December 31, 20(
Equity
Capital contributions received ( $ — $ 1,28(C
Dividends to shareholders/members 7 392
Preferred interest dividen— GM 51 12¢
Other (¢) (74) —

(@) OnJanuary 16, 2009, we completed a $1.25 billights offering pursuant to which we issued addiiccommon membership interests to FIM Holdings arsdibsidiary of GM

(b) Pursuant to an operating agreement, certatuoghareholders were permitted distributions tptha taxes they incurred from ownership of thely Anterests prior to our conversion
from a tax partnership to a corporation. In Mar€i®@2, we executed a transaction that had 2008 faortiag implications for our shareholders. In actzorce with the operating
agreement, the approval of both our Ally Board @felbtors and the Treasury was obtained in advamicthé payment of tax distributions to our shardead. In 2010, the amount
distributed to GM was $7 million. This represengdaccrual for GM tax settlements and refunds veckielated to tax periods prior to the November2®®6, sale by GM of a 51%
interest in Ally (Sale Transactions). Amounts disited to GM and FIM Holdings were $220 million adti73 million, respectively, for the year ended &mber 31, 2009. Included
in the 2009 amount is $55 million of remittances3l for tax settlements and refunds received rel&teax periods prior to the Sale Transactionsegsired by the terms of the
Purchase and Sale Agreement between GM and FIMit{ysc

(c) Represents a reduction of the estimated payammtied for tax distributions as a result of tmpletion of the GMAC LLC U.S. Return of Partnegshicome for the tax period
January 1, 2009, through June 30, 2(

GM, GM dealers, and GM-related employees compasgraficant portion of our customer base, and olab@l Automotive Services
operations are highly dependent on GM productiahsaies volume. As a result, a significant advehsmge in GM’s business, including
significant adverse changes in GM’s liquidity pmsitand access to the capital markets, the praalucti sale of GM vehicles, the quality or
resale value of GM vehicles, the use of GM markgtitentives, GM’s relationships with its key sup, GM'’s relationship with the United
Auto Workers and other labor unions, and otherdfiacimpacting GM or its employees could have aiigant adverse effect on our
profitability and financial condition.

We provide vehicle financing through purchasestdit automotive and lease contracts with retastamers of primarily GM dealers. \
also finance the purchase of new and used vehigl€M dealers through wholesale financing, extetimofinancing to GM dealers, provide
fleet financing for GM dealers to buy vehicles thiegt or lease to others, provide wholesale velisientory insurance to GM dealers,
provide automotive extended service contracts tiindBM dealers, and offer other services to GM dsealks a result, GM'’s level of
automobile production and sales directly impactsfimancing and leasing volume; the premium revefouavholesale vehicle inventory
insurance; the volume of automotive extended serwantracts; and the profitability and financiahdiion of the GM dealers to whom we
provide wholesale financing, term loans, and ffe®tncing. In addition, the quality of GM vehiclaffects our obligations under automotive
extended service contracts relating to such vehidarther, the resale value of GM vehicles, winiay be impacted by various factors
relating to GM'’s business such as brand imagentimeber of new GM vehicles produced, the numbersefiwehicles remarketed, or
reduction in core brands, affects the remarketioggeds we receive upon the sale of repossessatlegeaind off-lease vehicles at lease
termination.

As of June 30, 2010, we had an estimated $897aomiiti secured credit exposure, which included prilmavholesale vehicle financing
GM-owned dealerships, notes receivable from GM,\afticles leased directly to GM. We further tagagroximately $1.1 billion in unsecul
credit exposure, which included estimates of paysom GM related to residual support and riskrstipagreements. Under the terms of
certain agreements between Ally and GM, Ally hasright to offset certain of its exposures to GMiagt amounts Ally owes to GM.

Retail and Lease Programs

GM may elect to sponsor incentive programs (on bethil contracts and operating leases) by supmpfinancing rates below the
standard market rates at which we purchase retattacts and leases. These marketing incentiveslsoaeferred to as rate support or
subvention. When GM utilizes these marketing ineest they pay us the present value of the diffeedmetween the customer rate and our
standard rate at contract inception, which we daffief recognize as a yield adjustment over theofithe contract.
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GM may also sponsor residual support programsveesyao lower customer monthly payments. Under regidupport programs, the
customer’s contractual residual value is adjustema our standard residual values. In additioneumidk-sharing programs and eligible
contracts, GM shares equally in residual losséiseatime of the vehicle’s disposal to the exteat tiemarketing proceeds are below our
standard residual values (limited to a floor).

For North American lease originations and ballostaif contract originations occurring in the Unitethtes after April 30, 2006, and in
Canada after November 30, 2006, that remaineduwsithfter the consummation of the Sale Transacti®NMsagreed to begin payment of the
present value of the expected residual support dwed at contract origination as opposed to afbetract termination at the time of sale of
the related vehicle. The residual support amountu@®hately owes us is finalized as the leasesallgtterminate. Under the terms of the
residual support program, in cases where the etimas incorrect, GM may be obligated to pay usy@may be obligated to reimburse C

Based on the June 30, 2010, outstanding North Araemperating lease and retail balloon portfolibs,additional maximum contractual
amount that could be paid by GM under the residupport programs is approximately $802 million aralld be paid only in the unlikely
event that the proceeds from the entire portfolitease assets were lower than both the contractsalual value and our standard residual
rates.

Based on the June 30, 2010, outstanding North Araemperating lease portfolio, the maximum contraichmount that could be paid
under the risk-sharing arrangements is approxim&@87 million and would be paid only in the unlikevent that the proceeds from all
outstanding lease vehicles were lower than oudstahresidual rates and no higher than the comibask-sharing floor.

Retail and lease contracts acquired by us thatidecl rate and residual subvention from GM, paydbktly or indirectly to GM dealers
as a percentage of total new retail and lease acistacquired, were as follows.

Six months endec

June 30,
2010 2009
GM and affiliates subvented contracts acqu
North American operatior 52% 72%
International operations (. 37% 64%
(@) Represents subvention for continuing operationg.c
Other

We entered into various services agreements withtk&are designed to document and maintain owetiand historical relationship.
We are required to pay GM fees in connection wétain of these agreements related to our finanafrigM consumers and dealers in cer
parts of the world.

GM also provides payment guarantees on certain cagial assets we have outstanding with certainltharty customers. As of
June 30, 2010, and December 31, 2009, commerdightibns guaranteed by GM were $58 million and $i@iBion, respectively.
Additionally, GM is bound by repurchase obligatidagepurchase new vehicle inventory under cedaaumstances, such as dealer franc
termination.

18. Fair Value

Fair Value Measurements

For purposes of this disclosure, fair value ismedi as the price that would be received to sedismet or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participanth@imeasurement date. Fair value should be bast#te@ssumptions market participants
would use when pricing an asset or liability anthleshes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes information used to develop those
assumptions. The fair value hierarchy gives thédsg priority to quoted prices available in activarkets (i.e., observable inputs) and the
lowest priority to data lacking transparency (iumpbservable inputs). Additionally, entities agquired to consider all aspects of
nonperformance risk, including the entity’s ownditestanding, when measuring the fair value ofahility.
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A three-level hierarchy is to be used when meaguaimd disclosing fair value. An instrument’s catégtion within the fair value
hierarchy is based on the lowest level of signifidaput to its valuation. The following is a deigtion of the three hierarchy levels:

Level 1 Inputs are quoted prices in active markatédentical assets or liabilities as of the meament date. Additionally, the entity

must have the ability to access the active madget,the quoted prices cannot be adjusted by tlity .

Level 2 Inputs are other than quoted prices inaludihin Level 1 that are observable for the assdiability, either directly or

indirectly. Level 2 inputs include quoted pricesattive markets for similar assets or liabilitigapted prices in inactive
markets for identical or similar assets or liak@ht or inputs that are observable or can be coratbd by observable market
data by correlation or other means for substagttal full term of the assets or liabilitie

Level 3 Unobservable inputs are supported by ldtleo market activity. The unobservable inputsespnt management’s best

assumptions of how market participants would ptieeassets or liabilities. Generally, Level 3 assetd liabilities are valued
using pricing models, discounted cash flow methodials, or similar techniques that require signiftgadgment or
estimation.

Following are descriptions of the valuation method@es used to measure material assets and liabibt fair value and details of the
valuation models, key inputs to those models, aguificant assumptions utilized:

Trading securities — Trading securities are recorded at fair valug miay be asset- or mortgabaeked securities (including sen
and subordinated interests) and may be investrmradegnoninvestment grade, or unrated securitiesb¥ge our valuation of
trading securities on observable market prices vevailable; however, observable market prices nwypa available for a
significant portion of these assets due to cuiitkguidity in the markets. When observable marggtes are not available,
valuations are primarily based on internally depel discounted cash flow models (an income appjdheahuse assumptions
consistent with current market conditions. The a&tibn considers recent market transactions, expegigvith similar securities,
current business conditions, and analysis of tligetying collateral, as available. To estimate déshis, we utilize various
significant assumptions including market observapeits (e.g., forward interest rates) and intdyna@éveloped inputs

(e.g., prepayment speeds, delinquency levels, atitdosses). We classified 64% and 94% of théitiasecurities reported at fair
value as Level 3 at June 30, 2010, and Decembe&2(BB, respectively. Trading securities accountlfdrand 2% of all assets
reported at fair value at June 30, 2010, and DeeeRb, 2009, respectivel

Available-for-sale securities — Available-forsale securities are carried at fair value primasdged on observable market price
observable market prices are not available, ouratadns are based on internally developed discducdsh flow models (an income
approach) that use a market-based discount rateaarsider recent market transactions, experienttesimilar securities, current
business conditions, and analysis of the underlgoigteral, as available. To estimate cash flowesare required to utilize various
significant assumptions including market observatypeits (e.g., forward interest rates) and intdyndeveloped inputs (including
prepayment speeds, delinquency levels, and crestiel). We classified less than 1% of the availflsale securities reported at
fair value as Level 3 at both June 30, 2010, anckBwer 31, 2009. Available-for-sale securities aotdor 42% and 37% of all
assets reported at fair value at June 30, 2010Dawrdmber 31, 2009, respective

Loans helcfor-sale — We elected the fair value option for certain tgage loans held-for-sale. The loans elected were
government- and agency-eligible residential loamgléd after July 31, 2009. These loans are pres@ntbe table of recurring fair
value measurements. Refer to the section withsrtbte titledair Value Option of Financial Assets and Finandigbilities for
additional information. The loans not elected unttierfair value option are accounted for at thedowf cost or fair value. The loz
not elected under the fair value option are ondnkcarried at fair value that are accounted fthieatower of cost or fair value. We
classified 21% and 49% of the loans held-for-safmrted at fair value as Level 3 at June 30, 2aa8,December 31, 2009,
respectively. Loans held-for-sale account for 18% 32% of all assets reported at fair value at Bihe€010, and

December 31, 2009, respective
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Approximately 6% and 4% of the total loans helddate carried at fair value are automotive loankiat 30, 2010, and
December 31, 2009, respectively. These automatiaed are presented in the nonrecurring fair valeasurement table. We based
our valuation of automotive loans held-for-salemternally developed discounted cash flow modetsi@ome approach) and
classified all these loans as Level 3. These vialnahodels estimate the exit price we expect teikecin the loan’s principal
market, which depending on characteristics of tam$ may be the wholean market, the securitization market, or comrdifteice:
contained in forward flow agreements. Although Miize and give priority to market observable inputuch as interest rates and
market spreads within these models, we are typicatjuired to utilize internal inputs, such as pigpent speeds, credit losses, and
discount rates. While numerous controls exist tibcEte, corroborate, and validate these intermalits, these internal inputs reqt
the use of judgment and can have a significant @npa the determination of the loan’s value. Aciagty, we classified all
automotive loans held-for-sale as Level 3.

Approximately 94% and 96% of the total loans helddale carried at fair value are mortgage loadsiaé 30, 2010, and
December 31, 2009, respectively. We originate oclpase mortgage loans in the United States thamterd to sell to Fannie Mae,
Freddie Mac, and Ginnie Mae (collectively, the Ages). Mortgage loans held-for-sale are typicatiplpd together and sold into
certain exit markets depending on underlying aiteb of the loan, such as agency eligibility (daicesnly), product type, interest
rate, and credit quality. Two valuation methodoésgare used to determine the fair value of loaitsfoe-sale. The methodology
used depends on the exit market as described below.

Loans valued using observable market prices fontidal or similar assets— This includes all domestic loans that car
sold to the Agencies, which are valued predomiganlpublished forward agency prices. This willcalsclude all nonagenc
domestic loans or international loans where regamgfotiated market prices for the loan pool ewish a counterparty (whic
approximates fair value) or quoted market priceshmilar loans are available. As these valuatimesderived from quoted
market prices, we classify these valuations as IL2¥ue the fair value disclosures. As of June 3M.@, and
December 31, 2009, 83% and 52%, respectively,efribrtgage loans held-for-sale currently beingiedrat fair value were
classified as Level 2.

Loans valued using internal models Fo the extent observable market prices are notablaj we will determine the fair
value of loans held-for-sale using internally depeld valuation models. These valuation models astirtihe exit price we
expect to receive in the loan’s principal marketjeh depending on characteristics of the loan nethke whole-loan or
securitization market. Although we utilize and gprority to market observable inputs such as egerates and market
spreads within these models, we are typically meglio utilize internal inputs, such as prepaynspeeds, credit losses, and
discount rates. While humerous controls exist tibcste, corroborate, and validate these intermalits, the generation of
these internal inputs requires the use of judgrasdtcan have a significant impact on the deternginaif the loan’s fair
value. Accordingly, we classify these valuationd.agel 3 in the fair value disclosures. As of J30e 2010, and
December 31, 2009, 17% and 48%, respectively,efitbrtgage loans held-for-sale currently beingiedrat fair value are
classified as Level 3.

Due to limited sales activity and periodically usebvable prices in certain markets, certain loaaid-for-sale may transfer
between Level 2 and Level 3 in future periods.

. Consumer mortgage finance receivables and loang, afeunearned incom¢ — We elected the fair value option for certain
consumer mortgage finance receivables and loareselHtted loans collateralized on-balance sheetisieation debt in which we
estimated credit reserves pertaining to securitazebts that could have exceeded or already hag@sd our economic exposure.
The elected loans represent a portion of the coasfimance receivable and loans on the ConsolidBsdance Sheet. The balance
that was not elected was reported on the balarest sl the principal amount outstanding, net of@iaffs, allowance for loan
losses, and premiums or discoul

The mortgage loans that collateralized securitiratiebt are legally isolated from us and are beybadeach of our creditors.
The loans are measured at fair value using a piortipproach or an in-use premise. Values of Ideld on an in-use basis may
differ considerably from loans held-for-sale thahde sold in the whole-loan
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market. This difference arises primarily due tolthaidity of the asset- and mortgage-backed séezation market and is evident in
the fact that spreads applied to lower rated assetmortgage-backed securities are consideraldgntihan spreads observed on
senior bonds classes and in the wHobs market. The objective in fair valuing the leand related securitization debt is to acc
properly for our retained economic interest in$beuritizations. As a result of reduced liquiditycapital markets, values of both
these loans and the securitized bonds are expertelvolatile. Since this approach involves the afssignificant unobservable
inputs, we classified all the mortgage loans etkcteder the fair value option as Level 3, as oeJ8@, 2010, and

December 31, 2009. Consumer finance receivableoand accounted for 8% and 4% of all assets regat fair value at

June 30, 2010, and December 31, 2009, respectiRefgr to the section within this note titlEdir Value Option of Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilitior additional information.

. Commercial finance receivables and loans, net ofaamned income— We evaluate our commercial finance receivablesi@aas,
net of unearned income, for impairment . We gehebase the evaluation on the fair value of theanlyihg collateral supporting
the loans when expected to be the sole sourcepayment. When the carrying value exceeds the &irevof the collateral, an
impairment loss is recognized and reflected asrmanuirring fair value measurement. As of June 82025% and 95% of the
impaired commercial finance receivables and loaaiewlassified as Level 2 and Level 3, respectivkéyof December 31, 2009,
6% and 94% of the impaired commercial finance retdles and loans were classified as Level 2 an@lLl®wespectively.
Commercial finance receivables and loans accouote and 4% of all assets reported at fair vaiugdune 30, 2010, and
December 31, 200!

. Mortgage servicing rightc— We typically retain MSRs when we sell assets ihtogecondary market. MSRs currently do not
trade in an active market with observable pricesrafore, we use internally developed discountsti law models (an income
approach) to estimate the fair value of MSRs. Thetsenal valuation models estimate net cash flbased on internal operating
assumptions that we believe would be used by maedmicipants combined with market-based assumgftionloan prepayment
rates, interest rates, and discount rates thatelevie approximate yields required by investorthis asset. Cash flows primarily
include servicing fees, float income, and late fieesach case less operating costs to service#mes] The estimated cash flows are
discounted using an option-adjusted spread-dedismbunt rate. All MSRs were classified as Levat 3une 30, 2010, and
December 31, 2009. MSRs accounted for 10% of aétageported at fair value at both June 30, 2é8i@ December 31, 20C

. Interests retained in financial asset sal— Interests retained in financial asset sales améedaat fair value. The interests retained
are in securitization trusts and deferred purclpgi®es on the sale of whole-loans. Due to inagtiwitthe market, valuations are
based on internally developed discounted cash ifhmalels (an income approach) that use a market-lshseount rate. The
valuation considers recent market transactionsgiagpce with similar assets, current business tiomdi and analysis of the
underlying collateral, as available. To estimatghcBows, we utilize various significant assumpsipimcluding market observable
inputs (e.g., forward interest rates) and intesnaélveloped inputs (e.g., prepayment speeds, dedimzy levels, and credit losses).
All interests retained were classified as Levet 3ume 30, 2010, and December 31, 2009. Interetimed in financial assets sales
accounted for 2% and less than 1% of all assetstegpat fair value at June 30, 2010, and Decerdbe2009, respectivel

. Derivative instruments— We manage risk through our balance of loan prodoaind servicing businesses while using financial
instruments (including derivatives) to manage ridlted specifically to the value of loans held-$ate, loans held-for-investment,
MSRs, foreign currency debt; and we enter intorggkrate swaps to facilitate transactions whegeutiderlying receivables are si
to a nonconsolidated entity. Refer to Note 15 fidiional information regarding the gains and I@ssognized on the fair value
economic hedges within the Consolidated Staterfemcome.

We enter into a variety of derivative financialtimsnents as part of our hedging strategies. Cedfihese derivatives are
exchange traded, such as Eurodollar futures, detravithin highly active dealer markets, such anay to-be-announced
securities. To determine the fair value of thestriments, we utilize the exchange price
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or dealer market price for the particular derivatoontract; therefore, we classified these cordrastlLevel 1. We classified 4% of
the derivative assets and 10% of the derivativlitees reported at fair value as Level 1 at J80e2010. We classified 7% of the
derivative assets and 9% of the derivative liabsireported at fair value as Level 1 at DecemtbefB809.

We also execute over-the-counter derivative cotdratich as interest rate swaps, floors, capsdoos; and swaptions. We
utilize third-party-developed valuation models theg widely accepted in the market to value these-the-counter derivative
contracts. The specific terms of the contract aadket observable inputs (such as interest ratediahweurves and interpolated
volatility assumptions) are entered into the moWés. classified these over-the-counter derivativetreets as Level 2 because all
significant inputs into these models were marketeobable. We classified 90% of the derivative asaatl 85% of the derivative
liabilities reported at fair value as Level 2 ahdiB0, 2010. We classified 77% of the derivativwetsand 73% of the derivative
liabilities reported at fair value as Level 2 atdember 31, 2009.

We also hold certain derivative contracts thatsamectured specifically to meet a particular hedgibjective. These derivative
contracts often are utilized to hedge risks inhienathin certain on-balance sheet securitizatidmshedge risks on particular bond
classes or securitization collateral, the deriv@siwnotional amount is often indexed to the hedtgd. As a result, we typically are
required to use internally developed prepaymentrapions as an input into the model to forecastriunotional amounts on these
structured derivative contracts. Accordingly, wasslified these derivative contracts as Level 3 c\ssified 6% of the derivative
assets and 5% of the derivative liabilities rembeefair value as Level 3 at June 30, 2010. Wssdfied 16% of the derivative ass
and 18% of the derivative liabilities reported ait f7alue as Level 3 at December 31, 2009.

We are required to consider all aspects of nonpadace risk, including our own credit standing, wineeasuring fair value of
a liability. We consider our credit risk and thedit risk of our counterparties in the valuatiordefivative instruments through a
credit valuation adjustment (CVA). The CVA calciat utilizes our credit default swap spreads amdsibreads of the counterparty.
The CVA calculates the probable or potential futexposure on the derivative under different intea@sl currency exchange rate
environments using simulation tools. For each satioih, a CVA is calculated using either our crelgitault spread or the default
spread of the counterparty and, in both caseqdtential exposure of the simulation.

Derivative assets accounted for 16% and 8% ofsak&s reported at fair value at June 30, 2010P&cegmber 31, 2009,
respectively. Derivative liabilities accounted &8% of all liabilities reported at fair value atth@une 30, 2010, and
December 31, 20009.

. Derivative collateral placed with counterpartic — Collateral in the form of investment securities prenarily carried at fair
value using quoted prices in active markets foilainassets. We classified 100% and 96% of seesrjibsted as collateral as
Level 1 at June 30, 2010, and December 31, 208pentively. Securities posted as collateral acealifdr less than 1% and 2% of
all assets reported at fair value at June 30, 28@December 31, 2009, respectiv

. Repossessed and foreclosed as — Foreclosed on or repossessed assets resultingdeondefaults are carried at the lower of
either cost or fair value less costs to sell amdigeluded in other assets on the ConsolidatednBal&heet. The fair value
disclosures include only assets carried at fane/dss costs to se

The majority of assets acquired due to defaulf@eclosed assets. We revalue foreclosed assetperiodic basis. We
classified properties that are valued by indepenthérd-party appraisals less costs to sell as L2v#/hen thirdparty appraisals a
not obtained, valuations are typically obtainedfribnird-party broker price opinion; however, depagdn the circumstances, the
property list price or other sales price informatinay be used in lieu of a broker price opinions&hon historical experience, we
adjust these values downward to take into accoaimadje and other factors that typically cause theabliquidation value of
foreclosed properties to be less than broker mirion or other price sources. This valuation atjient is necessary to ensure the
valuation ascribed to these assets considers ufagtas and circumstances surrounding the foredasset. As a result of
applying internally developed adjustments to thedtparty-provided valuation of the foreclosed peap, we
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classified these assets as Level 3 in the fairevelsclosures. As of June 30, 2010, we classifé®d and 62% of foreclosed and
repossessed properties carried at fair value lests to sell as Level 2 and Level 3, respectivd/of December 31, 2009, we
classified 51% and 49% of foreclosed and reposdgs®perties carried at fair value less costs licasd_evel 2 and Level 3,
respectively. Repossessed and foreclosed assetsrdor less than 1% of all assets reported awdue at both June 30, 2010,
December 31, 20009.

. On-balance sheet securitization de — We elected the fair value option for certain moggg#oans held-for-investment and on-
balance sheet securitization debt. In particular glected the fair value option on securitizatiebtdssued by domestic on-balance
sheet securitization vehicles as of January 1, 2008hich we estimated credit reserves pertainingecuritized assets could have
exceeded or already had exceeded our economic@epdhe objective in measuring the loans andedlaecuritization debt at fe
value was to approximate our retained economiceésteand economic exposure to the collateral segiihie securitization debt. T
remaining orbalance sheet securitization debt that was noteglamder the fair value option is reported ontthkance sheet at cc
net of premiums or discounts and issuance c

We value securitization debt that was elected @mnsto the fair value option and any economicadtained positions using
market observable prices whenever possible. Therisieation debt is principally in the form of assand mortgage-backed
securities collateralized by the underlying mortgézans held-for-investment. Due to the attribatethe underlying collateral and
current market conditions, observable prices festhinstruments are typically not available. Irséhsituations, we consider
observed transactions as Level 2 inputs in ourdisted cash flow models. Additionally, the discaghtash flow models utilize
other market observable inputs, such as interéest,rand internally derived inputs including prapant speeds, credit losses, and
discount rates. Fair value option elected finansieguritization debt is classified as Level 3 assallt of the reliance on significant
assumptions and estimates for model inputs. Ombalaheet securitization debt accounted for 41%8l diabilities reported at fair
value at both June 30, 2010, and December 31, Z&f@r to the section within this note titlEdir Value Option for Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilitifor a complete description of these securitizations
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Recurring Fair Value

The following tables display the assets and liibg8imeasured at fair value on a recurring basisidting financial instruments elected for
the fair value option. We often economically hetlgefair value change of our assets or liabilitiéth derivatives and other financial
instruments. The tables below display the hedgearagely from the hedged items; therefore, thepaddirectly display the impact of our
risk management activities.

Recurring fair value measurements

June 30, 201($ in millions) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Trading securitie:
U.S. Treasury and federal agenc $ 75 $ — $ — $ 75
Mortgage¢backed
Residentia — 1 46 47
Asse-backec — — 87 87
Total trading securitie 75 1 13z 20¢

Investment securitie
Available-for-sale securitie
Debt securitie:

U.S. Treasury and federal agenc 3,45z 581 — 4,03:
States and political subdivisio — 7 — 7
Foreign governmer 952 273 — 1,22¢
Mortgage¢backed
Residentia — 3,49¢ 2 3,49¢
Asse-backec — 1,692 8 1,70C
Corporate debt securitit — 1,302 — 1,302
Other — 1 — 1
Total debt securitie 4,40¢ 7,352 10 11,76¢
Equity securities 944 — — 944
Total availabl-for-sale securitie 5,34¢ 7,352 10 12,71(
Mortgage loans he-for-sale (a — 4,16 — 4,16
Consumer mortgage finance receivables and loahgsf m@earned income (i — — 2,34¢ 2,34¢
Mortgage servicing right — — 2,98: 2,98:
Other asset
Cash reserve deposits b-for-securitization trust — — 2 2
Interests retained in financial asset si — — 46E 465
Fair value of derivative contracts in receivablsipon
Interest rate contrac 20z 3,90¢ 267 4,37
Foreign currency contrac — 471 — 471
Total fair value of derivative contracts in recdile@position 202 4,37¢ 267 4,84¢
Derivative collateral placed with counterpart 14z — — 14z
Total asset $ 5,767 $15,89¢ $ 6,20¢ $27,87:
Liabilities
Secured dek
Or-balance sheet securitization debt $ — $ — $(2,17¢)  $(2,17¢)

Accrued expenses and other liabilit
Fair value of derivative contracts in liability psn

Interest rate contrac (319) (2,339 (162) (2,817
Foreign currency contrac — (365) — (365)
Total fair value of derivative contracts in liabjliposition (319) (2,699 (162) (3,17¢)
Total liabilities $ (319  $(2,69% $(2,340 $(5,35¢6)

(@) Carried at fair value due to fair value option éitegs.
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Recurring fair value measureme

December 31, 20C($ in millions) Level 1 Level 2 Level 2 Total
Assets
Trading securitie
Mortgagebacked
Residentia $ — $ 44 $ 99 $ 142
Asse-backec — — 59€ 59€
Total trading securitie — 44 69t 73¢
Investment securitie
Available-for-sale securitie
Debt securitie!
U.S. Treasury and federal agenc 1,98¢ 1,521 — 3,51(
States and political subdivisio — 811 — 811
Foreign governmer 911 262 — 1,17:
Mortgage¢backed
Residentia — 3,45¢ 6 3,461
Asse-backec — 98t 20 1,00¢
Corporate debt securiti 2 1,471 — 1,47:
Other 47 — — 47
Total debt securitie 2,94¢ 8,50¢ 26 11,48(
Equity securitie: 671 4 — 67E
Total availabl-for-sale securitie 3,62( 8,50¢ 26 12,15¢
Mortgage loans he-for-sale (a — 5,54¢ — 5,54t
Consumer mortgage finance receivables and loahsf m@earned income (i — — 1,30: 1,30:
Mortgage servicing right — — 3,55¢ 3,55¢
Other asset
Cash reserve deposits b-for-securitization trust — — 31 31
Interests retained in financial asset si — — 471 471
Fair value of derivative contracts in receivablsifion 184 2,03¢ 43¢ 2,65¢
Derivative collateral placed with counterpart 80¢ 37 — 84&
Total asset $4,61% $16,17( $ 6,51¢ $27,29"
Liabilities
Secured det
Or-balance sheet securitization debt $ — $ — $(1,299)  $(1,299
Accrued expenses and other liabilit
Fair value of derivative contracts in liability ptsn (172 (1,397 (332 (1,895
Total liabilities $ (172  $(1,39)  $(1,62¢)  $(3,189

(@) Carried at fair value due to fair value option éitegs.
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The following tables present the reconciliationdtirLevel 3 assets and liabilities measured atfaliue on a recurring basis. Transfers
into or out of any hierarchy levels, if any (inclag any transfers shown in the following tables§ secognized as of the end of the reporting
period in which the transfer occurred. We oftennecoically hedge the fair value change of our asselisbilities with derivatives and other
financial instruments. The Level 3 items preseitteldw may be hedged by derivatives and other filghintstruments that are classified as
Level 1 or Level 2. Thus, the following tables dut fully reflect the impact of our risk managemantivities.

Level 3 recurring fair value measurements

Net realized/unrealized
gains (losses)

Net unrealizec

Purchases gains (losses)
included in issuances, Fair value included in
Fair value included other and earnings still
as of comprehensive settlements as of held as of
April 1, in June 30, June 30,
($ in millions) 2010 earnings income net 2010 2010
Assets
Trading securitie:
Mortgagebacked
Residentia $ 54 $ 4(a) $ — $ 4 $ 46 $ 2(a)
Asse-backec 89 — 2 — 87 —
Total trading securitie 142 4 )] 4 13z 2
Investment securitie
Available-for-sale
securities
Debt securitie!
Mortgage¢backed
Residentia 3 — @ — 2 —
Asse-backec 13 — — (5) 8 —
Total debt securitie 16 — @ 5) 10 —
Consumer mortgage
finance receivables and
loans, net of unearned
income (b) 2,572 375 (c) — (602) 2,34t 16€ (c)
Mortgage servicing right 3,54: (74¢€)(d) — 18¢ 2,98: (748)(d)
Other asset
Cash reserve deposits
held-for-
securitization trust 2 — — — 2 —
Interests retained in
financial asset sale 411 30 (e) — 24 465 4 (e)
Fair value of derivative
contracts in
receivable (liability)
position, net Interes
rate contracts, ne 4 13€ () — (35) 10% 19€ (f)
Total asset $ 6,691 $ (21)) $ (3) $ (439 $ 6,042 $ (380)
Liabilities
Secured det
On-balance sheet
securitization
debt (b) $ (2,389 $ (36))(c) $ = $ 567 $ (2,179 $ (209)(c)
Total liabilities $ (2,389 $ (361 $ — $ 567 $ (2,179 $ (207)

(@) The fair value adjustment was reported as ahar (loss) on investments, net, and the relatetést was reported as interest and dividendswestment securities in the
Consolidated Statement of Incon

(b) Carried at fair value due to fair value option éies.

(c) Refer to the next section of this note titFair Value Option for Financial Assets and Liah#ifor the location of the gains and losses in thegdtidated Statement of Incorr

(d) Fair value adjustment was reported as servicingtasguation and hedge activities, net, in the @bdated Statement of Incom

(e) Reported as other income, net of losses, in thes@uhated Statement of Incon

(f) Refer to Note 15 for information related to thedtion of the gains and losses on derivative insemtsiin the Consolidated Statement of Inco
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Level 3 recurring fair value measurements

Net realized/unrealized Net unrealizec
gains (losses)
Fair value Purchases gains (losses)
included issuances, Fair value included in
as of included in other and earnings still
January 1, comprehensive settlements as of held as of
in June 30, June 30,
($ in millions) 2010 earnings income net 2010 2010
Assets
Trading securitie
Mortgage¢backed
Residentia $ 99 $ — $ — $ (53 $ 46 $ 11 (a)
Asse-backec 59€ — — (509) 87 —
Total trading securitie 69t — — (562) 13z 11
Investment securitie
Available-for-sale
securities
Debt securitie!
Mortgage-
backec
Residentia 6 — Q) 3 2 —
Asse-backec 20 — — (12 8 —
Total debt
securities 26 — Q) (15) 10 —
Consumer mortgage
finance receivables
and loans, net of
unearned income (1 1,30: 78E (c) — 254 2,34t 36¢€ (c)
Mortgage servicing
rights 3,55¢ (944)(d) — 37¢ 2,98: (944)(d)
Other asset
Cash reserve depos
held-for-
securitization
trusts 31 — — (29) 2 —
Interests retained in
financial asset
sales 471 33(e) — (39 46E 6 (e)
Fair value of
derivative
contracts in
receivable
(liability)
position, net
Interest rate
contracts, ne 102 (9)() — 11 10t 13¢€ ()
Total asset $ 6,18¢ $ (132 $ (1) $ (7) $  6,04: $ (420
Liabilities
Secured dek
On-balance sheet
securitization
debt (b) $ (1,299 $ (779(c) $ = $ (110 $ (2,179 $ (442)(c)
Total liabilities $ (1,299 $ (779 $ — $ (110 $ (2,179 $ (442)

(@) The fair value adjustment was reported as ahar (loss) on investments, net, and the relatetést was reported as interest and dividendsw@stment securities in the
Consolidated Statement of Incon

(b) Carried at fair value due to fair value option éitegs.

(c) Refer to the next section of this note titFair Value Option for Financial Assets and Liah#i for the location of the gains and losses in thegdtdated Statement of Incon

(d) Fair value adjustment was reported as servicingtasguation and hedge activities, net, in the @bdated Statement of Incom

(e) Reported as other income, net of losses, in thes@ulated Statement of Incon



(f) Refer to Note 15 for information related to thedtion of the gains and losses on derivative insemtsiin the Consolidated Statement of Inco
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Level 3 recurring fair value measureme

Net realized/unrealized
gains (losses

Net unrealize

Purchases, Net gains (losses
Fair value included in issuances, transfer Fair value included in
includec other and earnings still
as of comprehensiv settlement: into/ as of held as of
April 1, in (out of) June 30, June 30,
(% in millions) 2009 earning: income net Level 3 2009 2009
Assets
Trading securitie:
Mortgagebacked
Residentia $ 172 $ (52 $ — 3 9 3 19 3 13 $ (36)(a)
Asse-backec 534 75 (a) 7 (12 — 604 (205)(a)
Total trading securitie 70€ 23 7 (27) 19 734 (247
Investment securitie
Available-for-sale
securities
Debt securitie!
Mortgage-
backed
Residentia 2 — (5) — 7 4 —
Asse-backec 40¢ 2(a) 2 — — 413 (4)(a)
Equity securitie: 22 — 1 — (23) — —
Total available-for-
sale
securities 43: 2 2 — (16) 417 4
Consumer mortgage
finance receivables
and loans, net of
unearned income (1 1,66: 321(c) — (39€) — 1,58¢ 19C (c)
Mortgage servicing righ 2,581 67€ (d) — 244 — 3,50¢ 683 (d)
Other asset
Cash reserve deposits
held-for-
securitization trust 30 2 (e) — 1 — 33 (209)(e)
Interests retained in
financial asset sal 822 4 (e) 4 (16¢) — 662 —(e)
Fair value of
derivative contract
in receivable
(liability) position,
net 31¢ 78 () — (249 77 22t 28¢€ ()
Total asset $ 6,56 $ 1,10¢ $ 9 3 589 $ 81 $ 7,166 $ 807
Liabilities
Secured dek
On-balance sheet
securitization
debt (b) $ (1,676 $ (309 (c) $ — % 41C % —  $ (1,579 % (189)(c)
Total liabilities $ (1,679 $ (309 $ —  $ 41C $ — $ (1579 $ (18¢)

(@) The fair value adjustment was reported as ahar (loss) on investments, net, and the relatetést was reported as interest and dividendsw@stment securities in the
Consolidated Statement of Incon

(b) Carried at fair value due to fair value option éitegs.

(c) Refer to next section of this note titIFair Value Option for Financial Assets and Liakiéi for the location of the gains and losses in theddtdated Statement of Incorr

(d) Fair value adjustment was reported as servicingtasguation and hedge activities, net, in the @bdated Statement of Incom

(e) Reported as other income, net of losses, in thes@wlated Statement of Incon

() Refer to Note 15 for information related to thedtion of the gains and losses on derivative insemtsiin the Consolidated Statement of Inco
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Level 3 recurring fair value measureme

Net realized/unrealized
gains (losses

Net unrealize

Fair value Purchases, Net gains (losses
included in issuances, transfer Fair value included in
as of includec other and earnings still
January ] comprehensiv settlement: into/ as of held as of
in (out of) June 30, June 30,
(% in millions) 2009 earning: income net Level 3 2009 2009
Assets
Trading securitie:
Mortgagebacked
Residentia $ 174 $ (B3)(a) $ — % (100 % 19 $ 13 % (41)(a)
Asse-backec 54€ 70 (a) 5 (17) — 604 (482)(a)
Total trading securitie 72C 17 5 (27 19 734 (529
Investment securitie
Available-for-sale
securities
Debt securitie!
Mortgage-
backed
Residentia 2 — (5) — 7 4 —
Asse-backec 607 2(a) 3 (199 — 41% (8)(a)
Equity securitie: 22 — 1 — (23) — —
Total available-for-
sale securitie 631 2 (@D} (199 (16) 417 (8
Consumer mortgage
finance receivables
and loans, net of
unearned income (1 1,861 50¢ (c) — (782) — 1,58¢ 24¢€ (c)
Mortgage servicing
rights 2,84¢ 322 (d) — 33¢ — 3,50¢ 33t (d)
Other asset
Cash reserve depos
held-for-
securitization
trusts 41 (4)(e) (1) 3 — 33 (227)(e)
Interests retained in
financial asset
sales 1,001 (65)(e) 4 (27¢) — 662 4 (e)
Fair value of
derivative
contracts in
receivable
(liability) position,
net 14¢ 40z (f) (5) (466€) 14k 22E 87€ (f)
Total asset $ 7,251 $ 1,18: $ 2 $ (1,416 $ 14¢ $ 7,16¢ $ 711
Liabilities
Secured dek
On-balance sheet
securitization
debt (b) $ (1,899 $ (449(c) $ — $ 76¢ $ — $ (1579 % (224)(c)
Total liabilities $ (1,899 $ (449 $ = $ 76¢ $ = $ (1579 & (224)

(@) The fair value adjustment was reported as ahar (loss) on investments, net, and the relatetést was reported as interest and dividendsw@stment securities in the

Consolidated Statement of Incon
(b) Carried at fair value due to fair value option éies.
(c) Refer to next section of this note titIFair Value Option for Financial Assets and Liakigi for the location of the gains and losses in theddtdated Statement of Incorr
(d) Fair value adjustment was reported as servicingtasguation and hedge activities, net, in the @bdated Statement of Incom
(e) Reported as other income, net of losses, in thes@mtated Statement of Inconr
(f) Refer to Note 15 for information related to thedtion of the gains and losses on derivative insemtsiin the Consolidated Statement of Inco
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Nonrecurring Fair Value

ALLY FINANCIAL INC.

We may be required to measure certain assetsaitities at fair value from time to time. Theseipdic fair value measures typically
result from the application of lower of cost orrfaalue accounting or certain impairment measureleuGAAP. These items would constit

nonrecurring fair value measures.

The following tables display the assets and liibg8imeasured at fair value on a nonrecurring taasisheld at June 30, 2010 and 2009.

Lower of cosi

Total gains Total gains
Nonrecurring or (losses) (losses)
fair value measures fair value included in included in
or valuation earnings for earnings for
reserve the three the six
June 30, 201($ in millions)  Levell LevelZ Level2 Total allowance months ende( months ende(
Assets
Loans hel-for-sale (a
Automotive $ — $ — $ 29 §$ 29 % (96) n/m (b) n/m (b)
Mortgage — — 83E 83t (61) n/m (b) n/m (b)
Total loans hel-for-sale — — 1,13(C 1,13( (157 n/m (b) n/m (b)
Commercial finance
receivables and loans, net
of unearned income (i
Automotive — 37¢ 37¢ (82) n/m (b) n/m (b)
Mortgage 44 65 10¢ (59 n/m (b) n/m (b)
Other — 48€ 48€ (161) n/m (b) n/m (b)
Total commercial finance
receivables and loans, net
of unearned incom — 44 93C 974 (307)
Other asset
Real estate and other
investments (d — 23 — 23 nmeE) $ 1 $ 2
Repossessed and
foreclosed assets,
net (f) — 44 73 117 (29) n/m (b) n/m (b)
Total asset $ — $ 111 $2,13° $2,24¢ % (487) $ 1 $ 2

n/m = not meaningful

(@) Represents assets held-for-sale that are eshtdrbe measured at the lower of cost or fairevallihe table above includes only assets withvigines below cost as of June 30, 2010.
The related valuation allowance represents the tatime adjustment to fair value of those specifisets

(b) We consider the applicable valuation or loasslallowance to be the most relevant indicatohefitnpact on earnings caused by the fair value ureasent. Accordingly, the table
above excludes total gains and losses includedrimregs for these items. The carrying values ackigive of the respective valuation or loan lossvednce.

C

(e) The total loss included in earnings is the mostvaht indicator of the impact on earnin
(f) The allowance provided for repossessed and foredlassets represents any cumulative valuation tatjms recognized to adjust the assets to fair vigls® costs to se
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(c) Represents the portion of the portfolio impairedB3dune 30, 201. The related valuation allowance represents theutative adjustment to fair value of those speaificeivables
(d) Represents assets impaired as of June 30,.ZH®total loss included in earnings represenjissaments to the fair value of the portfolio basedactual sales during the three mot
and six months ended June 30, 2(
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Lower of cos

Total gains Total gains
Nonrecurring or (losses) (losses)
fair value measure fair value included in included in
or valuation earnings for earnings for
reserve the three the six
June 30, 200($ in millions) Levell LevelZz Levell Total allowance months ende months ende
Assets
Loans hel-for-sale (a $ — $ 266 $ 506 $ VE 0% (725) n/m (b) n/m (b)
Commercial finance
receivables and loans, ne
unearned income (i — 397 2,581 2,98¢ (1,199 $ —@d $ (87)(d)
Other asset
Real estate and other
investments (e — 12¢ — 12¢ n/m (f) 5 6
Repossessed and foreclo:
assets, net (¢ — 20t 12z 32¢ (107) n/m (b) n/m (b)
Goodwill (h) — — — — n/m (f) (607) (607)
Total asset $ — $1000C $321c $4,21€¢ $ (2,03]) $ (602) $ (68€)

n/m = not meaningful

(@)
(b)
©
©)
(e)
®

(9)
(h)

Represents assets held-for-sale that are eshtdrbe measured at the lower of cost or fairezaline table above includes only assets with falines below cost as of June 30, 2009.
The related valuation allowance represents the tatime adjustment to fair value of those specifisets

We consider the applicable valuation or loasslallowance to be the most relevant indicatohefilnpact on earnings caused by the fair value oreasent. Accordingly, the table
above excludes total gains and losses includedrimregs for these items. The carrying values ackigive of the respective valuation or loan logsvednce.

Represents the portion of the commercial pbafinpaired as of June 30, 2009. The related &naallowance represents the cumulative adjustrtefeir value of those specific
receivables

Represents losses recognized on the impairofenir resort finance business, which provided aelpital to resort and timeshare developers. Reffaotnote (b) for information
related to the other commercial finance receivahtesloans, net of unearned income, for which impant was recognize.

Represents assets impaired as of June 30, Z883otal loss included in earnings representssijents to the fair value of the portfolio baseadotual sales during the three months
and six months ended June 30, 2(

The total loss included in earnings is the mostvaht indicator of the impact on earnin

The allowance provided for repossessed and foredlassets represents any cumulative valuationtatjms recognized to adjust the assets to fair vigls® costs to se

Represents goodwill impaired as of June 30, 200@.ilnpairment related to a reporting unit within tnsurance operation

Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financi&Liabilities

On January 1, 2008, we elected to measure atdhiewcertain consumer mortgage finance receivariddoans and the related debt held

in the financing securitization structures thatted. During the three months ended September0B3, 2ve also elected the fair value option
for government- and agency-eligible mortgage Idaid-for-sale funded after July 31, 2009. As ofulaw 1, 2010, we elected the fair value
option for all mortgage securitization structureattwere required to be consolidated due to theptamtoof ASU 2009-17. Refer to Note 1 for
additional information related to the adoption. @uent in electing fair value for all these itemas to mitigate a divergence between
accounting losses and economic exposure for ceataets and liabilities.

A description of the financial assets and lialgbtelected to be measured at fair value is asisllo

. On-balance sheet securitizatior — We executed certain domestic securitizations tltahdt meet certain sale criteria. As part of
these domestic on-balance sheet securitizationsypieally retained the economic residual inteieghe securitization. The
economic residual entitles us to excess cash fthatsremain at each distribution date after absorhiny credit losses in the
securitization. Because sale treatment was noeaetlj the mortgage loan collateral remained o#i@nce sheet and was
classified as consumer finance receivable and Jdhassecuritization’s debt was classified as segtaiebt; and the economic
residuals were not carried on the balance she&dr Akecution of the securitizations, we were regfiuinder GAAP to continue
recording an allowance for loan losses on thesd-for-investment loans
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As a result of market conditions and deterioratingdit performance of domestic mortgages, our exanexposure on certain
of these domestic obalance sheet securitizations was reduced to zeapgroximating zero, thus indicating we expectédimmal tc
no future cash flows to be received on the econeesitiual. While we no longer were economicallyased to credit losses in the
securitizations, we were required to continue réicay additional allowance for loan losses on thaug&zation collateral as credit
performance deteriorated. Further, in accordantie @AAP, we did not record any offsetting reductiorihe securitization’s debt
balances, even though any nonperformance of tlegsas®uld ultimately pass through as a reductioiefamount owed to the de¢
holders once they are contractually extinguishedaAesult, we were required to record accountisgds beyond our economic
exposure.

To mitigate the divergence between accounting fbbase economic exposure, we elected the fair \@btien for a portion of
the domestic on-balance sheet securitizationsattiqular, we elected the fair value option for dmstic on-balance sheet
securitization vehicles in which we estimated thatcredit reserves pertaining to securitized agsamild have exceeded or already
had exceeded our economic exposure. The fair \gitien election was made at a securitization letels the election was made
for both the consumer mortgage finance receivadmeisloans and the related portion of on-balancetsezuritized debt for these
particular securitizations.

We carry the fair value-elected loans as consuimante receivable and loans, net of unearned incomthe Consolidated
Balance Sheet. Our policy is to separately recatelest income on the fair value-elected loanse@mthe loans are placed on
nonaccrual status); however, the accrued interastexcluded from the fair value presentation. Vdegified the fair value
adjustment recorded for the loans as other incomeeof losses, in the Consolidated Statement afrirec

We continued to record the fair value-elected deltdinces as secured debt on the Consolidated Bakiveet. Our policy is to
separately record interest expense on the fairevelected securitization debt, which continuesdelassified as interest expense in
the Consolidated Statement of Income. We classifiedair value adjustment recorded for this failue-elected debt as other
income, net of losses, in the Consolidated Statéwfdncome.

. Government- and agency-eligible loans- During the three months ended September 31,,208@lected the fair value option for
government and agency eligible mortgage loans foeldale funded after July 31, 2009. We electedlrevalue option to mitigate
earnings volatility by better matching the accoogftior the assets with the related hed

Excluded from the fair value option were governmaeamntd agency-eligible loans funded on or prioruty B1, 2009, and those
repurchased or rerecognized. The loans funded priarto July 31, 2009, were ineligible because élection must be made at the
time of funding. Repurchased and rerecognized gowent- and agency-eligible loans were not elecesdibse the election will not
mitigate earning volatility. We repurchase or regatize loans due to representation and warranigativns or conditional
repurchase options. Typically, we will be unabledsell these assets through regular channelsodtlearacteristics of the assets.
Since the fair value of these assets is influetgefhctors that cannot be hedged, we did not #¢hectair value option.

We carry the fair value-elected government- andageligible loans as loans held-for-sale on thastdidated Balance Sheet.
Our policy is to separately record interest incamehe fair value-elected loans (unless they aaequl on nonaccrual status);
however, the accrued interest was excluded fronfaiheralue presentation. Upfront fees and codeged to the fair value-elected
loans were not deferred or capitalized. The faine@adjustment recorded for these loans is claskds gain (loss) on mortgage
loans, net, in the Consolidated Statement of Incdmaccordance with GAAP, the fair value optioaction is irrevocable once the
asset is funded even if it is subsequently detezththat a particular loan cannot be sold under igwrent programs or to the
agencies.
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The following tables summarize the fair value optédections and information regarding the amouetsmded as earnings for each fair
value option-elected item.

Changes included in the Consolidated Statement ofitome
for the three months ended June 30, 2010

Loans
Consumel held- Total Gain on Total Change in
for-sale interest mortgage Other included in fair value due tc
financing income,
(% in millions) revenue revenue  expens loans, ne  net of losse earnings credit risk (a)
Assets
Mortgage loans held-
for-sale $ — $ 36 $ — $ 22t % — $ 261 $ —(b)
Consumer mortgage
finance receivables
and loans, net of
unearned incom 15¢ — — — 21t 374 (35)(c)
Liabilities
Secured det
On-balance sheet
securitization
debt $ (18) $ — $ M $ — 3 (271 $ (360) $ 34 (d)
Total $ 275

(@) Factors other than credit quality that impadt ¥alue include changes in market interest ratesthe illiquidity or marketability in the curremtarketplace. Lower levels of observable
data points in illiquid markets generally resultiide bid/offer spread:

(b) The credit impact for loans h¢for-sale is assumed to be zero because the loanglzee iitable for sale or are covered by a goventgearantee

(c) The credit impact for consumer mortgage financeir&bles and loans was quantified by applying meecredit loss assumptions to cash flow moc

(d) The credit impact for on-balance sheet se@atibn debt is assumed to be zero until our ecooameérests in a particular securitization is reztlito zero at which point the losses on
the underlying collateral will be expected to begmd through to third-party bondholders. Lossexated to third-party bondholders, including chanigethe amount of losses
allocated, will result in fair value changes duetedit. We also monitor credit ratings and willkearedit adjustments to the extent any bond ctaase downgraded by rating

agencies
Changes included in the Consolidated Statement ohitome
for the six months ended June 30, 2010
Loans
Consumel held- Total Gain on Total Change in
for-sale  interest mortgage Other included in fair value due tc
financing income,

($ in millions) revenue revenue  expens loans, ne  net of losse earnings credit risk (a)
Assets
Mortgage loans held-

for-sale $ — $ 92 $ — $ 40¢  $ — $ 501 $ — (b)
Consumer mortgage

finance receivables

and loans, net of

unearned incom 32¢ — — — 45¢ 787 (69)(c)
Liabilities
Secured dek

On-balance sheet

securitization
debt $ (18) $ — % (@67 $ —  $ (58¢) $ (779) $ 71(d)

Total $ 51t

(a) Factors other than credit quality that impadt ¥alue include changes in market interest ratesthe illiquidity or marketability in the curremtarketplace. Lower levels of observable
data points in illiquid markets generally resultnide bid/offer spread:

(b) The credit impact for loans hefor-sale is assumed to be zero because the loanslzee iitable for sale or are covered by a goventrgearantee

(c) The credit impact for consumer mortgage financeirables and loans was quantified by applying meecredit loss assumptions to cash flow moc

(d) The credit impact for on-balance sheet seaatitbn debt is assumed to be zero until our ecoad@mérests in a particular securitization is rezhlito zero at which point the losses on
the underlying collateral will be expected to beged through to third-party bondholders. Lossexated to third-party bondholders, including chanigethe amount of losses
allocated, will result in fair value changes duetedit. We also monitor credit ratings and willkeacredit adjustments to the extent any bond ctaase downgraded by rating
agencies
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Changes included in the Consolidated Statememntaafrhe
for the three months ended June 30, 2

Consume Total Change in
Total Other included ir fair value due t
financing interes income,
($ in millions) revenue expens net of losse earnings credit risk (a)
Assets
Consumer mortgage finance receivables
and loans, net of unearned inco $ 13: $ — $ 18¢ $ 321 $ 22 (b)
Liabilities
Secured det
Or-balance sheet securitization d $ = $ (59 $ (249 $ (30¢) $ 22 (c)
Total $ 13

(@) Factors other than credit quality that impadt ¥alue include changes in market interest ratesthe illiquidity or marketability in the curremtarketplace. Lower levels of observable

data points in illiquid markets generally resultiide bid/offer spread:
(b) The credit impact for consumer mortgage financeirables and loans was quantified by applying meecredit loss assumptions to cash flow moc

(c) The credit impact for on-balance sheet sea@atibn debt is assumed to be zero until our ecooameérests in a particular securitization is reztlito zero at which point the losses on
the underlying collateral will be expected to begmd through to third-party bondholders. Lossexated to third-party bondholders, including chanigethe amount of losses
allocated, will result in fair value changes duetedit. We also monitor credit ratings and willkeacredit adjustments to the extent any bond ctaase downgraded by rating
agencies

Changes included in the Consolidated Statememtauafrhe
for the six months ended June 30, 2
Consume Total Change in
Total Other included ir fair value due t
financing interes’ income,

($ in millions) revenue expens net of losse earnings credit risk (a)

Assets

Consumer mortgage finance receivables

and loans, net of unearned inco $ 27¢ $ — $ 238 $ 50¢ $ (43)(b)

Liabilities

Secured det

On-balance sheet securitization d $ = $ (119 $ (325) $ (444 $ 84 (c)
Total $ 65

(a) Factors other than credit quality that impadt ¥alue include changes in market interest ratesthe illiquidity or marketability in the curremtarketplace. Lower levels of observable

data points in illiquid markets generally resultnide bid/offer spread:
(b) The credit impact for consumer mortgage financeirables and loans was quantified by applying meecredit loss assumptions to cash flow moc
(c) The credit impact for on-balance sheet seaatiton debt is assumed to be zero until our ecoa@mérests in a particular securitization is rezhlito zero at which point the losses on
the underlying collateral will be expected to beged through to third-party bondholders. Lossexated to third-party bondholders, including chanigethe amount of losses
allocated, will result in fair value changes duetedit. We also monitor credit ratings and willkeacredit adjustments to the extent any bond ctaase downgraded by rating

agencies

Interest income on consumer mortgage finance rabésg and loans is measured by multiplying the ighpancipal balance on the loans
by the coupon rate and the number of days of istetge. Interest expense on the on-balance shaeitsmation debt is measured by
multiplying bond principal by the coupon rate ananber of days of interest due to the investor.
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The following tables provide the aggregate faiugahnd the aggregate unpaid principal balancéhéofair value option-elected loans and
long-term debt instruments.

Unpaid
principal
Fair
June 30, 201 ($ in millions) balance value (&
Assets
Mortgage loans he-for-sale
Total loans $ 3,97¢ $ 4,16
Nonaccrual loan 1 1
Loans 90+ days past due ! — —
Consumer mortgage finance receivables and loabsf n@earned incom
Total loans 9,501 2,34¢
Nonaccrual loan 2,55¢ (c)
Loans 90+ days past due ! 1,601 (c)
Liabilities
Secured det
On-balance sheet securitization d $ (9,479 $ (2,179

(@) Excludes accrued interest receival

(b) Loans 90+ days past due are also presented withindnaccrual loan balance and the total loan bal

(c) The fair value of consumer mortgage financeineables and loans is calculated on a pooled bakish does not allow us to reliably estimate thie ¥alue of loans 90+ days past due
or nonaccrual loans. As a result, the fair valutheke loans is not included in the table abovedithprincipal balances were provided to allow assent of the materiality of loans
90+ days past due and nonaccrual loans relatit@abloans. For further discussion regarding tbeled basis, refer to the previous section of ot titledConsumer mortgage
finance receivables and loans, net of unearnedne.

Unpaid
principa
Fair
December 31, 20C($ in millions) balance value
Assets
Mortgage loans he-for-sale
Total loans $ 5,42i $ 5,54¢
Nonaccrual loan 3 3
Loans 90+ days past due — —
Consumer mortgage finance receivables and loabsf n@earned incom
Total loans 7,18( 1,30¢
Nonaccrual loan 2,34: (b)
Loans 90+ days past due 1,43¢ (b)
Liabilities
Secured dek
On-balance sheet securitization d $ (7,166 $(1,297)

(@) Loans 90+ days past due are also presented withindnaccrual loan balance and within the totai ls@lance

(b) The fair value of consumer mortgage financeinables and loans is calculated on a pooled bakish does not allow us to reliably estimate thie ¥alue of loans 90+ days past due
or nonaccrual loans. As a result, the fair valutheke loans is not included in the table abovedithprincipal balances were provided to allow assent of the materiality of loans
90+ days past due and nonaccrual loans relatit@abloans. For further discussion regarding tbeled basis, refer to the previous section of o titled,Consumer mortgage
finance receivables and loans, net of unearnedne.
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following table presents the carrying and estéd fair value of assets and liabilities that@mesidered financial instruments.
Accordingly, items that do not meet the definitimfra financial instrument are excluded from thdealVhen possible, we use quoted market
prices to determine fair value. Where quoted mapkiees are not available, the fair value is indédlsnderived based on appropriate valuation
methodologies with respect to the amount and tinsinfyture cash flows and estimated discount ratesvever, considerable judgment is
required in interpreting market data to develonesstes of fair value, so the estimates are notssardy indicative of the amounts that could
be realized or would be paid in a current markeharge. The effect of using different market asdionp or estimation methodologies could
be material to the estimated fair values. Fair @afiformation presented herein is based on infaonmatvailable at June 30, 2010, and
December 31, 2009.

June 30, 201( December 31, 20C
Carrying
Fair Carrying Fair

($ in millions) value value value value
Financial assel

Trading securitie: $ 20 $ 20¢ $ 73€ $ 73¢

Investment securitie 12,71( 12,71( 12,15¢ 12,15¢

Loans hel-for-sale (a) 10,38: 9,58( 20,62¢ 19,85¢

Finance receivables and loans, 90,33¢ 88,34: 75,25¢ 72,21

Fair value of derivative contracts in receivablsifion 4,84¢ 4,84¢ 2,65¢ 2,65¢

Derivative collateral placed with counterpartiey 142 142 84t 84t

Interests retained in financial asset si 46E 46E 471 471
Financial liabilities

Debt (c) $ 92,79¢ $94,78. $ 98,81¢ $ 95,58¢

Deposit liabilities (d’ 33,71: 34,03¢ 30,54¢ 30,79¢

Fair value of derivative contracts in liability psn 3,17¢ 3,17¢ 1,89¢ 1,89t

(@) The balance includes options to repurchasegqiadint assets from certain off-balance securitratand agency whole-loan sales. We are not expgosbe losses on these delinquent
loans, unless we exercise the repurchase optiatil. W exercise the option, the carrying valueta#ge loans equals the unpaid principal balancehenthir value is based on internal
valuation models. As a result, the carrying valueunpaid principal balance) is greater than theviaue due to the underlying characteristicshef lbans

(b) Represents collateral in the form of investmentigées.

(c) Debt includes deferred interest for z-coupon bonds of $537 million and $506 million aslehe 30, 2010, and December 31, 2009, respect

(d) The carrying value and fair value amounts exclueleler deposits

The following describes the methodologies and apsioms used to determine fair value for the regpeatlasses of financial instrumer
In addition to the valuation methods discussedvbelee also followed guidelines for determining whesta market is not active and a
transaction is not distressed. As such, we asstingegrice that would be received in an orderlydeaion (including a market-based return)
and not forced liquidation or distressed sale.

. Trading securities — Refer to the previous section of this note diffeading securitiefor a description of the methodologies and
assumptions used to determine fair va

. Investment securitie — Bonds, equity securities, notes, and other alsldtor-sale investment securities are carriddiavalue.
Refer to the previous section of this note tithadhilable-for-sale securitiefor a description of the methodologies and asswompti
used to determine fair value. The fair value oftiet-to-maturity investment securities is basedanation models using market-
based assumptio

. Loans helcfor-sale — Refer to the previous sections of this note &itked Loans held-for-saléor a description of methodologies
and assumptions used to determine fair ve

. Finance receivables and loans, n — With the exception of mortgage loans held-forestment, the fair value of finance
receivables was based on discounted future casfs fising applicable spreads to approximate curegas applicable to each
category of finance receivables (an income appnoddte carrying value of wholesale receivablesdrtain markets and certain
other automotiv- and mortgac-lending receivables for which intere

62



Table of Contents

ALLY FINANCIAL INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (unaudit ed)

rates reset on a short-term basis with applicalalket indices are assumed to approximate fair vaither because of the shoerm
nature or because of the interest rate adjustneattfe. The fair value of wholesale receivablestlier markets was based on
discounted future cash flows using applicable sjsd¢a approximate current rates applicable to sinaisets in those marke

For mortgage loans held-for-investment used asiegll for securitization debt, we used a portfajiproach or an in-use
premise to measure these loans at fair value. Bjeetive in fair valuing these loans (which arediygisolated and beyond the
reach of our creditors) and the related collateealiborrowings is to reflect our retained econopaisition in the securitizations. For
mortgage loans held-for-investment that are natisgzed, we used valuation methods and assumpsoniar to those used for
mortgage loans held-faale. These valuations consider unique attributésedoans such as geography, delinquency stataduct
type, and other factors. Refer to the previousi@edn this note titled.oans held-for-saléor a description of methodologies and
assumptions used to determine the fair value otgage loans held-for-sale.

. Derivative assets and liabilitie — Refer to the previous section of this note ditkerivative instrumentfor a description of the
methodologies and assumptions used to determinedtie.

. Derivative collateral placed with counterpartic — Derivative collateral placed with counterpartieshe table above represents
only collateral in the form of investment secusti®efer to the previous section of this note &tk Derivative collateral placed
with counterpartiefor additional information

. Interests retained in financial asset sal — Interest retained in financial asset sales arged at fair value. Refer to the previous
sections of this note titlekhterests retained in financial asset safesa description of the methodologies and asswmnptused to
determine fair value

. Debt — The fair value of debt was determined using gdanharket prices for the same or similar issuesyaflable, or was based
on the current rates offered to us for debt withilsir remaining maturities

. Deposit liabilities — Deposit liabilities represent certain consunemkbdeposits as well as mortgage escrow depositsfair
value of deposits with no stated maturity is edadheir carrying amount. The fair value of fixethturity deposits was estimated
discounting cash flows using currently offered sdte deposits of similar maturitie

19. Variable Interest Entities

We account for VIEs under the requirements of AS10,&onsolidation. ASU 2009-17]mprovements to Financial Reporting by
Enterprises Involved with Variable Interest Enst, which amended ASC 810, became effective on Jgriy&t010, and upon adoption, we
consolidated certain entities, including securtt@atrusts that were previously held off-balanbeet. As of January 1, 2010, we recognized a
day-one net increase of $17.6 billion to assetsliabdities on our consolidated balance sheetO($billion of the increase relates to
operations classified as held-for-sale). Refer ¢veNL for additional information related to the ption of ASU 2009-17. Refer to our
Consolidated Balance Sheet for a detailed listinp® assets and liabilities of our consolidate&d/as of June 30, 2010.

The following describes the VIEs that we consokdadr in which we had a significant variable instr&Ve had certain secured funding
arrangements that were structured through conglglantities, as described in further detail inté&Na3.

. On-balance sheet securitization trusts “We hold variable interests in certain securitizati@nsactions that are VIEs. The nature
of, purpose of, activities of, and our continuingalvement with the consolidated securitizatiorstsus virtually identical to those
of our off-balance sheet securitization trusts,clihdre discussed in Note 9. As part of our seeatitns, we typically retain
servicing responsibilities. We also hold retaineiiests in these consolidated securitizationgrughich represent a continuing
economic interest in the securitization. The retdimterests include, but are not limited to, senicsubordinate mortgage- or asset-
backed securities, interest-only strips, principaly strips, and residuals. Certain of these rethinterests provide credit
enhancement to the securitization structure asnieayabsorb credit losses or other cash shortfdiditionally, the securitizatio
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documents may require cash flows to be directed/dman certain of our retained interests due tac#feover collateralization
requirements, which may or may not be performaroeed. Because the securitization trusts are cdstesteld, these retained
interests are not recognized as a separate aseet @onsolidated Balance She

Prior to the adoption of ASU 2009-17, we were thienpry beneficiary because we typically held thstfioss position in these
securitization transactions and, as a result, ipatied absorbing the majority of the expected losdehe VIE; thus, we consolidat
these entities. Subsequent to adoption of ASU 20Q0%e are the primary beneficiary because we hasantrolling financial
interest in the VIE as we have both power oveMHtg primarily due to our servicing activities, ane hold a variable interest in
the VIE. The assets of the consolidated securitindtusts totaled $49.4 billion and $38.4 billiahJune 30, 2010, and
December 31, 2009, respectively. The majority efdksets are included as finance receivables and,laet of unearned interest
assets of operations held-for-sale on the CongelidBalance Sheet. The liabilities of these estitigaled $39.0 billion and
$28.9 billion at June 30, 2010, and December 3@92fespectively. The majority of these liabilitigere included as secured debt
or liabilities of operations held-for-sale on therSolidated Balance Sheet.

The assets of the securitization trusts generadijttee sole source of repayment on the securibizdtusts’ liabilities. The
creditors of the securitization trusts do not hea@urse to our general credit with the exceptiothe customary representation and
warranty repurchase provisions and, in certainstations, early payment default provisions as dised in Note 30 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in our 2009 AhReg@ort on Form 10-K.

. Servicing funding — To assist in the financing of our servicing ats&receivables, our Mortgage operations formefRi to
issue term notes to third-party investors thatcatiateralized by servicing advance receivablegsehservicing advance receivables
were transferred to the SPE and consisted of dadimigprincipal and interest advances made by outddge operations, as
servicer, to various investors; property taxesiagdrance premiums advanced to taxing authoritielsimsurance companies on
behalf of borrowers; and amounts advanced for nageg in foreclosure. The SPE funds the purchadeatceivables through
financing obtained from the third-party investonslaubordinated loans or an equity contributiomfiaur Mortgage operations.
Management determined that we were the primaryfloise of the SPE and therefore consolidated thtéye The assets of this
entity totaled $1.0 billion and $1.4 billion at 80, 2010, and December 31, 2009, respectivetyyaame included in other assets
on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The liabildfethis entity totaled $1.0 billion at June 30, Q0tonsisting of $779 million in
third-party term notes that were included in debt onGbasolidated Balance Sheet and $270 million ifiafé payables to ResCs
which were eliminated in consolidation. The ligi#$ of this entity totaled $1.4 billion at DecemB&, 2009, consisting of
$700 million in third-party term notes that wereluded in debt on the Consolidated Balance Shak$677 million in affiliate
payables to ResCap that were eliminated in corestidid. The beneficial interest holder of this Viged not have legal recourse to
our general credit. We do not have a contractulidation to provide any type of financial suppartthe future, nor did we provide
noncontractual financial support to the entity dgrihe three months ended June 30, 2010. On Apr2Q10, the terms of the
facility were modified increasing the capacity 868 million and extending the maturity to April 201A term note was issued for
$508 million, and the existing variable funding @etas reduced from $700 million to $350 millic
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Financial information for our reportable operatsegments is summarized as follows.

Global Automotive Services (a

North
American
Automotive International Corporate
Automotive Insurance

Three months ended June Finance Finance Mortgage and
(% in millions) operations operations (b’ operations operations (c Other (d) Consolidated (e
2010
Net financing revenue (los  $ 88¢ $ 174 $ — $ 154 $ (508) % 712
Other revenu 18€ 86 573 531 12 1,38¢
Total net revenue (los 1,07t 26C 573 68t (49z 2,10c¢
Provision for loan losse 10€ 11 — 92 11 22C
Other noninterest expen 33¢ 144 465 363 12: 1,43¢
Income (loss)

from continuing

operations before incorr

expense (benefi 63C 10t 10¢ 23C (627) 44¢€
Income tax expense (bene

from continuing

operations 17¢€ 4 22 (2) (167) 33
Net income (loss) fror

continuing operation 454 101 86 232 (460 413
Income (loss) from

discontinued operations,

net of tax — 44 (4 98 14 152
Net income (loss $ 454 $ 14E $ 82 $ 33C $ (44¢€) $ 56E
Total asset $  74,14¢ $ 16,59¢ $ 8,557 $ 46,041 $ 31,46¢ $ 176,80:
2009
Net financing revenue (los  $ 72¢ $ 18¢ $ — $ 137 $ (662 $ 39:
Other revenue (los! 13¢ 93 58E (84 13t 867
Total net revenue (los 867 282 58t 53 (527) 1,26(
Provision for loan losse 15 58 — 871 178 1,113
Other noninterest expen 401 191 48€ 517 131 1,72¢
Income (loss) from

continuing operations

before income tax

expense (benefi 451 33 99 (1,339 (831) (1,587
Income tax expense (bene

from continuing

operations 972 14t 28 (183 134 1,09¢
Net (loss) income fror

continuing operation (521) (112) 71 (1,152 (96%) (2,679
Income (loss) from

discontinued operations,

net of tax — 3 (58€) (639) (2) (1,224
Net loss $ (52) $ (109 $ (515 $ (1,797 $ (967) $ (3,909
Total asset $  64,04( $ 25,591 $ 11,58¢ $ 44,40 $ 35,620 $ 181,24

(@) North American operations consist of automotiveficing in the United States, Canada, and Puerto. Riternational operations consist of automotinaricing and fu-service

leasing in all other countrie

(b) Amounts include intrasegment eliminations betweenttNAmerican operations, International operati@m] Insurance operatior
) Represents the ResCap legal entity and the mor@etgéties of Ally Bank and ResMor Trus
(d) Represents our Commercial Finance Group, certaiityeimvestments, other corporate activities, teéimpact from treasury asset liability managensetivities and reclassificatiol

and eliminations between the reportable operatiggrents. At June 30, 2010, total assets were $ilghlfor the Commercial Finance Grou
(e) Net financing revenue (loss) after the provisionléan losses totaled $492 million and $(724) miilfor the three months ended June 30, 2010 and, 28€pectively
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Global Automotive Services (a

North
American
Automotive International Corporate
Automotive Insurance

Six months ended June 30, Finance Finance Mortgage and
($ in millions) operations operations (b’ operations operations (c Other (d) Consolidated (e
2010
Net financing revenue (los  $ 1,802 $ 35€ $ — $ 33¢€ $ (1,02¢) $ 1,46¢
Other revenue (los! 38¢ 17¢ 1,19¢ 90C (17¢€) 2,48¢
Total net revenue (los 2,191 53t 1,19¢ 1,23¢ (1,202) 3,95¢
Provision for loan losse 207 34 — 99 26 36€
Other noninterest expen 701 354 903 751 252 2,961
Income (loss) from

continuing operations

before income tax

expense (benefi 1,28 147 291 38¢€ (1,480 627
Income tax expense (bene

from continuing

operations 433 (9) 83 6 (444 69
Net income (loss) fror

continuing operation 85( 15€ 20¢ 38C (1,036€) 55¢
Income (loss) from

discontinued operations,

net of tax — 46 (5) 11C 18 16¢
Net income (loss $ 85C $ 202 $ 205 $ 49C $ (1,019 $ 727
Total asset $ T7414¢ % 16,59¢ $ 8,557 $ 46,04! $ 31,46¢ $ 176,80:.
2009
Net financing revenue (los  $ 159C $ 32¢ $ — $ 26¢ $ (1,320 $ 867
Other revenue (los! 44¢ 162 1,09¢ (28) 437 2,115
Total net revenue (los 2,03¢ 491 1,09¢ 241 (889) 2,98¢
Provision for loan losse 14¢ 10¢ — 1,432 17z 1,86:
Other noninterest expen 77¢ 38¢ 961 1,071 182 3,381
Income (loss)

from continuing

operations before incorn

expense (benefi 1,112 (1) 13t (2,262) (1,23¢) (2,260
Income tax expense (bene

from continuing

operations 1,01¢ 13¢ 34 (270 54 972
Net income (loss) fror

continuing operation 96 (14%) 101 (1,997) (1,2972) (3,237)
Loss from discontinued

operations, net of ta — (2 (56€) (770 (8 (1,346
Net income (loss $ 9 3 (147) $ (46E) $ (2,762) $ (1,300 $ (4,57¢)
Total asset $ 64,040 $ 25,59° $ 11,58¢ $ 44,40: $ 35,620 $ 181,24t

(@) North American operations consist of automotiveficing in the United States, Canada, and Puerto. Riternational operations consist of automotinaricing and fu-service

leasing in all other countrie

(b) Amounts include intrasegment eliminations betweenttNAmerican operations, International operati@ms Insurance operatior
(c) Represents the ResCap legal entity and the mor@eagaties of Ally Bank and ResMor Trus
(d) Represents our Commercial Finance Group, certaiityeimvestments, other corporate activities, teeéimpact from treasury asset liability managenaativities and reclassificatiol

C

and eliminations between the reportable operatiggrents. At June 30, 2010, total assets were $iighfor the Commercial Finance Grou

(e) Net financing revenue (loss) after the provisionlé@n losses totaled $1,102 million and $(996)ionil for the six months ended June 30, 2010 and® 2G&spectively
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21. Subsequent Events

Declaration of Quarterly Dividend Payments

On July 14, 2010, the Ally Board of Directors deethquarterly dividend payments on certain outstapgreferred stock. This include:
cash dividend of $1.125 per share, or a total &79aillion, on Fixed Rate Cumulative Mandatorilyrvertible Preferred Stock, Series F-2,
and a cash dividend of $17.31 per share, or addtd5 million, on Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetedferred Stock, Series G. The divide
are payable on August 16, 2010.
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Item 2. Managemen’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operation

Selected Financial Data

The selected historical financial information sath below should be read in conjunction with Mag@agnt’'s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations, @ansolidated Financial Statements, and the Not€otsolidated Financial Statements.
The historical financial information presented nmay be indicative of our future performance.

Three months endec Six months endec
June 30, June 30,

($ in millions) 2010 2009 2010 2009
Financial statement data
Total financing revenue and other interest inct $ 2,90 $ 3,38¢ $ 6,01¢ $ 6,91¢
Interest expens 1,664 1,94( 3,36¢ 3,93¢
Depreciation expense on operating lease a 52€ 1,05¢ 1,182 2,11
Net financing revenu 712 393 1,46¢ 867
Total other revenu 1,38¢ 867 2,48¢ 2,117
Total net revenu 2,10¢ 1,26( 3,95¢ 2,98¢
Provision for loan losse 22C 1,117 36€ 1,86:
Total noninterest expen: 1,43¢ 1,72¢ 2,961 3,381
Income (loss) from continuing operations beforeme tax expense

(benefit) 44¢ (1,587) 627 (2,260)
Income tax expense from continuing operations 33 1,09¢ 69 972
Net income (loss) from continuing operatic 413 (2,679 55¢ (3,239
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, neag 152 (1,229 16¢ (1,346
Net income (loss $ 56 $ (3,909 $ 727 $ (4,57§)
Total asset $176,80: $ 181,24t $176,80: $ 181,24t
Total debt $ 92,25¢ $105,17! $ 92,25¢ $105,17!
Total equity $ 20,77 $ 26,04¢ $ 20,77 $ 26,04¢
Financial ratios (b)
Return on asse

Net income (loss) from continuing operatic 0.99% (5.99% 0.6% (3.56%

Net income (loss 1.27% (8.79% 0.82% (5.09)%
Return on equit

Net income (loss) from continuing operatic 8.0(% (43.02)% 5.4(% (26.99%

Net income (loss 10.95% (62.610)% 7.05% (38.10%
Equity to assets rati 11.5% 13.9%% 11.61% 13.22%
Regulatory capital ratios
Tier 1 capita 15.31% 13.62% 15.31% 13.62%
Total risk-based capite 16.8% 15.08% 16.8% 15.08%
Tier 1 leverage 12.6/% 14.01% 12.6/% 14.01%
Tier 1 commor 5.24% 6.12% 5.24% 6.12%

(a) Effective June 30, 2009, we converted into@artion and, as a result, became subject to capd).S. federal, state, and local taxes beginimirige third quarter of 2009. Refer to
Note 16 to the Consolidated Financial Statementadditional information regarding our change ir $tatus
(b) The 2010 ratios were computed based on averages @sgkaverage equity using a combination of mgraht daily average methodologi
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Overview

Ally is one of the world’s largest automotive fir@al services companies with approximately $17@®b of assets at June 30, 2010.
Founded in 1919 as a wholly owned subsidiary oféea@Motors Corporation (currently General Motoanipany or GM), Ally is the officie
preferred source of financing for GM, Chrysler, I8auzuki, and Thor Industries vehicles and oféefsll suite of automotive financing
products and services in key markets around thédwOmur other business units include mortgage djmersiand commercial finance, and our
subsidiary, Ally Bank, which offers online retatking products. Ally also operates as a bank hgldbompany. On December 24, 2008, we
became a bank holding company under the Bank Hpl@immpany Act of 1956, as amended (the BHC Act).

Discontinued Operations

During 2009, we committed to sell certain operatiohour International Automotive Finance operatidnsurance operations, Mortgage
operations, and Commercial Finance Group, andifiesertain of these operations as discontiniiading 2010, the operations of our
International Automotive Finance operations in Aali and Russia and our U.K. mortgage operatiomewlassified as discontinued. For all
periods presented, all of the operating resultshfese operations were removed from continuingaijmers. Refer to Note 2 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for additionfrimation regarding our discontinued operations.
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Primary Lines of Business

Global Automotive Services and Mortgage are ounpry lines of business. The following table summesithe operating results
excluding discontinued operations of each lineuiess for the three months and six months engsal 30, 2010 and 2009. Operating
results for each of the lines of business are rmdhgdescribed in the MD&A sections that follow.

Three months endec Six months endec
June 30, June 30,
Favorable/ Favorable/
(unfavorable) (unfavorable)
($ in millions) 2010 2009 % change 2010 2009 % change
Total net revenue (los
Global Automotive Service
North American Automotive Finance
operations $1,07¢ $ 867 24 $ 2,191 $2,03¢ 7
International Automotive Finance
operations 26C 282 (8) 53t 491 9
Insurance operatior BV 58E 2 1,19¢ 1,09¢ 9
Mortgage operation 68t 53 n/m 1,23¢ 241 n/m
Corporate and Oth (493) (527) 6 (1,2072) (889 (36)
Total $2,10( $ 1,26( 67 $ 3,95¢ $ 2,984 33
Income (loss) from continuing operations befc
income tax expens
Global Automotive Service
North American Automotive Finance
operations $ 63C $ 451 40 $ 1,28¢ $1,112 15
International Automotive Finance
operations 10t 33 n/m 147 @) n/m
Insurance operatior 10¢€ 99 9 291 13E 11€
Mortgage operation 23C (1,335 117 38¢€ (2,262) 117
Corporate and Oth (627) (831) 25 (1,480 (1,23¢) (20
Total $ 44€ $(1,587) 12¢ $ 627 $(2,260) 12¢
Net income (loss) from continuing operatic
Global Automotive Service
North American Automotive Finance
operations $ 454 $ (527) 187 $ 85C $ 96 n/m
International Automotive Finance
operations 101 (112 19C 15€ (14%) n/m
Insurance operatior 86 71 21 20¢ 101 10¢€
Mortgage operation 232 (1,152 12C 38C (1,999 11¢
Corporate and Oth (460) (96E) 52 (1,036) (1,2972) 20
Total $ 41: $(2,679) 11F $ 55¢ $(3,237) 117

n/m = not meaningful

. Our Global Automotive Services offer a wide ranféirmancial services and products to retail autdeetonsumers, automotive
dealerships, and other commercial businesses. @haGAutomotive Services consist of three sepagpertable segments —
North American Automotive Finance operations, Ing&ional Automotive Finance operations, and Insceasperations. Th
products and services offered by our automotivarfae services include the purchase of retail iins¢ait sales contracts and leases,
offering of term loans to dealers, financing of ldedloorplans and other lines of credit to dealéeet leasing, and vehicle
remarketing services. In addition, ¢
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automotive finance services utilize bank depositlfng at Ally Bank, asset securitizations, wholarsales through our forward
flow agreements, and debt issuances, to the extailable, as components of our diversified funditrgtegy

We also offer vehicle service contracts and sefkctenmercial insurance coverages in the UniteceStand internationally. W
are a leading provider of vehicle service contragth mechanical breakdown and maintenance coverdder vehicle service
contracts offer vehicle owners and lessees mecalamipair protection and roadside assistance fararel used vehicles beyond -
manufacturer’s new vehicle warranty. Additionallye provide commercial insurance primarily coveridlgalers’ wholesale vehicle
inventory.

We have significantly streamlined our internatiopadsence in recent years to focus on strategi@tpes and improve
financial performance. Our International AutomotRki@ance operations will focus the majority of anitions in five core
international markets: Germany, the United Kingd&rgzil, Mexico, and our joint venture in China.

On July 13, 2010, we announced our intention toaneth the GMAC consumer and dealer-related automdithance operations
in the United States, Canada, and Mexico and hegjitg the Ally name during the month of August 20I8e Ally brand will be
used for automotive financing activities to suppb# following manufacturers: General Motors, CheysSaab, Thor Industries, ¢
FIAT Mexico. Our automotive finance operations @gsof these three countries will continue to opetmder the GMAC brand as
options for further use of the brand are evaluated.

On April 5, 2010, we announced that we expandedaatomotive finance operations to include recreatiehicles and were
selected by Thor Industries as the preferred firgupcovider for their retail customers. During 82010, we began accepting retail
finance applications for new and used recreatidnickes from Thor dealers in certain high volumdegaWe expect to expand ret
financing nationwide to all qualified dealers inorts U.S. network by the end of 2010.

On March 15, 2010, we announced that Spyker Cars Mhich recently purchased Saab Automobile froen&al Motors,
selected Ally as the preferred source of wholeaattretail financing for qualified Saab dealers enstomers in North America a
internationally.

On April 30, 2009, we entered into an agreemert Witrysler LLC (Chrysler) to provide automotivedircing products and
services to Chrysler dealers and customers. WElangsler's preferred provider of new wholesale ficiag for dealer inventory in
the United States, Canada, Mexico, and other iatEmal markets upon the mutual agreement of thigegaWe provide dealer
financing and services and retail financing to Gleydealers and customers as we deem appropeiateding to our credit policies
and in our sole discretion. Chrysler is obligategtovide us with certain exclusivity privilegeinding the use of Ally for
designated minimum threshold percentages of ceofa@hrysler’s retail financing subvention progranike agreement extends
through April 30, 2013, with automatic one-yeareweals unless either we or Chrysler provides sufithotice of nonrenewal.

. Our Mortgage operations engage in the originagamchase, servicing, sale, and securitization osamer (i.e., residential)
mortgage loans and mortgage-related products. Mge@perations include the Residential Capital, (REsCap) legal entity, the
mortgage operations of Ally Bank, and the Canadiantgage operations of ResMor Trust. In responsearket conditions, our
Mortgage operations substantially eliminated préidncof loans that do not conform to the undenmgtguidelines of Fannie Mae,
Freddie Mac, and Ginnie Mae in the United Ste

. Corporate and Other consist of our Commercial FBedBroup, certain equity investments, other cotgaaativities, the net impact
of treasury asset liability management (ALM) adtes, and reclassifications and eliminations betwibe reportable operating
segments
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Consolidated Results of Operations
The following table summarizes our consolidatedrafieg results excluding discontinued operationglie periods shown.

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30, June 30,
Favorable/ Favorable/
(unfavorable) (unfavorable)

($ in millions) 2010 2009 % change 2010 2009 % change
Net financing revenue
Total financing revenue and other interest incc  $2,90z $ 3,38¢ (14) $6,01¢ $6,91¢ (13)
Interest expens 1,664 1,94( 14 3,36¢ 3,93¢ 14
Depreciation expense on operating lease a 52€ 1,05¢ 50 1,182 2,11 44

Net financing revenu 712 393 81 1,46¢ 867 69
Other revenue
Net servicing incom 363 16¢ 11€ 61= 22C 18C
Insurance premiums and service revenue ee 477 49¢€ 4 94t 991 (5)
Gain on mortgage and automotive loans, 26€ 20¢€ 29 537 48¢ 10
(Loss) gain on extinguishment of d¢ 3 13 (129 (127) 657 (118
Other gain on investments, r 95 97 2 23t 83 18z
Other income, net of loss 19C (119) n/m 27¢ (323 18t

Total other revenu 1,38¢ 867 60 2,48¢ 2,117 17
Total net revenue 2,10C 1,26( 67 3,95¢ 2,98¢ 33
Provision for loan losses 22C 1,115 80 36€ 1,86: 80
Noninterest expense
Insurance losses and loss adjustment exp 224 261 14 43t 54€ 20
Other operating expens 1,21( 1,46 17 2,52¢ 2,83¢ 11

Total noninterest expen: 1,43¢ 1,72¢ 17 2,961 3,381 12
Income (loss) from continuing operations

before income tax expense 44¢€ (1,589 12¢ 627 (2,260 12¢
Income tax expense from continuing operati 33 1,09¢ 97 69 972 93
Net income (loss) from continuing operation: $ 41z $(2,679) 11F $ 55¢ $(3,237) 117

n/m = not meaningful

We earned net income from continuing operatiors4df3 million for the three months ended June 3@026ompared to a net loss of
$2.7 billion for the three months ended June 3092@nd net income of $558 million for the six nfeended June 30, 2010, compared to a
net loss of $3.2 billion for the six months endadel 30, 2009. Continuing operations for the threatims and six months ended
June 30, 2010, were favorably impacted by the l&zabbn of our consumer and commercial portfollwsl gains on the sale of foreclosed real
estate compared to losses and impairments in Zafifitionally we recognized favorable mortgage sang rights valuations that resulted in
increased net servicing income in 2010. Resultewatso positively impacted by lease portfolio reketing gains due to strong used vehicle
prices. Lastly, income tax expense decreased i Bflative to the prior year as a result of th@ahtax expense adjustment associated with
the recording of deferred tax liabilities relatedbur conversion from a limited liability companyd corporation in 2009.

Total financing revenue and other interest incomerehised by 14% and 13% for the three months amdaiths ended June 30, 2010,
respectively, compared to the same periods in 2009arily due to lower asset levels at our Int¢ioreal Automotive Finance operations and
Mortgage operations as a result of lower assetr@iipn levels and portfolio runoff. Our Internatal Automotive Finance operations
experienced lower consumer and commercial asselslee to lower consumer originations, lower dealeentory levels, and the runoff of
wind-down portfolios. Declines in asset levels at Mortgage operations resulted from asset salégpartfolio runoff. Operating lease
revenue (along with the related depreciation expeasour Global Automotive Services decreasedrasut of portfolio runoff and declining
originations due to our strategic decisions in 188 to significantly curtail leasing. The dece=aw/ere partially offset by lease portfolio
remarketing gains due to strong used vehicle pacesincreases in consumer and commercial finarreingnue related to the addition of non-
GM automotive financing business.
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Interest expense decreased $276 million and $58ibmin the three months and six months ended B&010, respectively, compared
to the same periods in 2009. Interest expense asedeb101 million and $207 million for the threentins and six months ended
June 30, 2010, respectively, within our Internaiohutomotive Finance operations and $71 milliod 145 million for the three months ¢
six months ended June 30, 2010, respectively, withir Mortgage operations primarily as a resulbefer average borrowings related to
lower asset levels. Additionally, interest expedeereased $99 million and $212 million for the ¢hneonths and six months ended
June 30, 2010, respectively, within Corporate attte©Oprimarily due to favorable mark-to-market dative activity.

Net servicing income was $363 million and $615 imrillfor the three months and six months ended 30n2010, respectively, compal
to $168 million and $220 million for the same pedgan 2009. The increases were primarily due tofable net valuations driven by slower
than expected prepayment speeds resulting frowithening of mortgage spreads and lower home pppeegiation. In contrast, during the
three months and six months ended June 30, 2008;a@gnized unfavorable mortgage servicing valmatiesulting from reduced cash flo
and increased prepayment assumptions due to loodgage interest rates.

Insurance premiums and service revenue earnedadedd% and 5% in the three months and six monttedeJune 30, 2010,
respectively, compared to the same periods in 2008.decreases were primarily driven by lower easifrom our U.S. extended service
contracts due to decreases in domestic written iprasover the last several years. These decreasespartially offset by increased volume
in our international operations.

Gain on mortgage and automotive loans increased&8%4.0% for the three months and six months edded 30, 2010, respectively,
compared to the same periods in 2009. The increhs@yy both periods were related to higher gamghe sale of retail automotive whole
loans during 2010 and unfavorable valuation adjestsitaken during 2009 on the held-$ale portfolio. Additionally, the increase duritg
three months ended June 30, 2010, was due to gaimortgage whole-loan sales in 2010, compared twhole-loan sales in 2009. These
increases were partially offset by higher gaingrensale of wholesale automotive receivables di2D@P compared to no gains in 2010 as
there were no off-balance sheet wholesale fundamgsactions.

We incurred a loss on extinguishment of debt ofriion and $121 million for the three months arnximonths ended June 30, 2010,
respectively, compared to gains of $13 million $687 million for the three months and six monthdezhJune 30, 2009, respectively. The
activity in all periods related to the extinguishmhef certain Ally debt.

Other gain on investments was $95 million and $288on for the three months and six months endatkJ30, 2010, respectively,
compared to $97 million and $83 million for thegrmonths and six months ended June 30, 2009 ctashe. The increase during the six
months ended June 30, 2010, was primarily relatdigher realized investment gains driven by ovenalrket improvement. During the six
months ended June 30, 2009, we recognized othertémaporary impairments of $47 million.

Other income, net of losses, increased $303 mitiioeh $598 million for the three months and six rherended June 30, 2010,
respectively, compared to the same periods in Z0B8.improvements were driven by the recognitiogaihs on the sale of foreclosed real
estate compared to losses and impairments in 200&thas the absence of loan origination inconferda in 2010 due to the fair value
option election for our held-for-sale loans durthg fourth quarter of 2009. Additionally, the sionths ended June 30, 2009, was favorably
impacted by improved derivative activity resultsldhe absence of an $87 million fair value impaimingoon the transfer of our resort final
business assets from held-for-sale to held-forstment during 2009. Partially offsetting the in@eauring the three months ended
June 30, 2010, was unfavorable net derivative igtiv

The provision for loan losses was $220 million 366 million for the three months and six monthdezhJune 30, 2010, respectively,
compared to $1.1 billion and $1.9 billion for trense periods in 2009. Our Mortgage operations’ fmiowi for loan losses decreased
$779 million and $1.3 billion as a result of theluetion in held-for-investment consumer financeereables due to the strategic initiatives
taken in late 2009. The provision for loan lossedibth the three months and six months ended 3an2009, were driven by significant
increases in delinquencies, severity, charge-affd,loan modification debt forgiveness in our daticerortgage loan portfolio; and higher
reserves within our real estate lending portfddor Commercial Finance Group’s provision for loasses decreased $162 million and
$147 million primarily due to decreases in spedifiserves on several resort finance assets amdscliéthin our European operations.
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Insurance losses and loss adjustment expensesdedr#4% and 20% for the three months and six mamttied June 30, 2010,
respectively, compared to the same periods in Z008.decreases were primarily driven by lower gserience within our Mortgage
operation’s captive reinsurance portfolio.

Other operating expenses decreased 17% and 11tefthiree months and six months ended June 30, 2&d@ectively, compared to the
same periods in 2009, reflecting our continued agpe&eduction efforts. The improvements were piiigndue to lower mortgage
representation and warranty expenses of $140 midlicd $264 million, reduced professional servigeeeses of $56 million and $85 million,
and lower full-service leasing vehicle maintenaoasts of $26 million and $29 million for the thraed six months ended June 30, 2010,
respectively. These favorable impacts were paytiliset by increased restructuring expenses ofillibn and $56 million primarily relate
to a corporate-wide cost savings initiative. Adatitlly, the six months ended June 30, 2010, wasdtag by higher compensation and
benefits expenses of $61 million related to thédboiit and centralization of global functions.

We recognized consolidated income tax expense dn#iBion and $69 million for the three months aid months ended June 30, 2010,
respectively, compared to $1.1 billion and $972iamlfor the same periods in 2009. The decreasé&sxiexpense during both periods were
primarily related to the establishment of deferadliabilities related to our conversion from mitied liability company to a corporation
effective June 30, 2009. Refer to Note 16 to thasbtidated Financial Statements for additional imfation regarding our change in tax
status.

Global Automotive Services

Results for Global Automotive Services are presthiereportable segment, which includes our Nonthefican Automotive Finance
operations, our International Automotive Financerations, and our Insurance operations.

Our Global Automotive Services operations offeridenrange of financial services and insurance potstio retail automotive consume
automotive dealerships, and other commercial basgse Our automotive finance services include @sioly retail installment sales contracts
and leases, offering term loans to dealers, fimandealer floorplans and other lines of creditéaldrs, and vehicle remarketing services. We
also are a leading provider of vehicle service i@mts with mechanical breakdown and maintenancerages, and we provide commercial
insurance primarily covering dealers’ wholesaleigiehinventory.

As a full-service automotive finance provider, vamtinue to hold a leadership position in both tetad wholesale financing for GM and
Chrysler consumers and dealers. We remain comntitedr strategic long-term partnerships with auitwe manufacturers, which we
believe are mutually beneficial to them, Ally, amar customers, the dealer community and consur@drishas recently announced that it
plans to acquire AmeriCredit Corp., an independemdmotive finance company, and it is possible thla¢r automotive manufacturers could
establish or acquire captive finance companiedilizaiother existing companies to support theiaficing needs. We believe that the breadth
of our products and scale of our operations pasitigs to succeed in a fair competitive market éfvear automotive partners establish or
acquire captive finance companies.
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North American Automotive Finance Operations

Results of Operation

The following table summarizes the operating rasoftour North American Automotive Finance openagidor the periods shown. The
amounts presented are before the elimination @frzals and transactions with our other reportalymeats.

Three months endec

Six months endec

June 30, June 30,
Favorable/ Favorable/
(unfavorable) (unfavorable)

($ in millions) 2010 2009 % change 2010 2009 % change
Net financing revenue
Consume $ 567 $ 462 22 $1,106 $ 961 15
Commercial 35C 26¢ 31 68€ 521 32
Loans hel-for-sale 29 67 (57 98 12z (20
Operating lease 95¢ 1,42¢ (33 2,05z 2,951 (30
Interest and dividend incon 39 69 43 95 137 (32)
Total financing revenue and other interest inct 1,94: 2,29: (15) 4,03¢ 4,692 (14)
Interest expens 56¢ 573 1 1,14: 1,14¢ —
Depreciation expense on operating lease a 48€ 99( 51 1,09t 1,957 44

Net financing revenu 88¢ 72¢ 22 1,802 1,59( 13
Other revenue
Servicing fee: 55 58 (5) 11t 12t (8)
Gain on automotive loans, r 66 46 43 17¢ 151 19
Other income 65 34 91 95 173 (45)

Total other revenu 18€ 13¢ 35 38¢ 44¢ (13
Total net revenue 1,07t 867 24 2,191 2,03¢ 7
Provision for loan losse: 10€ 15 n/m 207 14¢ (39
Noninterest expense 33¢ 401 15 701 77¢E 10
Income before income tax expens 63C 451 40 1,28: 1,112 15
Income tax expens 17¢€ 972 82 43% 1,01¢ 57
Net income (loss $ 454 $ (521) 187 $ 8C $ 96 n/m
Total assets $74,14¢  $64,04( 16 $74,14¢  $64,04( 16

n/m = not meaningful

Our North American Automotive Finance operationsied net income of $454 million and $850 milliom fbe three months and six
months ended June 30, 2010, respectively, comparadet loss of $521 million and net income of $8bion for the three months and six
months ended June 30, 2009, respectively. Theaserein net income for both periods were driveddxyreases in tax expense primarily
related to our conversion from a limited liabiltgmpany to a corporation effective June 30, 200@. three months and six months ended
June 30, 2010, were also favorably impacted byemsed loan origination volume related to improveshemic conditions and the addition
non-GM consumer and commercial automotive finantinginess. Additionally, we experienced strong mieting results, which reflected
continued strength in the used vehicle market aglden remarketing volumes compared to the threetihsosnd six months ended

June 30, 2009.

Total financing revenue and other interest incomerelased 15% and 14% for the three months anda@ixhmended June 30, 2010,
respectively, compared to the same periods in 2008.decreases were primarily related to a deatimperating lease revenue. Operating
lease revenue (along with the related depreciatiqgrense) decreased in both periods primarily daéedecline in the size of our operating
lease portfolio resulting from our strategic demisin late 2008 to significantly curtail leasinghi3 decision was based on credit market

dislocation and the significant decline in usedigieh
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prices that resulted in increasing residual losisggig 2008 and an impairment of our lease podfdliuring the latter half of 2009, we re-
entered the leasing market with more targeted Ipes#uct offerings. As a result, runoff of the leggortfolio exceeded new origination
volume. The decreases in operating lease reventelargely offset by associated declines in deptam expense, which were also favor:
impacted by remarketing gains as a result of captinstrength in the used vehicle market and higgraarketing volume. Consumer financ
revenue (combined with interest income on consuozars held-for-sale) increased 12% and 11% dulieghree months and six months
ended June 30, 2010, respectively, due to an iser@aconsumer asset levels primarily related éocinsolidation of consumer loans that
were previously classified as dilance sheet securitization transactions. Reflliote 19 to the Consolidated Financial Statememtfuther
information regarding the consolidation of thesgets Additionally, consumer loan origination vokiincreased as a result of improved
economic conditions and the addition of non-GM hass. The increase was partially offset by a chantfee consumer asset mix related to
the runoff of the higher yielding subprime autonaetfinancing portfolio. Commercial revenue incrah8&% and 32%, compared to the three
months and six months ended June 30, 2009, regelciprimarily due to increases in the commertah balance driven by the addition of
Chrysler wholesale floorplan business and incre&ddoroduction.

Net gain on automotive loans was $66 million an@%thillion for the three and six months ended 8®e2010, respectively, compared
to $46 million and $151 million for the same pesad 2009. The increases during both periods welegad to higher gains on the sale of
retail whole loans during 2010 and unfavorable &atin adjustments taken during 2009 on the heleséde portfolio. These increases were
partially offset by higher gains on the sale of Vésale receivables during 2009 compared to no gaig810 as there were no off-balance
sheet wholesale funding transactions.

Other income increased 91% and decreased 45%¢ddhtbée months and six months ended June 30, 284k ctively, compared to the
same periods in 2009. The increase during the ttm@®h period ended was primarily due to unfavardbteign currency movements during
the second quarter of 2009. The decrease duringixhmonth period ended was primarily due to unfabte swap mark-to-market activity
related to the held-for-sale loan portfolio in 2Cdf favorable foreign exchange related movemanmtsgithe six months ended
June 30, 2009.

The provision for loan losses was $106 million 207 million for the three months and six monthdezhJune 30, 2010, respectively,
compared to $15 million and $149 million for thersaperiods in 2009. The increases were primariBted to our retail balloon finance
contracts as both the three month and six montilogiem 2009 benefited from portfolio runoff andtaengthening used vehicle market. The
used vehicle market experienced decreased supbighwn turn alleviated pressure on residual valié® three-month and sironth period
in 2010 also benefitted from portfolio runoff and@ntinued strong used vehicle market but to selesstent than the same periods in 2009.
Partially offsetting the increase during the sixntis ended June 30, 2010, was improved loss peafurenin the remainder of the portfolio.

Noninterest expense decreased 15% and 10% folhitbe months and six months ended June 30, 20 ®atdgely, compared to the
same periods in 2009. The decreases were due pyitmalower compensation and benefits expensetduewer employee headcount
resulting from restructuring activities and unfaafole foreign currency movements during the threathmand six months ended
June 30, 2009.

Our North American Automotive Finance operatiorsuimed income tax expense of $176 million and $#88on for the three months
and six months ended June 30, 2010, respectivetypared to $972 million and $1.0 billion for theed months and six months ended
June 30, 2009, respectively. The decreases inx@anse during both periods were primarily relatethe establishment of deferred tax
liabilities related to our conversion from a lindtéability company to a corporation effective JuB®& 2009. Refer to Note 16 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for additionfrimation regarding our change in tax status.
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International Automotive Finance Operations
Results of Operation

The following table summarizes the operating rasoftour International Automotive Finance operatiencluding discontinued
operations for the periods shown. The amounts ptedeare before the elimination of balances anus#aetions with our other reportable
segments and include eliminations of balances mm$&ctions among our North American AutomotiveaRe operations and Insurance
operations.

Three months endec Six months endec
June 30, June 30,
Favorable/ Favorable/
(unfavorable) (unfavorable)

($ in millions) 2010 2009 % change 2010 2009 % change
Net financing revenue
Consume $ 267 $ 344 (22) $ 551 $ 69C (20)
Commercial 92 12¢€ 27) 19z 26C (26)
Loans hel-for-sale 5 — n/m 9 — n/m
Operating lease 52 78 (33 11¢€ 154 (23
Interest and dividend incon 6 16 (63 16 30 47
Total financing revenue and other interest

income 422 564 (25) 887 1,13¢ (22
Interest expens 20¢ 30¢ 33 442 65C 32
Depreciation expense on operating lease a 40 66 39 88 15€ 44
Net financing revenu 174 18¢ (8) 35¢€ 32¢ 9
Other revenue
Gain (loss) on automotive loans, | 3 (2 n/m 10 2 n/m
Other income 83 95 (13 16¢ 165 2
Total other revenu 86 93 (8) 17¢ 162 10
Total net revenue 26C 282 8 53t 491 9
Provision for loan losses 11 58 81 34 10¢ 69
Noninterest expense 144 191 25 354 38¢ 9
Income (loss) from continuing operations

before income tax expense (benefit) 10t 33 n/m 147 @) n/m
Income tax expense (benefit) from continuing

operations 4 14E 97 9 13¢€ 107
Net income (loss) from continuing operations $ 101 $ (112) 19C $ 15€ $ (14%) n/m
Total assets $16,59¢  $25,59' (35) $16,59¢ $25,59' (35)

n/m = not meaningful

Our International Automotive Finance operationsiedrnet income from continuing operations of $10lian and $156 million during
the three months and six months ended June 30, 28dfikectively, compared to net losses from comtgioperations of $112 million and
$145 million during the three months and six morghded June 30, 2009, respectively. The three manrttl six months ended June 30, 2
were favorably impacted by lower income tax expahgeto our conversion from a limited liability cpamy to a corporation effective
June 30, 2009, lower funding costs commensurate adbwer asset base, and lower provision for loages associated with improving cre
performance. Partially offsetting the improvemeanboth periods was lower financing revenue resgltiom the wind-down of operations in
certain countries and lower GM deliveries.

Total financing revenue and other interest incomerelised 25% and 22% for the three months andaixhmended June 30, 2010,
respectively, compared to the same periods in 2008.decreases were primarily due to decreasemsumer and commercial asset levels
driven by the combination of lower consumer origiimas, lower dealer inventory levels, and the rfiedéfwind-down portfolios.
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Interest expense decreased 33% and 32% for the twaths and six months ended June 30, 2010, tasggccompared to the same
periods in 2009. The decreases were primarily dueductions in borrowing levels consistent witloaer asset base. The decrease was
partially offset during the six months ended JuBeZ®10, by unfavorable foreign currency movements.

Other income decreased 13% and increased 2% fdoinrtee months and six months ended June 30, 284pectively, compared to the
same periods in 2009. The increase during the sixtins ended June 30, 2010, was primarily relatéaviorable mark-to-market adjustments
on derivatives.

The provision for loan losses was $11 million aBd #illion for the three months and six months ehdiene 30, 2010, respectively,
compared to $58 million and $109 million for thergaperiods in 2009. The decreases were primargytdimproved loss performance in the
consumer portfolio.

Noninterest expense decreased 25% and 9% for e thonths and six months ended June 30, 201&atdggly, compared to the same
periods in 2009. The decreases in both periods prarearily due to lower compensation and benefitgeth by employee headcount
reductions and decreases in information technoltagyljities, and professional services expenseslithahally, the three months ended
June 30, 2010, were impacted by favorable foreignency movements.

Income tax expense decreased $141 million and 8iHidn for the three months and six months endeteJ30, 2010, respectively,
compared to the same periods in 2009, primarilytdube impact of our conversion from a limitedolily company to a corporation as of
June 30, 2009.

Automotive Finance

Our North American Automotive Finance operationd aar International Automotive Finance operatiorsvjgle automotive financing
services to consumers and to automotive dealersted businesses. For consumers, we offer ratthaotive financing and leasing for new
and used vehicles; for our commercial automotimaricing operations, we fund dealer purchases ofamelwsed vehicles through wholesale
or floorplan financing.

Automotive Financing Volume
The following table summarizes our new and usedcleleonsumer financing volume and our share of @Mil sales.

Ally consumer

automotive % Share of
financing volume GM retall sales
Three months ended June, (units in thousands 2010 2009 2010 2009
GM new vehicles
North America
Retail contract: 15C 124 32 28
Leases 17 — 4 —
Total North Americe 167 124 36 28
International (retail contracts and leases) (a 92 82 17 15
Total GM new units finance 25¢ 20¢€ 26 21
Used units finance 75 35
Non-GM new units finance
Chrysler new units finance 96 8
Other noi-GM units financed (c 26 9
Total nor-GM new units finance 122 17
Total consumer automotive financing volu 45€ 25¢
(@) E>ic|udes financing volume and GM retail salediscontinued operations as well as GM retail &b other countries in which GM operates and mcl we have no financing
volume.

(b) Includes vehicles financed through a joint weatin China in which Ally owns a minority interegthe three months ended June 30, 2010 and 20€l@da24 thousand and
15 thousand vehicles, respective

(c) Includes vehicles financed through a joint weatin China in which Ally owns a minority interegthe three months ended June 30, 2010 and 20€l@d:17 thousand and
6 thousand vehicles, respective
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Ally consumer

automotive % Share of
financing volume GM retall sales
Six months ended June , (units in thousands 2010 2009 2010 2009
GM new vehicles
North America
Retail contract: 25¢ 19C 31 23
Leases 34 — 4 —
Total North Americe 292 19C 35 23
International (retail contracts and leases) (a 17¢€ 16€ 16 17
Total GM new units finance 46€ 35¢€ 24 20
Used units finance 14C 62
Non-GM new units finance
Chrysler new units finance 15z 9
Other noi-GM units financed (c 44 14
Total nor-GM new units finance 197 23
Total consumer automotive financing volu 80% 441
(@) Excludes financing volume and GM retail salediscontinued operations as well as GM retail sébe other countries in which GM operates and friclv we have no financing
volume.

(b) Includes vehicles financed through a joint venfar€hina in which Ally owns a minority interest. &lsix months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, inélédeousand and 27 thouse
vehicles, respectivel

(c) Includes vehicles financed through a joint venfar€hina in which Ally owns a minority interest. &lsix months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, in@8dkousand and 10 thouse
vehicles, respectivel)

Our consumer automotive financing volume and patietr levels are significantly influenced by theaure, timing, and extent of GM'’s
use of rate, residual, and other financing incestifior marketing purposes on consumer retail auismoontracts and leases. Financing
volume was higher in 2010 reflecting improved gaheconomic conditions compared to historically iodustry sales and leases in 2009,
and the addition of the Chrysler retail activityM@enetration levels were higher in 2010 due tbteg underwriting standards in 2009 as we
aligned our originations to levels consistent waHuced funding sources as a result of the disyojiti the capital markets.

Retail and lease contracts acquired by us thatideel rate and residual subvention from GM, paydbktly or indirectly to GM dealers
as a percentage of total new retail and lease atstacquired, were as follows.

Six months endec

June 30,
2010 2009
GM and affiliates subvented contracts acqu
North American operatior 52% 72%
International operations (. 37% 64%

(@) Represents subvention for continuing operationg.c

Retail contracts acquired that included rate as@tiual subvention from GM decreased as a percewifaigéal new retail contracts
acquired due to reductions in our standard ratég tmore competitive with market pricing, coupleithva reduction in incentivized programs
offered by GM.
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The following table summarizes our commercial whale finance receivables of new and used vehicléshare of dealer inventory in

markets where we operated at June 30, 2010, anehiesr 31, 2009.

% Share of
dealer inventory (a)

June 30 December 3. June 30 December 3.

(% in millions) 2010 2009 2010 2009
GM new vehicles

North America $ 14,78( $ 12,85¢ 86 92

International (b) (c 3,97¢ 3,691 80 77
Total GM vehicles finance 18,75¢ 16,55¢
Used vehicles finance 3,59( 3,13¢
Non-GM vehicles finance:

Chrysler new vehicles financt 5,87¢ 4,84¢

Other noi-GM vehicles financed (c 2,13¢ 1,89:
Total nor-GM vehicles finance 8,01: 6,73¢
Total commercial wholesale finance receival $ 30,35¢ $ 26,43(

(@) Share of dealer inventory based on end of periadedénventory for North America and wholesale fineng share of GM shipments for Internatior
(b) Excludes commercial wholesale finance recemslaind dealer inventory of discontinued operatamnwell as dealer inventory for other countriewiich GM operates and in which

we had no commercial wholesale finance receiva

(¢) Includes $1.2 billion and $852 million at JB®@ 2010, and December 31, 2009, respectivelyebfales financed through a joint venture in Chimavhich Ally owns a minority

interest.

(d) Includes $11 million and $8 million at June 20,10, and December 31, 2009, respectively, ofclesifinanced through a joint venture in China tmick Ally owns a minority

interest.

Our commercial wholesale finance receivable pragloohtinue to be the primary funding sources for &M Chrysler dealers. Total
commercial wholesale finance receivables increfead $26.4 billion at December 31, 2009, to $30lHom at June 30, 2010, or an increase
of 15%. The increase was driven by increasing \elsiales and the corresponding increase in vepio@uction and dealer inventories.
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Insurance Operations
Results of Operation

The following table summarizes the operating rasoftour Insurance operations excluding discontinygerations for the periods shov
The amounts presented are before the eliminatidrainces and transactions with our other operagggnents.

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30, June 30,
Favorable/ Favorable/
(unfavorable) (unfavorable)

($ in millions) 2010 2009 % change 2010 2009 % change
Insurance premiums and other income
Insurance premiums and service revenue

earnec $ 46¢ $ 484 (3) $ 92¢ $ 967 4
Investment incom 86 88 2 227 93 144
Other income 18 13 38 38 36 6
Total insurance premiums and other

income 578 58E 2 1,19¢ 1,09¢ 9
Expense
Insurance losses and loss adjustment

expense: 224 224 — 42C 444 5
Acquisition and underwriting expen 241 262 8 483 517 7
Total expens: 465 48€ 4 903 961 6
Income from continuing operations

before income tax expense 10¢ 99 9 291 13t 11€
Income tax expense from continuing

operations 22 28 21 83 34 (149
Net income from continuing operations $ 86 $ 71 21 $ 20¢ $ 101 10€
Total assets $8,5572 $11,58¢ (26) $8,55- $11,58¢ (26)
Insurance premiums and service

revenue written $ 41F $ 35C 19 $ 83¢ $ 70z 19
Combined ratio (a) 96.(% 97.8% 93.&% 96.(%

(@) Management uses combined ratio as a primarguneaf underwriting profitability with its compons measured using accounting principles geneaaltgpted in the United States
of America. Underwriting profitability is indicatealy a combined ratio under 100% and is calculagetha sum of all incurred losses and expensesu@ing interest and income tax
expense) divided by the total of premiums and serv@venues earned and other incc

Our Insurance operations earned net income frortiraong operations of $86 million and $208 millior the three months and six
months ended June 30, 2010, respectively, compar®él million and $101 million for the three mosidind six months ended June 30, 2
respectively. The increase in the three-month penit income was primarily attributable to loweqaisition and underwriting expenses.
During the six-month period, net income increasecharily due to higher realized investment gainsel by overall market improvement.

Insurance premiums and service revenue earned 4&sriillion and $929 million for the three monthlasix months ended
June 30, 2010, respectively, compared to $484anillind $967 million for the same periods in 20@88utance premiums and service revenue
earned decreased during both periods and was [il§irdéren by lower earnings from our U.S. extendsavice contracts due to a decreas
domestic written premium over the last several yethese decreases were partially offset by inegeaslume in our international operatic

Investment income totaled $86 million and $227 imillfor the three months and six months ended 3002010, respectively, compared
to $88 million and $93 million for the same periad2009. The increase during the six-month peisagrimarily due to higher realized
investment gains driven by overall market improvatrand the sale of our tax-exempt securities plotf®uring the six months ended
June 30, 2009, we realized other-than-temporanaimpents of $45 million. The increase in investmianbme was also slightly offset by
reductions in the size of the investment portfclibe value of the investment portfolio was $4.%doil and $4.7 billion at June 30, 2010 and
2009, respectively.
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Insurance losses and loss adjustment expensesp@24emillion and $420 million for the three mon#rsd six months ended
June 30, 2010, respectively, compared to $224anillind $444 million for the same periods in 20a%e @ecrease during the six months
ended June 30, 2010, was primarily related to a@. dealership-related products that experiencsdrincurred losses due to lower dealer
inventory levels as well as decreased severitpsgds compared to 2009. This decrease was padftdbt by increased volume at our
international operations that experienced higheesty of losses compared to 2009.

Acquisition and underwriting expense was $241 orilland $483 million for the three months and sinthe ended June 30, 2010,
respectively, compared to $262 million and $517iamilfor the same periods in 2009. Acquisition amdlerwriting expenses decreased
during both periods due to lower expenses in o&. dealership-related products compared to the gameds in 2009. These decreases were
partially offset by increased expenses within odernational operations.

Income tax expense was $22 million and $83 milfmmthe three months and six months ended Jun2®@, respectively, compared to
$28 million and $34 million for the same period2D09. Income tax expense decreased for the sixe@mded June 30, 2010, due to higher
income from continuing operations before incomeand our conversion from a limited liability comny to a corporation effective
June 30, 2009.

Insurance premiums and service revenue written$4a8 million and $838 million for the three mon#rad six months ended
June 30, 2010, respectively, compared to $350amillind $702 million for the same periods in 20@88utance premiums and service revenue
written increased due to higher written premiumeun U.S. dealershipelated products, particularly our vehicle sengoatract products, ai
international operations. Vehicle service contrawenue is earned over the life of the servicereahbn a basis proportionate to the expected
loss pattern. Due to this policy, the majority afr@ings from vehicle service contracts written dgrihe three months and six months ended
June 30, 2010, will be recognized as income inrtuperiods.
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Mortgage Operations

Results of Operations

The following table summarizes the operating rasfgt our Mortgage operations excluding discontthaperations for the periods
shown. Our Mortgage operations include the ResQdplegal entity, the mortgage operations of AllyrRaand the Canadian mortgage
operations of ResMor Trust. The amounts presenmtebdefore the elimination of balances and trangastivith our other reportable segments.

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30, June 30,
Favorable/ Favorable/
(unfavorable) (unfavorable)

($ in millions) 2010 2009 % change 2010 2009 % change
Net financing revenue
Total financing revenue and other interest

income $ 45€ $ 51C (12) $ 93¢ $ 1,01¢ (8)
Interest expens 302 372 19 602 147 18

Net financing revenu 154 137 12 33€ 26¢ 25
Servicing fee: 32¢ 334 2 652 672 3
Servicing asset valuation and hedge activities,

net (21) (225) 91 (154 (577 73

Total servicing income, n 307 10¢ 182 49¢ 95 n/m
Gain on mortgage loans, r 197 167 18 34¢ 347 —
Gain on extinguishment of de — — — — 4 (200
Other income, net of loss 27 (360 10¢ 54 (474 111

Total other revenue (expen: 531 (84) n/m 90C (28) n/m
Total net revenue 68t 53 n/m 1,23¢ 241 n/m
Provision for loan losses 92 871 89 99 1,432 93
Noninterest expense 362 517 30 751 1,071 30
Income (loss) from continuing operations

before income tax (benefit) expense 23C (1,339 117 38¢€ (2,262) 117
Income tax (benefit) expense from continuing

operations (2) (183) (99) 6 (270) (102)
Net income (loss) from continuing

operations $ 232 $(1,157) 12C $ 38C $(1,997) 11¢
Total assets $46,04: $44.,40: 4 $46,04: $44.,40: 4

n/m = not meaningful

Our Mortgage operations earned net income fromiroing operations of $232 million and $380 millitor the three months and six
months ended June 30, 2010, respectively, companeet losses from continuing operations of $1lohi and $2.0 billion for the three
months and six months ended June 30, 2009, regplctihe 2010 results from continuing operatiorsevprimarily driven by the realizati
of the benefits of the strategic actions takeretbcertain legacy mortgage assets resulting irre¢etassification of these loans from held-for-
investment to held-for-sale in the fourth quarte2@09. These actions resulted in lower provisimniéan losses. Also contributing to the
increases were lower mortgage representation angimigt expense and higher net servicing incomes@li@vorable impacts were partially
offset during both periods by decreased incomédmefits.

Net financing revenue was $154 million and $33diamilfor the three months and six months ended 30n2010, respectively,
compared to $137 million and $269 million for treeree periods in 2009. Net financing revenue wasrtblyg impacted by lower interest
expense driven primarily by a reduction in averageowings commensurate with a smaller asset bhadéoaver cost of funds. Additionally,
lower financing revenue and other interest incomas due primarily to a decline in average assetdeared lower trading securities interest
income.
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Net servicing income was $307 million and $498 imnillfor the three months and six months ended 30n2010, respectively, compal
to $109 million and $95 million for the same pesad 2009. The increases were primarily due tofable net valuations driven by slower
than expected prepayment speeds resulting frowithening of mortgage spreads and lower home pppeegiation. In contrast, during the
three months and six months ended June 30, 2008;a@gnized unfavorable mortgage servicing valmatiesulting from reduced cash flo
and increased prepayment assumptions due to loodgage interest rates.

The net gain on mortgage loans was $197 million%84B million for the three months and six monthdexl June 30, 2010, respectively,
compared to $167 million and $347 million for treeree periods in 2009. The increase during the tm@®ths ended June 30, 2010, was
primarily due to gains on whole-loan sales in 20@Mhpared to no whole-loan sales in 2009.

Other income, net of losses, was $27 million andl ®ilion for the three months and six months endlade 30, 2010, respectively,
compared to losses of $360 million and $474 milfionthe same periods in 2009. The increases ieratitome for both periods were driven
primarily by the recognition of gains on the saldaveclosed real estate in 2010 compared to logsddmpairments in 2009 as well as the
absence of loan origination income deferral in 208 to the fair value option election for our kédd-sale loans during the third quarter of
20009.

The provision for loan losses was $92 million af8 #illion for the three months and six months ehdiene 30, 2010, respectively,
compared to $871 million and $1.4 billion for tleere periods in 2009. The provision for both period8010 was impacted by the reduction
in held-for-investment consumer finance receivabkes result of the strategic initiatives takefate 2009. The provision for loan losses for
both the three months and six months ended Juri2Z0B@, were driven by significant increases inrdgliencies, severity, charge-offs, and
loan modification debt forgiveness in our domestimrtgage loan portfolio and by higher reserves iwithur real estate lending portfolio.

Total noninterest expense decreased 30% for betthtee months ended June 30, 2010, and the sithmended June 30, 2010,
compared to the same periods in 2009. The 200%sésaluded significant representation and waryaxpense due to increased actual and
projected repurchase demands and increasing seaadtdelinquency assumptions. Additionally, dur2@99, our captive reinsurance
portfolio experienced deterioration due to highelirtjuencies, which drove higher insurance reseilies decrease during the three months
ended June 30, 2010, was partially offset by untavie foreign currency movements on hedge positions

We recognized an income tax benefit of $2 millioid ancome tax expense of $6 million for the thremnths and six months ended
June 30, 2010, respectively, compared to incoméeaefits of $183 million and $270 million for teame periods in 2009. The decreases in
income tax benefit for both periods were primaréiated to losses realized by our domestic C-caitpmr entities, Ally Bank and CapRe of
Vermont, in 2009 and tax benefits recorded by tMAG Mortgage Group Parent resulting from the cosiar of its parent from a tax
partnership to a corporation effective June 309200

The Federal Housing Finance Agency (FHFA), as amaser of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac (the GSEs)panced on July 12, 2010,
that it issued 64 subpoenas to various entitiekisgelocuments related to private-label mortgagekbd securities in which the GSEs had
invested. Residential Funding Company, LLC, GMACrMage, LLC, and GMAC Mortgage USA Corporation, lreaairect wholly-owned
subsidiaries of Ally Financial Inc., received ssttbpoenas and are currently formulating a respdhnisepremature to speculate as to what, if
any, actions may be taken by the FHFA as a re$tifiese requests.

Mortgage Loan Production and Servicing

Mortgage loan production was $13.5 billion and $2tillion for the three months and six months endiede 30, 2010, respectively,
compared to $18.8 billion and $32.2 billion for #wme periods in 2009. Mortgage operations domiesticproduction decreased $5.3 billi
or 29%, and $5.5 billion, or 18%, for the three tsrand six months ended June 30, 2010, respsctomhpared to the same periods in
2009. Mortgage operations international loan préidndncreased $21 million, or 6%, and $111 million 21%, for the three months and six
months ended June 30, 2010, respectively, comparbe same periods in 2009. International mortdage production primarily represents
insured mortgages in Canada. All other internatitoen production has been suspended.
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The following table summarizes consumer mortgage fgroduction for the periods shown.

Three months endec Six months endec
June 30, June 30,

($ in millions) 2010 2009 2010 2009
Production by product tyg

1st Mortgage $ 13,16( $ 18,48( $ 26,12¢ $ 31,67¢

Home equity — — — —

Total U.S. productiol 13,16( 18,48( 26,12¢ 31,67¢

International productio 34¢€ 32t 63€ 527
Total production by product tyg $ 13,50¢ $ 18,80¢ $ 26,76¢ $ 32,208
U.S. production by chann

Retail and direct channe $ 1,46¢€ $ 2,33 $ 3,42¢ $ 3,86¢

Correspondent chann 11,69/ 16,147 22,70( 27,81
Total U.S. production by chanr $ 13,16( $ 18,48( $ 26,12¢ $ 31,67¢
Number of U.S. produced loa(in units)

Retail and direct channe 7,07 11,30¢ 16,52 19,10¢

Correspondent chann 51,63} 75,09¢ 99,50 128,46«
Total number of U.S. produced loz 58,71( 86,40¢ 116,02 147,56¢

The following table summarizes the primary mortgkogen servicing portfolio.

Primary mortgage loan servicing portfolio

June 30, 201( December 31, 200
Dollar amount Dollar amoun
Number Number
($ in millions) of loans of loans of loans of loans
On-balance sheet mortgage lo:
Held-for-sale and he-for-investmen 296,25! $ 23,98¢ 276,99t $ 26,33:
Operations he-for-sale 71,04: 13,19¢ 17,26( 3,16(
Off-balance sheet mortgage lo:
Loans sold to thir-party investor:
Securitizations 404,80« 63,91° 489,25¢ 71,50¢
Whole-loan and agenc 1,615,233 261,43: 1,585,28: 252,43(
Purchased servicing righ 82,38¢ 4,36¢ 88,51¢ 4,80(
Operations he-for-sale 24,82¢ 4,061 82,97¢ 17,52¢
Total primary mortgage loan servicing portfolio 2,494,54! $ 370,95! 2,540,28! $ 375,75¢

(@) Excludes loans for which we acted as a subs@rvBubserviced loans totaled 124,327 with an idnmancipal balance of $27.4 billion at June 301Q, and 129,954 with an unpaid
balance of $28.7 billion at December 31, 2C
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Loans Outstanding
Mortgage loans held-for-sale were as follows.

($ in millions) June 30, 201 December 31, 20(
Prime conforming $ 3,084 $ 3,76¢
Prime nonconformin 931 1,221
Prime secor-lien 73¢ 77€
Governmen 3,43¢ 3,91¢
Nonprime T7T€ 97¢
International 152 622
Total (a) (b) 9,11¢ 11,28:
Net discount: (24¢) (319
Fair value option election adjustme 10z 19
Lower of cost or fair value adjustme (60) (115)
Total, net (& $ 8,917 $ 10,86

(@) Includes $2.1 billion and $1.9 billion at J® 2010, and December 31, 2009, respectivelyoais held by off-balance sheet securitization $rirstvhich we hold a conditional
repurchase option. The net carrying value of theaes is equal to the unpaid principal balai

(b) Includes unpaid principal balance write-dowh$2.5 billion and $3.6 billion as of June 30, 2046d December 31, 2009, respectively. The amaretfor write-downs taken upon
the transfer of mortgage loans from t-for-investment to he-for-sale during the fourth quarter of 2009 and ch-offs taken in accordance with our -day charg-off policy.

Held-for-investment consumer mortgage finance ked#es and loans were as follows.

($ in millions) June 30, 201 December 31, 20(
Prime conforming $ 35¢ $ 38¢
Prime nonconformin 9,39¢ 8,24¢
Prime secor-lien 3,72% 3,201
Governmen — —
Nonprime 6,14¢ 6,05¢
International 1,05¢ 32t
Total 20,68: 18,21¢
Net premiums 23 10C
Fair value option election adjustme (7,156 (5,789
Allowance for loan losse (63€) (640
Total, net (a) (b $ 12,91: $ 11,88t¢

(@) AtJune 30, 2010, the carrying value of morggl@ns held-for-investment relating to securitmatransactions accounted for as on-balance sleeeritizations and pledged as
collateral totaled $2.5 billion. The investors lrese o-balance sheet securitizations have no recoursertother assets beyond the loans pledged as call:
(b) Refer to theHigher Risk Mortgage Loardiscussion within the MD&£Risk Managemetsection for additional informatiol

ASU 2009-16 Accounting for Transfers of Financial Assetsnd ASU 2009-171mprovements to Financial Reporting by Enterprises
Involved with Variable Interest Entitit, which amended Accounting Standards Codificatie®) Topic 860 Transfers and Servicingand
ASC Topic 810Consolidation, became effective on January 1, 2010, and reqtliegrospective consolidation of certain secuation
assets and liabilities that were previously hefebalance sheet. The adoption on day one resuit&d.2 billion in offbalance sheet consun
mortgage loans being brought on-balance sheetr Refdote 1 to the Consolidated Financial Stateméat further information regarding the
adoption of ASU 2009-16 and ASU 2009-17.
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Corporate and Other

The following table summarizes the activities off@wrate and Other excluding discontinued operationthe periods shown. Corporate
and Other represents our Commercial Finance GiRrfgin equity investments, other corporate aéisjtthe net impact of treasury asset
liability management (ALM), and reclassificationsdaeliminations between the reportable operatiggnants.

Three months endec Six months endec
June 30, June 30,
Favorable/ Favorable/
(unfavorable) (unfavorable)

($ in millions) 2010 2009 % change 2010 2009 % change
Net financing loss
Total financing revenue and other interest

income $ 81 $ 23 n/m $ 15¢€ $ 74 111
Interest expens 58€ 68t 14 1,182 1,394 15

Net financing los: (505) (662) 24 (1,026 (1,320 22
Other (expense) revenur
(Loss) gain on extinguishment of d¢ (©)] 13 (123 (121 653 (119
Other gain on investments, r 12 56 (79 3 49 (94)
Other income, net of loss 3 66 (95) (58) (265) 78

Total other revenue (expen: 12 13t (92) (17¢) 437 (240
Total net (expense) revenue (493 (527) 6 (1,202 (883) (36)
Provision for loan losses 11 178 94 26 178 85
Noninterest expense 122 131 6 252 182 (38)
Loss from continuing operations before

income tax (benefit) expense (627) (831) 25 (1,480 (1,239 (20
Income tax (benefit) expense from continuing

operations (167) 134 n/m (444) 54 n/m
Net loss from continuing operations $ (460 $ (965 52 $(1,036) $(1,297) 20
Total assets $31,46¢ $35,62: (12) $31,46¢ $35,62: (12)

n/m = not meaningful

Net loss from continuing operations for Corporatd ®&ther was $460 million and $1.0 billion for tireee months and six months ended
June 30, 2010, respectively, compared to $9650niind $1.3 billion for the three months and sinthe ended June 30, 2009, respectively.
Both periods were favorably impacted by incomeliemefits related to our conversion from a limitedbility company to a corporation as of
June 30, 2009, and valuation allowance adjustnier#810. Interest income on available-for-sale sigies increased during both periods due
to a higher average asset balance. Additionally stk months ended June 30, 2010, increased dagdmble net derivative activity. Partia
offsetting the increase during the three monthedrldine 30, 2009, was unfavorable net derivatitigitgc The increase during the six
months ended June 30, 2009, was partially offset $$21 million loss related to the extinguishmaintertain Ally debt, which includes
$101 million of accelerated amortization of oridirssue discount compared to a $634 million gaithi prior year.

Corporate and Other also includes the results pCaunmercial Finance Group. Our Commercial FinaBosup earned net income from
continuing operations of $17 million and $26 mitljoespectively, compared to net losses from camitmoperations of $99 million and
$187 million for the three months and six monthdeghJune 30, 2009, respectively. The increasestimoome for both periods were
primarily due to decreases in specific reservesemeral resort finance assets and clients withirsomopean operations. Additionally, the
favorable variance for the six months ended Jun@@00, was impacted by the absence of an $87omiliir value impairment recognized
upon transfer of the resort finance business afsetsheld-for-sale to held-for-investment durin@0®. Partially offsetting the increases in
both periods was higher income tax expense retatbdyher pretax income.
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Risk Management

Managing the risk-to-reward trade off is a fundataboomponent of operating our business. Througtrisk management process, we
monitor potential risks and manage the risk to kbivour risk appetite. The primary risks incluctedit, market, operational, liquidity, and
legal and compliance risk. For more informationoom risk management process, refer to the Risk lgema&nt MD&A section of our
2009 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Loan and Lease Exposure
The following table summarizes the gross carryiae of our loan and lease exposures.

($ in millions) June 30, 201 December 31, 20(
Held-for-investment loan $ 92,71¢ $ 77,70
Held-for-sale loan: 10,38: 20,62
Total or-balance sheet loal $ 103,09¢ $ 98,32¢
Off-balance sheet securitized lo: $ 80,19:¢ $ 107,15¢
Operating lease assets, $ 11,89: $ 15,99:
Serviced loans and leas $ 483,85! $ 491,32t

The risks inherent in our loan and lease exposan@argely driven by changes in the overall econamd its impact to our borrowers.
The potential financial statement impact of theg@osures varies depending on the accounting cleatifn and future expected disposition
strategy. We retain the majority of our automotvans as they complement our core business modepikharily originate mortgage loans
with the intent to sell them and, as such, retaiy a small percentage of the loans that we undrwroans that we do not intend to retain
are sold to investors, such as U.S. agencies anmseped entities. However, we may retain an interesgght to service these loans. We
ultimately manage the associated risks based ourttierlying economics of the exposure.

Credit Risk Management

During the first six months of 2010, the finanaisdrkets experienced some improvement; however, nigimployment and the distress
in the housing market persisted, creating uncestdar the financial services sector. Since theebi$ this turbulent economic cycle, we saw
both the housing and vehicle markets significad#gline affecting the credit quality for both ownsumer and commercial segments. We
have seen signs of stabilization in some housimvahicle markets; however, we anticipate the uag®y will continue through the
remainder of 2010.

In response to the dynamic credit environment ahdranarket conditions, we continued to follow arenconservative lending policy
across our lines of business, generally focusimdemding to more creditworthy borrowers. For exénpur mortgage operations eliminated
production of new home equity loans. We also sigaiftly limited production of loans that do not émm to the underwriting guidelines of
Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, and Ginnie Mae. In addjt@fective January 2009, we ceased originatirigraative financing volume through
Nuvell, our nonprime automotive financing operasic

Additionally, we have implemented numerous initiasi in an effort to mitigate loss and provide ongasupport to customers in financ
distress. For example, as part of our participaitiocertain governmental programs, we may offertgeage loan restructurings to our
borrowers. Generally these modifications providelibrrower with some form of concession and, tleeegfare deemed to be troubled debt
restructurings (TDRs). Refer to Note 1 to the Cdidated Financial Statements in our 2009 Annuald®epn Form 10-K for additional
information on TDRs. Furthermore, we have integnditsigned proprietary programs aimed at homeowateaisk of foreclosure. Each
program has unique qualification criteria for tteerower to meet as well as associated modificatigiions that we analyze to determine the
best solution for the borrower. We have also imgetad periodic foreclosure moratoriums that arégtesl to provide borrowers with extra
time to sort out their financial difficulties whildlowing them to stay in their homes.

We have developed policies and practices that@rergtted to maintaining an independent and ongassgessment of credit risk and
quality. Our policies require an objective and tiynessessment of the overall quality of the consusnel
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commercial loan portfolios including identificatiarfi relevant trends that affect the collectabitifythe portfolios, isolation of segments of the
portfolios that are potential problem areas, idexaiion of loans with potential credit weaknessey] assessment of the adequacy of internal
credit risk policies and procedures to monitor cbhamze with relevant laws and regulations.

We manage credit risk based on the risk profilthefborrower, the source of repayment, the undeglgollateral, and current market
conditions. Our business is focused on automotagdential real estate, commercial real estat®cammercial lending. We classify these
loans as either consumer or commercial and analght risk in each as described below. We mortftercredit risk profile of individual
borrowers and the aggregate portfolio of borrowersither within a designated geographic region oariqular product or industry segme
To mitigate risk concentrations, we take part @naales, syndications, and/or third-party insuganc

On-balance Sheet Portfolio

Our on-balance sheet portfolio includes both heldifivestment and held-for-sale finance receivablas loans. As of June 30, 2010, this
primarily included $75.7 billion of automotive finee receivables and loans and $24.5 billion of gawé finance receivables and loans.
Within this portfolio we have elected to accountdertain loans at fair value. The valuation alloegrecorded on fair value elected loans is
separate from the allowance for loan losses. Chaingine fair value of loans are classified as gairmortgage and automotive loans, net, in
the Consolidated Statement of Income.

During the three months ended June 30, 2010, weduexecuted on our strategy of discontinuing selting nonstrategic operations in
both our international mortgage and automotive misrkRefer to Note 2 to the Consolidated Finarfiatements for additional information
on specific actions taken during the quarter. Idithwh, we ceased originating interest-only jumbortgage loans given the continued
volatility of the housing market and the delayeh@ipal payment feature of that loan product. Tdfiange was effective June 2010, and as
such, there was an immaterial amount of interebtjombo mortgage loans originated during the seloguarter, prior to the underwriting
policy change. Also during the three months endext B0, 2010, we began originating loans to custsm&Thor Industries, one of the
largest manufacturers of recreation vehicles.

In 2009, we executed various changes and stratdgimsghout our lending operations that continubawe a significant positive impact
to our current period results and ultimately ouaryever-year comparisons. Some of our new straggg@uded focusing primarily on the
prime lending market, participating in several l@aadification programs, implementing tighter undeting standards, and increasing
collection intensity. Additionally, we discontinuedd sold multiple nonstrategic operations, maimlgur international segments. Within our
automotive operations, we exited certain underpenifeg dealer relationships and added the majofigtoysler dealers. We see the result
these efforts as our overall credit risk has siadal, however, our total credit portfolio continueshe affected by sustained levels of high
unemployment and continued housing weakness.

On January 1, 2010, we adopted ASU 2009-16 and 2@9-17, which resulted in approximately $18.3idmillof off-balance sheet loans
being consolidated on-balance sheet. This incl&¥ed billion of consumer automobile loans classifés held-for-investment and recorded at
historical cost. We recorded an allowance for llwess reserve of $222 million on those loans. Timeaiaing loans consolidated on-balance
sheet were mortgage products and included $9i®mitlassified as operations held-for-sale and $ildn classified as held-for-investment
and recorded at fair value.

The FDIC recently issued guidance specifying tihaged end consumer loans secured by real estatéddh® viewed as collateral
dependent at the time foreclosure proceedingmiiated and should be written down to their estadacollateral value regardless of
delinquency or bankruptcy status. The adoptiotisfhew policy resulted in $7 million of additionat charge-offs during the three months
and six months ended June 30, 2010.
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The following table presents our total on-balarfoees consumer and commercial finance receivablédoams reported at gross carrying

value.
Accruing past due
Outstanding (a) Nonperforming (b) (c) 90 days or more
June 30 December 3: December 3: June 30 December 3:
June 30,
(% in millions) 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Consume
Loans hel-for-investmen
Loans at historical co: $ 53,00: $ 41,45¢ $ 832 $ 81¢ $ 4 $ 7
Loans at fair valu 2,34t 1,391 641 49¢ — —
Total loans hel-for-investment (d 55,34¢ 42,84¢ 1,47: 1,31¢ 4 7
Loans hel-for-sale 10,37: 20,46¢ 3,10¢ 3,39( 41 33
Total consumer loar 65,72¢ 63,317 457¢ 4,70¢ 45 40
Commercial
Loans hel-for-investmen
Loans at historical co: 37,37( 34,85: 1,467 1,88: 4 3
Loans at fair valus — — — — — —
Total loans hel-for-investment (d 37,37( 34,85: 1,46: 1,88: 4 3
Loans hel-for-sale 5 157 — — — —
Total commercial loan 37,37¢ 35,00¢ 1,462 1,88: 4 3
Total or-balance sheet loal $103,09¢ $ 98,32¢ $ 6,042 $ 6,58¢ $ 49 $ 43

(@) Includes troubled debt restructured loans dlagsas performing and less than 90 days pastadidestill accruing of $472 million and $3 millios af June 30, 2010, and

December 31, 2009, respective

(b) Nonperforming loans are loans placed on nonacata#lis in accordance with internal loan policiesteRto the Nonaccrual Loans section of Note heoGonsolidated Financi
Statements in our 2009 Annual Report on Fori-K for additional information

(c) Includes nonaccrual troubled debt restructureddaxr$1.0 billion and $1.0 billion as of June 3012, and December 31, 2009, respectiv

(d) As of June 30, 2010, and December 31, 2009, wedlithave any conditional repurchase option loanstanding.

Total on-balance sheet loans outstanding at Jun23®, increased $4.8 billion to $103.1 billioarfr December 31, 2009, reflecting an
increase of $2.4 billion in the consumer portfaind $2.4 billion in the commercial portfolio. Threefease in total on-balance sheet loans
outstanding from December 31, 2009, was the reftifte impact of adopting ASU 2009-16 and ASU 2a0d9-increased originations due to
strengthened industry sales and improved automaotasufacturer penetration (primarily Chrysler), &metreased retention of originated
loans. The increase was partially offset by autdreothole-loan sales.

Total nonperforming loans at June 30, 2010, deeck&546 million to $6.0 billion from December 3008, reflecting a decrease of
$126 million of consumer nonperforming loans ané@#illion of commercial nonperforming loans. Trectkase in total nonperforming
loans from December 31, 2009, was largely due ttimoed workout of the resort finance portfolio asadective dispositions of non-core

consumer and commercial mortgage loans. Partiffthetting the improvement in nonperforming loansswlae impact of adopting ASU 2009-

16 and ASU 2009-17.
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The following table includes held-for-investmentsamer and commercial net charge-offs for loarssabrical cost and related ratios
reported at gross carrying value.

Three months ended June 3( Six months ended June 3(
Net Net chargeoff Net Net chargeoff
charge-offs (a) ratios (a) charge-offs (a) ratios (a)
(% in millions) 2010 2009 201( 200¢ 2010 2009 201( 200¢
Consume
Loans hel-for-investment at historical cost ( $ 181 $ 1,31 1.4% 9.2% $43€ $ 1,71¢ 1.7% 6.C%
Commercial
Loans hel-for-investment at historical co 12¢€ 31C 14 34 187 48¢ 1.C 2.7
Total hel-for-investment at historical co $307 $ 1,62 1.4% 7% $ 625 $ 2,19¢ 1.4% 4.7%

(@) Net charg-off ratios are calculated as annualized net chaftgedivided by average outstanding finance re@ilies and loans excluding loans measured at faieyaonditional
repurchase option loans, and loans -for-sale during the year for each loan categ
(b) Includes $8 million and $22 million of net cha-offs on past due operating lease payments fortie tmonths and six months ended June 30, 20k ateely.

Our net charge-offs of total on-balance sheet loggre $307 million and $623 million for the threemths and six months ended
June 30, 2010, respectively, compared to $1.6hilind $2.2 billion for the three months and sixithe ended June 30, 2009, respectively.
This decline was driven primarily by portfolio coogstion changes as a result of strategic actiotlsding the writedown and reclassificatic
of certain mortgage legacy assets and improvememir nonprime automotive lending portfolio, pdiyiaffset by charge-offs taken on our
resort finance portfolio. Loans held-for-sale atecunted for at the lower of cost or fair valueg éimerefore we do not record charge-offs.

TheConsumer Credit PortfoliandCommercial Credit Portfolialiscussions that follow relate to consumer and ceruoial credit loans
held-for-investment. Loans held-for-investment i@eorded at historical cost and may have an agsdcélowance for loan losses. Held-for-
investment loans measured at fair value and camditirepurchase option loans were excluded frometliiscussions since those exposurt
not carry an allowance. Additionally, the reclaigsifion of certain mortgage legacy assets in thetfioquarter of 2009 substantially changed
the composition of our held-for-investment consumertgage loan portfolio when comparing the thremths and six months ended
June 30, 2010, to the same periods in 2009.

Consumer Credit Portfolio

During the three months and six months ended JOn2@L0, the credit performance of the consumetfgmr continued to improve
overall as nonperforming loans remained relatifiayand charge-offs declined. The year-over-yesnlide in net charge-offs was driven by
portfolio composition changes as the result oftsgiz actions that included the write-down andassification of certain mortgage legacy
assets in the fourth quarter of 2009.

For information on our consumer credit risk pragtiand policies regarding delinquencies, nonpeifaystatus, and charge-offs, refer to
Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statementaiim2009 Annual Report on Form-K.
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The following table includes held-for-investmentsamer finance receivables and loans recordedsttrivial cost reported at gross
carrying value.

Accruing past due

Outstanding (a) Nonperforming (b) 90 days or more
June 30 December 3: June 30 December 3: June 30 December 3:
(% in millions) 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Domestic
Automobile $ 26,45( $ 12,51« $ 121 $ 267 $ — $ —
1st Mortgage 7,18¢ 6,921 431 32¢ 1 1
Home equity
1st lien 1,68t 1,71¢ 11 10 — —
2nd lien 1,99¢ 2,16¢ 67 61 — —
Total domestic 37,32( 23,32 63C 664 1 1
Foreign
Automobile 15,26¢ 17,73: 86 11¢ 3 5
1st Mortgage 41¢€ 40t 11€ 33 — 1
Home equity
1st lien — — — — — —
2nd lien — 1 — — — —
Total foreign 15,68: 18,13" 20z 152 3 6
Total consumer finance receivables
loans $ 53,00! $ 41 ,45¢ $ 832 $ 81¢€ $ 4 $ 7

(a) Includes troubled debt restructured loans iflagsas performing and less than 90 days pastaddestill accruing of $167 million and $0 millios af June 30, 2010, and
December 31, 2009, respective
(b) Includes nonaccrual troubled debt restructureddaxr$232 million and $263 million as of June 301@, and December 31, 2009, respectiv

Total consumer outstanding finance receivablesi@ans increased $11.5 billion at June 30, 2010,pazed with December 31, 2009.
The increase in domestic automobile outstandingsdri&en by the consolidation of previously off-diate sheet loans due to the adoption of
ASU 2009-16 and ASU 2009-17, increased originataunes to strengthened industry sales and improveahative manufacturer penetration
(primarily Chrysler), and increased retention aforated loans. The decrease in foreign automatiwstandings was driven by continued «
and liquidations in nonstrategic countries and alv@ontracting markets in Europe.

Total consumer nonperforming loans at June 30, 2idtfeased $16 million to $832 million from Deceenl31, 2009, reflecting an
increase of $195 million of consumer mortgage noigpeing loans and a decrease of $179 million afstoner automotive nonperforming
loans. Nonperforming consumer mortgage loans ise@aue in part to high unemployment and a comndistressed housing market as the
loans remaining within our portfolio continue tasen. Nonperforming consumer automotive loans dsectdue to seasonal improvement in
the nonprime automotive lending portfolio as walleachange in our nonaccrual policy within our manp automotive financing operations.
Previously, nonprime loans were considered nonpeifgy at 60 days past due and now are considenegenforming at 90 days past due.
This policy change makes the nonperforming classiidn of our automotive loans consistent acrosstdmpany. Nonperforming consumer
finance receivables and loans as a percentag¢abbiaistanding consumer finance receivables aaaslovere 1.6% and 2.0% at
June 30, 2010, and December 31, 2009, respectively.

Consumer domestic automotive loans accruing pasB@ulays or more increased $155 million to $98fianiat June 30, 2010,
compared with December 31, 2009, primarily duéheoadoption of ASU 2009-16 and ASU 2009-17 as aglhe change in the nonaccrual
policy mentioned above. The increase was partifset by a decrease in delinquencies in the nampéautomotive lending portfolio, when
controlling for the impacts of the policy changesulting from enhanced collection processes ansbsadity as well as improved economic
conditions and increased quality of newer vintages.
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The following table includes held-for-investmennsamer net charge-offs and related ratios repattegoss carrying value.

Three months ended June 3( Six months ended June 3(
Net charge-  Net charge-off Net charge-off
offs Net charge-
(recoveries) ratios offs ratios
(% in millions) 201( 2009 201c 200¢ 201C 2009 201 200¢
Domestic
Automobile (a) $77 $ 18 1.3% 4% $26C $ 37 2.% 4.8%
1st Mortgage 46 44¢  2.€ 16.3 63 1€ 1.8 9.2
Home equity
1st lien 7 1 1€ 0.2 5 4 0.6 0.4
2nd lien 20 146  4.C 11.¢ 33 237 3.2 9.5
Total domestic 15C 77¢ 1.7 9.t 361 1,13 2.2 6.8
Foreign
Automobile 32 58 0.8 1.2 74 10z 0.¢ 1.C
1st Mortgage 1) 47€¢ (0.9 44.2 1 484 0.7 22.2
Home equity
1st lien — — — — — — — —
2nd lien — — — — — — — —
Total foreign 31 534 0.8 8.¢ 75 58¢ 0.9 4.8
Total consumer finance receivables and Ic $181 $1,31C 1.4% 9.3% $43€ $1,71¢  1.7% 6.C%

(@) Includes $8 million and $22 million of net cha-offs on past due operating lease payments fortiee tmonths and six months ended June 30, 20 ateely.

Our net charge-offs from total consumer automadbies decreased $129 million and $141 million Far three months and six months
ended June 30, 2010, compared to the same peni@MD. The decreases in net charge-offs were phntaue to improvement in loss
severity and customer recoveries due to enhandistiton processes. The loss severity improvemexs eriven by improvement in the used
vehicle market.

Our net charge-offs from total consumer mortgagklame equity loans were $72 million and $102 wnillfor the three months and six
months ended June 30, 2010, respectively, compear®d.1 billion and $1.2 billion for the same peldan 2009. The significant decreases
were driven by portfolio composition changes assailt of strategic actions that included the wdtevn and reclassification of certain
mortgage legacy assets from held-for-investmehgetd-for-sale during the fourth quarter of 2009.

The following table summarizes the total consurnanloriginations unpaid principal balance for tleeqds shown. Total consumer loan
originations include loans classified as held-forestment and held-for-sale during the period.

Three months endec Six months endec
June 30, June 30,

($ in millions) 2010 2009 2010 2009
Domestic

Automobile $ 7,17¢ $ 4,44 $ 12,47( $ 6,78(

1st Mortgage 13,16( 18,48( 26,12¢ 31,67¢

Home equity — — — —
Total domestic 20,33¢ 22,92: 38,59¢ 38,45¢
Foreign

Automobile 2,20¢ 1,371 3,90¢ 2,53¢

1st Mortgage 34¢€ 32E 63¢ 527

Home equity — — — —
Total foreign 2,552 1,69¢ 4,54¢ 3,061
Total consumer loan originatiol $ 22,88¢ $ 24,61¢ $ 43,14« $ 41,517
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Total domestic automobile-originated loans incrdg&2 7 billion and $5.7 billion for the three mosiiind six months ended
June 30, 2010, respectively, compared to the sa&meds in 2009, primarily due to the improved aubtive market as well as the addition of
Chrysler automotive financing business. Domesttomotive originations continue to reflect tightenawerwriting standards while 100% of
these originations were retained on-balance stseletla-for-investment. Driven by improved Canadiatomotive sales, total foreign
automotive originations increased $835 million &id4 billion for the three months and six monthdezhJune 30, 2010, respectively,
compared to the same periods in 2009.

Total domestic mortgage originated loans decre&Seibillion and $5.5 billion for the three montnsd six months ended June 30, 2010,
respectively, due in part to overall industry deeti including lower refinance volumes and stratefanges in product offerings including
more conservative focus on the prime lending market

Consumer loan originations retained on-balancetsi®keld-for-investment were $9.8 billion and 1fillion for the three months and
six months ended June 30, 2010, respectively, aridisillion and $3.8 billion for the three monthwdasix months ended June 30, 2009,
respectively. The increases during both periodewemarily due to increased automotive loan odgjion driven by improved industry sales
and increased balance sheet retention.

The following table shows held-for-investment cansu finance receivables and loans recorded atridat@ost reported at gross
carrying value by state and foreign concentrafiartal automotive loans were $41.7 billion and $3fllRon as of June 30, 2010, and
December 31, 2009, respectively. Total mortgagetenmde equity loans were $11.3 billion and $11.Rdsilas of June 30, 2010, and
December 31, 2009, respectively.

June 30, 201( December 31, 200

1st Mortgage 1st Mortgage
Automobhile and home equity Automobile and home equi

California 4.5% 24.2% 2. 7% 23.2%
Texas 9.2 3.8 7.5 2.9
Florida 3.8 4.2 2.1 4.4
Michigan 3.2 5.1 14 5.4
lllinois 2.7 4.€ 1.9 4.4
New York 3.2 2.€ 2.4 2.8
Pennsylvani: 3.C 1.8 2.4 1.8
Georgia 2.4 1.¢ 1.4 2.C
Virginia 1.2 5.4 0.8 5.5
Ohio 2.2 1.1 1.6 1.2
Other United State 27.¢ 41.7% 17.2 42.€
Canad: 15.: 3.€ 20.1 3.€
Germany [2s — 13.2 —
Brazil 4.¢ — 6.8 —
Other foreigr 9.2 — 18.4 —

Total consumer loar 100.(% 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%

We monitor our consumer loan portfolio for concatitim risk across the geographies in which we |&ihe. highest concentrations of
loans in the United States were in California aedas, which represented an aggregate of 16.7%rdbtal outstanding consumer loans a
June 30, 2010.

Concentrations in our mortgage operations are lglosenitored given the volatility of the housing rkats. Our consumer mortgage loan
concentrations in California and Florida receivetipalar attention as their real estate value depti®n has been the most severe.

In addition, we continue to closely monitor ourditgisk to customers concentrated in states affbbly the Gulf oil leak. We anticipate
loans concentrated in those states may experieaoeased stress due to declines in economic amgroactivities, loss of income and jobs,
and further declines in home values, and as suethave taken actions appropriate to mitigate @lsri
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Our foreign automotive outstandings are heavilycemtrated in Canada and Germany, representing 18m8P4.3%, respectively, of to
consumer automotive loans outstanding as of Jun2@M.

Repossessed and Foreclosed As

We classify an asset as repossessed or foreclosdalded in other assets on the Consolidated Bal&meet) when physical possessio
the collateral is taken regardless of whether fosere proceedings has taken place. For more irEtiom on repossessed and foreclosed
assets, refer to Note 1 to the Consolidated FisduStatements in our 2009 Annual Report on FornK10-

Repossessed assets in our automotive finance aperaecreased $3 million as of June 30, 2010, enatpto December 31, 2009.
Foreclosed mortgage assets increased $13 milliofi&me 30, 2010, compared to December 31, 2009.

Higher Risk Mortgage Loar

During the three months and six months ended JOn2C.0, we primarily focused our origination effoon prime conforming and
government guaranteed mortgages in the UnitedsStaue high-quality insured mortgages in Canadduhe 2010, we ceased originating
interest-only jumbo mortgage loans given the cagthvolatility of the housing market and the dethpencipal payment feature of that loan
product. We continued to hold mortgage loans thaelfeatures that expose us to potentially highetitrisk including high original loan-to-
value mortgage loans (prime or nonprime), paymg@tiva adjustable-rate mortgage loans (prime noraomifhg), interest-only mortgage
loans (classified as prime conforming or nonconfagifor domestic production and prime nonconformimgnonprime for international
production), and teaser-rate mortgages (prime oprnime).

In circumstances when a loan has features suclit fla#ls into multiple categories, it is classifi¢o a category only once based on the
following hierarchy: (1) high original loan-to-vaunortgage loans, (2) payment-option adjustabke+rairtgage loans, (3) interest-only
mortgage loans, and (4) below market rate (teaser)gages. Given the continued stress within thesimg market, we believe this hierarchy
provides the most relevant risk assessment of ontraditional products.

The following table summarizes the higher-risk rgage loan originations retained as heldifarestment and reported at unpaid princ
balance.

Three months endec Six months endec
June 30, June 30,
(% in millions) 2010 2009 2010 2009
High original loar-to-value (greater than 100%) mortgage lo $ — $ 1 $ — $ 9
Paymer-option adjustabl-rate mortgage loar — — — —
Interes-only mortgage loans (; 87 162 19C 17C
Below market rate (teaser) mortgal — — — —
Total highe-risk mortgage loan productic $ 87 $ 162 $ 19C $ 17¢

(@) The originations during the three months entlete 30, 2010, for interest-only mortgage loansdradverage FICO of 762 and an average loan-teeval$5% with 100% full
documentation. The originations during the six rhergénded June 30, 2010, for interest-only mortdaares had an average FICO of 763 and an averagetide@alue of 63% with
100% full documentatior
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The following table summarizes held-for-investmerartgage loans and portfolios reported at grosyicay value by higher-risk loan

type.
Accruing past due
Outstanding Nonperforming 90 days or more
June 30 December 3: June 30 December 3: June 30 December 3:
(% in millions) 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
High original loan-to-value (greater thi
100%) mortgage loar $ 7 $ 7 $ — $ 4 $ — $ —
Payment-option adjustablete mortgag
loans 7 7 — 1 — —
Interes-only mortgage loan 4,221 4,34¢ 273 13¢ — —
Below market rate (teaser) mortgas 31C 331 6 2 — —
Total highe-risk mortgage loan $ 4,54F $ 4,691 $ 27¢ $ 14€ $ — $ o

The allowance for loan losses was $322 million.4€4 of total higher risk held-for-investment moiggdoans based on gross carrying

value outstanding at June 30, 2010.

The following tables include our five largest statel foreign concentrations based on our highkredd-forinvestment loans reported

gross carrying value.

Payment-
High original option Below
loan-to-value adjustable- market rate
(greater than 100%; rate All higher risk
mortgage Interest-only (teaser)
June 30, 201($ in millions) mortgage loans loans mortgage loan: mortgages loans
California $ — $ 2 $ 1,162 $ 97 $ 1,261
Virginia — — 373 12 38t
Maryland — — 292 7 29¢
Michigan — — 24¢€ 10 25€
lllinois — — 21¢ 9 224
All other domestic and
foreign 7 5 1,93 17t 2,12(
Total higher-risk mortgage
loans $ 7 $ 7 $ 4,221 $ 31C $ 4,54¢
Payment-
High original option Below
loan-to-value adjustable- market rat
(greater than 1009 rate All higher risk
mortgage Interest-only (teaser)
December 31, 20C($ in millions) mortgage loan loans mortgage loar mortgage: loans
California $ 1 $ 2 $ 1,12¢ $ 10z $ 1,23:
Virginia — — 397 13 41C
Maryland — — 30¢ 8 317
Michigan — — 25¢ 11 27C
lllinois — — 23C 9 23¢
All other domestic and foreic 6 5 2,02% 18¢ 2,22z
Total highe-risk mortgage loan $ 7 $ 7 $ 4,34¢ $ 331 $ 4,691

Commercial Credit Portfolio

During the three months and six months ended JOn2@.0, the credit performance of the commeraiatfplio improved as
nonperforming loans and net charge-offs declinda: decline in nonperforming loans was largely dribg the continued workout of the
resort finance portfolio, the selective dispositadmon-core mortgage assets, and some improvemeegler credit quality. The decline in
charge-offs in 2010 was primarily attributed to noyed portfolio composition compared to 2009 duthtoworkout of certain commercial
real estate assets and the strategic exit of uaderming automotive dealers partially offset bgad finance portfolio charge-offs taken as

we continue to workout that portfolio of clients.
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For information on our consumer credit risk praesiand policies regarding delinquencies, nonpeifarstatus, and charge-offs, refer to
Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statementaiim2009 Annual Report on Form-K.

The following table includes total held-for-invesimi commercial finance receivables and loans redat gross carrying value.

Accruing past due

Outstanding (a) Nonperforming (b) 90 days or more
June 30 December 3: December 3: June 30 December 3:
June 30,
(% in millions) 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Domestic
Commercial and industri
Automobile $21,77¢ $ 19,60: $ 23¢ $ 281 $— $ —
Mortgage 1,80: 1,572 16 37 — —
Resort financt 644 845 602 782 — —
Other (c) 1,77¢ 1,84¢ 68 73 — —
Commercial real esta
Automobile 2,09( 2,00¢ 263 25€ — —
Mortgage 5 121 5 56 — —
Total domestic 28,09¢ 25,99:¢ 1,197 1,48¢ — —
Foreign
Commercial and industri;
Automobile 8,472 7,947 10 66 — —
Mortgage 75 96 35 35 — —
Resort financt — — — — — —
Other (c) 401 437 104 131 4 3
Commercial real esta
Automobile 20¢ 221 11 24 — —
Mortgage 11§ 162 11C 141 — —
Total foreign 9,27¢ 8,85¢ 27C 397 4 3
Total commercial finance receivable
and loan: $ 37,37( $ 34,85: $ 1,46: $ 1,88¢ $4 $ 3

(@) Includes troubled debt restructured loans iflagsas performing and less than 90 days pastatdestill accruing of $0 million and $3 million afJune 30, 2010, and
December 31, 2009, respective

(b) Includes nonaccrual troubled debt restructureddadr$78 million and $59 million as of June 30, @0and December 31, 2009, respectiv

(c) Other commercial includes structured finance, -based lending, and health capital loz

Total commercial finance receivables and loanstanting increased $2.5 billion to $37.4 billionJahe 30, 2010, from
December 31, 2009. Domestic commercial and indlsititstandings increased due to the addition@fthrysler automotive financing
business, improved industry sales, and a correspgicrease in inventories. Foreign commercial imadistrial outstandings increased
$472 million from December 31, 2009, as a resutirofnvth in the Canadian automotive markets, whiels partially offset by dealer exits &
continued portfolio runoff within exited countridBomestic and foreign commercial real estate ontsiteys decreased $91 million from
December 31, 2009, due to reduced mortgage origmacttivity, seasonal trends, and continued aispbsitions.

Total commercial nonperforming loans were $1.5dill a decrease of $420 million compared to Decer@be2009, primarily due to
continued progress in resolving troubled custoneepants primarily in our resort finance portfolsmme improvement in dealer performance,
and the continued mortgage asset dispositions] motgerforming commercial finance receivables xaahs as a percentage of outstanding
commercial finance receivables and loans were 218805.4% at June 30, 2010, and December 31, 28§8ectively.
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The following table includes total held-for-invegim commercial net charge-offs and related ragpsnted at gross carrying value.

Three months ended June 3( Six months ended June 3(
Net charge-offs Net charge-off Net charge-offs Net charge-off
(recoveries) ratios (recoveries) ratios
(% in millions) 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Domestic
Commercial and industri;
Automobile $ 5 $ 9 0.1% 0.2% $ 6 $ 18 0.1% 0.2%
Mortgage Q) 67 (0.3 11.4 2 86 (0.3 7.4
Resort financt 67 — 36.¢€ 67 — 17.4 —
Other — 2 — 0.3 2 3 0.3 0.2
Commercial real esta
Automobile 17 — 3.2 — 29 — 2.8 —
Mortgage (2 22% (28.6) 76.€ 41 35¢ 145.F 54.4
Total domestic 86 301 1.2 4.€ 145 46€ 1.1 3.t
Foreign
Commercial and industri;
Automobile 1 4 — 0.2 3 3 0.1 0.1
Mortgage — — — — — — — —
Resort financt — — — — — — — —
Other 29 5 36.C 2.8 29 13 16.2 3.2
Commercial real esta
Automobile — — — — 2 — 2.C —
Mortgage 10 — 30.5 — 10 1 14.C 1.2
Total foreign 40 9 1.7 0.4 44 17 1.C 0.3
Total commercial finance receivable
and loans $ 12€ $ 31C 1.4% 34% $ 187 $ 48¢ 1.C% 2.7%

Our net charge-offs of commercial loans totaled@d@lion and $187 million for the three months &ix months ended June 30, 2010,
respectively, compared to $310 million and $483iarilfor the same periods in 2009. The decreasestitharge-offs were largely driven by
improved mix of loans in the existing portfolio @en by the workout of certain commercial real estatsets partially offset by charge-offs
taken on the resort finance portfolio as we comtitniworkout the remaining clients.
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Commercial Real Estate

The commercial real estate portfolio consists ahbissued primarily to developers, homebuilderd,@ommercial real estate firms.
Commercial real estate finance receivables andsloatstanding decreased slightly to $2.4 billiomfadune 30, 2010, compared to
$2.5 billion as of December 31, 2009.

The following table shows held-for-investment comeied real estate loans reported at gross carryatge by geographic region and
property type.

June 30, 201 December 31, 20(
Geographic regio
Texas 10.4% 11.2%
California 10.4 9.8
Florida 10.C 11.¢
Michigan 9.¢ 8.5
Virginia 4.4 3.6
New York 4.C 3.7
Pennsylvani: 3.¢ 3.4
Oregon 34 2.1
Georgia 2.2 2.1
Alabama 2.1 2.1
Other United State 25.€ 26.2
United Kingdom 5.€ 7.3
Canade 5.C 4.3
Germany 0.4 0.€
Other foreigr 2.4 3.C
Total outstanding commercial real estate Ic 100.(% 100.(%
Property type
Automobile dealer 91.2% 84.2%
Residentia 4.2 2.7
Land and land developme 0.¢ 5.7
Apartments — 2.9
Other 3.6 4.4
Total outstanding commercial real estate Ic 100.(% 100.(%

Commercial Criticized Exposure

Exposures deemed criticized are loans classifiegpasial mention, substandard, or doubtful. Thésssifications are based on regulat
definitions and generally represent loans within martfolio that are of higher default risk. Thdsans require additional monitoring and
review including specific actions to mitigate owtg@ntial economic loss.

The following table shows industry concentratiomstfeld-for-investment commercial criticized loaeported at gross carrying value.
Total criticized exposures were $3.9 billion and4illion as of June 30, 2010, and December 30926espectively.

June 30, 201 December 31, 20(
Industry
Automotive 52.2% 50.1%
Resort financt 16.4 17.1
Health/medica 8.8 7.8
Manufacturing 3.¢ 3.2
Real estat 3.6 6.1
Services 2.7 2.2
Banks and finance compani 2.3 2.C
Retall 2.2 2.7
All other 7.E 8.7
Total commercial criticized loar 100.(% 100.(%
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Total criticized exposure decreased $1.0 billio#3® billion from December 31, 2009, primarily deemprovement in dealer credit
quality, continued mortgage asset dispositions,thadontinued workout of the resort finance paitfor he increase in our automotive
criticized concentration rate is solely due to $ignificant decrease in the overall criticized amtswutstanding as of June 30, 2010, comg
to December 31, 2009.

Allowance for Loan Losses
The following tables present an analysis of thevagtin the allowance for loan losses on finaneeaivables and loans.

2010 2009

(% in millions) Consumel Commercial Total Consume Commercis Total
Balance at April 1 $ 1,75/ $ 72€ $2,48( $ 2,75¢ $ 887 $ 3,64¢
Charge-offs

Domestic (228) (92) (319 (83E) (305) (1,140

Foreign (50) (49 (99 (549 (9) (558)
Total charg-offs (a) (27¢) (140 (41¢) (1,389 (3149 (1,69¢)
Recoveries

Domestic 78 5 83 59 4 63

Foreign 19 9 28 15 — 15
Total recoverie: 97 14 111 74 4 78
Net charg-offs (181) (12€) (307) (1,310 (310 (1,620
Provision for loan losse 21€ 4 22C 72¢ 38¢ 1,117
Other (10 (6) (16) 13C 29 15¢
Balance at June 30, ( $ 177¢ $ 59¢ $2,37i $ 2,30 $ 994 $ 3,301

Allowance for loan losses to

finance receivables and loans

outstanding at June 30, | 3.4% 1.€% 2.6% 4.2% 2.5% 3.7%
Net charg-offs to average finance

receivables and loans

outstanding at June 30, | 1.4% 1.4% 1.4% 9.2% 3.4% 7.C%
Allowance for loan losses to total

nonperforming finance

receivables and loans at

June 30, (c 213.% 40.% 103.6% 92.%% 31.2% 58.2%
Ratio of allowance for loans losse
to net charg-offs at June 3C 2.5 1.2 1.8 0.4 0.8 0.5

(@) Includes net charw-offs on past due operating lease payments of $&m#énd $0 million for the three months ended JB8e2010 and 2009, respective

(b) Includes allowance of $14 million and $19 millioaded on $46 million and $61 million of past duerafiag lease payments as of June 30, 2010 and Desredi, 2009, respective
Prior to December 31, 2009, there was no allowaeacerded for past due operating lease paym

(c) Allowance coverage percentages are based aallthveance for loan losses related to loans heteffeestment excluding those loans held at faiueads a percentage of the unpaid
principal balance, net of premiums and discot
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2010 2009

($ in millions) Consumel Commercial Total Consume Commercis Total
Balance at January $ 1,664 $ 781 $2,44¢ $ 2,53¢ $ 897 $ 3,43¢
Cumulative effect of change in

accounting principles (& 222 — 222 — — —
Charge-offs

Domestic (54€) (152) (69¢) (1,240 (473 (1,719

Foreign (117 (53 (164) (615) (18) (633)
Total charg-offs (b) (657) (205) (862 (1,85%) (497 (2,346)
Recoveries

Domestic 18t 9 194 11C 7 117

Foreign 36 9 45 29 1 30
Total recoverie: 221 18 23¢ 13¢ 8 147
Net charg-offs (43€) (187 (623) (1,716 (483 (2,199
Provision for loan losse 344 22 36€ 1,29¢ 56¢ 1,867
Other (15) (18) (33) 192 11 204
Balance at June 30, ( $  1,77¢ $ 59¢ $2,37i $ 2,30 $ 994 $ 3,301
Allowance for loan losses to

finance receivables and loans

outstanding at June 30, ( 3.4% 1.6% 2.6% 4.2% 2.9% 3.7%
Net charg-offs to average finance

receivables and loans

outstanding at June 30, ( 1.7% 1.C% 1.4% 6.C% 2.7% 4.7%
Allowance for loan losses to total

nonperforming finance

receivables and loans at

June 30, (d 213.% 40.% 103.6% 92.%% 31.2% 58.2%
Ratio of allowance for loans losses

to net charg-offs at June 3(C 2.0 1.€ 1.9 0.7 1.C 0.8

(@) Includes adjustment to the allowance due tg@#too of ASU 2009-16Accounting for Transfers of Financial Assetnd ASU 2009-171mprovements to Financial Reporting by

Enterprises Involved with Variable Interest Enst. Refer to Note 1 to the Consolidated Financiate3teents for additional informatio

(b) Includes net charw-offs on past due operating lease payments of $#mand $0 million for the six months ended Ji@e 2010 and 2009, respective

(c) Includes allowance of $14 million and $19 millioaded on $46 million and $61 million of past duerafiag lease payments as of June 30, 2010 and Deredi, 2009, respective
Prior to December 31, 2009, there was no allowaeacerded for past due operating lease paym

(d) Allowance coverage percentages are based aalltiveance for loan losses related to loans heteffeestment excluding those loans held at faiueads a percentage of the unpaid
principal balance, net of premiums and discot

The allowance for consumer automotive loan lossésr@e 30, 2010, decreased $54 million comparddnie 30, 2009, due to some
improvements in the credit outlook of the portfoliacluding strengthening in the used vehicle maldéading to decreased severity of losses
and increased customer recoveries in the nonprintmreotive lending portfolio.

The allowance for commercial automotive loan loskadined $40 million at June 30, 2010, comparedliee 30, 2009, as a result of
improved portfolio credit quality due to improvedaler health, strategic dealer exits, and the wiomtn of operations in several nonstrategic
countries.

The allowance for consumer mortgage loan lossé@srag 30, 2010, decreased significantly comparddrne 30, 2009, driven by the
write-down and reclassification of certain mortgéegacy assets in the fourth quarter of 2009.

The allowance for commercial mortgage loan lossedied significantly at June 30, 2010, comparedutae 30, 2009, primarily due to
continued asset dispositions.
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Allowance for Loan Losses by Type

The following table summarizes the allocation @& gllowance for loan losses by product type.

2010 2009
Allowance as Allowance a
Allowance a a % of Allowance a a % of
Allowance for allowance for Allowance fol allowance fo
a % of loans a % of loan:
June 30($ in millions) loan losses outstanding loan losses loan losse: outstanding loan losse!
Consume
Domestic
Automobile $ 91cC 3.4% 38.2% $ 85(C 5.¢% 25.7%
1st Mortgage 402 5.€ 17.C 63€ 6.C 19.z
Home equity 25¢ 6.€ 10.7 35€ 5.4 10.€
Total domestic 1,56¢ 4.2 66.( 1,84¢ 5.8 55.¢€
Foreign
Automobile 21C 14 8.8 324 1.7 9.8
1st Mortgage 1 0.2 — 137 3.7 4.2
Home equity — — — — — —
Total foreign 211 1.3 8.8 461 2.C 14.C
Total consumer loar 1,77¢ 34 74.¢ 2,307 4.2 69.¢€
Commercial
Domestic
Commercial anc
industrial 42C 1.€ 17.7 361 1.7 10.¢
Commercial real
estate 4 0.2 0.2 43¢ 15.Z 13.2
Total domestic 424 1.t 17.¢ 79¢ .3 24.2
Foreign
Commercial anc
industrial 132 1.t 5.5 14C 1.t 4.2
Commercial real
estate 42 12.€ 1.8 55 15.4 1.7
Total foreign 174 1.¢ 7.3 19t 2.1 5.9
Total commercial loar 59¢ 1.€ 25.2 994 2.6 30.1
Total allowance for
loan losse: $ 2,371 2.6% 100.(% $ 3,301 3.7% 100.(%
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Provision for Loan Losses
The following table summarizes the provision faaidosses by product type.

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30, June 30,
(% in millions) 2010 2009 2010 2009
Consume
Domestic
Automobile $ 91 $ 10 $ 17& $ 107
1st Mortgage 48 437 72 69t
Home equity 49 201 41 357
Total domestic 18¢ 64¢€ 28¢€ 1,15¢
Foreign
Automobile 28 79 54 131
1st Mortgage — 2 2 3
Home equity — — — 1
Total foreign 28 81 56 13t
Total consumer loar 21¢ 72¢ 344 1,29
Commercial
Domestic
Commercial and industri; 15 101 34 12¢
Commercial real esta (3 20¢ (9 34C
Total domestic 12 31C 25 46€
Foreign
Commercial and industrii 8 75 3 99
Commercial real esta — 3 — 4
Total foreign (8 78 3 102
Total commercial loan 4 38¢ 22 56¢
Total provision for loans loss: $ 22C $ 1,115 $  36¢€ $ 1,868

Credit Derivatives

Derivative financial instruments contain an elenafndredit risk if counterparties are unable to tibe terms of the agreements. Credit
risk associated with derivative financial instrurtseis measured as the net replacement cost sHoultbtinterparties that owe us under the
contract completely fail to perform under the tewhghose contracts, assuming no recoveries oflyidg collateral as measured by the
market value of the derivative financial instrument

The following table summarizes our credit derivaiv

June 30, 2010 December 31, 2009

($ in millions) Contract/notional Credit risk Contract/notion: Credit risk
Credit derivative:
Purchased protectic

Credit default swap $ 15 $ 1 $ 20C $ 2

Total return swap 47 1 — —
Total purchased protectic 62 2 20C 2
Written protectior

Credit default swap 40 @ aC —

Total return swap 47 (1) — —
Total written protectiot 87 2 a0 —
Total credit derivative $ 14¢ $ — $ 29C $ 2
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We use credit derivatives to hedge credit risk l@ullice risk concentrations on our ConsolidatedB@&®heet. We regularly monitor our
counterparty credit risk on an absolute and nebsupe basis. Overall, net credit risk decreasechiibn as of June 30, 2010, compared to
December 31, 2009, primarily due to changes in imggdagctivities in our international operations.

Market Risk

Our automotive financing, mortgage, and insurartizities give rise to market risk representing plwgential loss in the fair value of
assets or liabilities caused by movements in markeables, such as interest rates, foreign-exahaaigs, equity prices, market perceptions
of credit risk, and other market fluctuations tatect the value of securities and assets held#te: We are primarily exposed to interest rate
risk arising from changes in interest rates reléefithancing, investing, and cash managementitiesv More specifically, we enter into
contracts to provide financing, to retain mortgagevicing rights, and to retain various assetdedléo securitization activities all of which
exposed in varying degrees to changes in valueado®vements in interest rates. Interest rateaides from the mismatch between assets
and the related liabilities used for funding. Wéeeiinto various financial instruments, includingridgatives, to maintain the desired level of
exposure to the risk of interest rate fluctuatidReter to Note 15 to the Consolidated Financiatedtents for further information.

We are exposed to foreign-currency risk arisingnftbe possibility that fluctuations in foreign-exartye rates will affect future earnings
or asset and liability values related to our glayadrations. Our most significant foreign-curreegyposures relate to the Euro, the Canadian
dollar, the British pound sterling, the Braziliseat, the Mexican peso, and the Australian dollag.may enter into hedges to mitigate foreign
exchange risk.

We are also exposed to equity price risk, primarilpur Insurance operations, which invests in gogecurities that are subject to price
risk influenced by capital market movements. Weeintto macro equity hedges to mitigate our expgsaiprice fluctuations in the overall
portfolio.

Although the diversity of our activities from ousroplementary lines of business may partially mtegaarket risk, we also actively
manage this risk. We maintain risk management obayistems to monitor interest rates, foreign-auryeexchange rates, equity price risks,
and any of their related hedge positions. Positasesmonitored using a variety of analytical tegeis including market value, sensitivity
analysis, and value at risk models.

Since December 31, 2009, there have been no mathaages in these market risks. Refer to our AhReport on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2009, Iltem 7, Manage's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiordd&Results of Operations, for further
discussion on value at risk and sensitivity analysi
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Liquidity Management, Funding, and Regulatory Capital

Overview

Liquidity management involves forecasting fundieguirements driven by asset growth and liabilityturities. The goal of liquidity
management is to ensure we maintain adequate farmdeet changes in loan and lease demand, debiitiestuunexpected deposit
withdrawals, and other seen and unforeseen comaesds. Our primary funding objective is to ensugemaintain access to stable and
diverse liquidity sources throughout all marketlegdncluding periods of financial distress. Sosroéliquidity include both retail and
brokered deposits and secured and unsecured nizkett funding across maturities, interest rateacienistics, currencies, and investor
profiles. Further liquidity is available throughmamitted facilities as well as funding programs supgd by the Federal Reserve and the
Federal Home Loan Bank of Pittsburgh (FHLB).

Liquidity risk arises from the failure to recogniaeaddress changes in market conditions affedttoty asset and liability flows. Effecti
liquidity risk management is critical to the vidtyilof financial institutions to ensure an institut has the ability to meet contractual and
contingent financial obligations. The ability to naae liquidity needs and contingent funding expesiras been essential to the solvency of
financial institutions.

ALCO, the Asset-Liability Committee, is responsilide monitoring liquidity on an ongoing basis arelebates the planning and
execution of liquidity management strategies topOoate Treasury. We manage liquidity risk at theitess segment, legal entity, and
consolidated level. Each reporting segment, aloitly Ally Bank, prepares periodic forecasts depigtamticipated funding needs and sources
of funds with oversight and monitoring by Corporateasury. Corporate Treasury manages liquidityeuéseline projected economic
scenarios as well as more severe economicallyssiilesnvironments. Corporate Treasury, in turn,péam executes our funding strategie:
addition, the Liquidity Risk Forum, an internal nagiement committee, is responsible for analyzingjdigy risk measurement standards,
liquidity position and investment alternatives, dimg plans, forecasted liquidity needs and relaigd and opportunities, liquidity buffers,
stress testing, and contingency funding. We mairaagash liquidity reserve and credit facility ceipathat, taken together, are intended to
allow us to operate and to meet our contractuagjatibns in the event of market disruptions.

Funding Strategy

Our liquidity and ongoing profitability are largetiependent on our timely access to funding anddisés associated with raising funds in
different segments of the capital markets. We comtito be extremely focused on maintaining and meihg our liquidity. Our funding
strategy focuses on the development of diversfiieding sources across a global investor base & alkeour liquidity needs including
unsecured debt capital markets, asset-backed seatioins, whole-loan sales, domestic and inteomati committed and uncommitted bank
lines, brokered certificates of deposits, and religposits. Creating funding from a wide rangeafrses across geographic locations
strengthens our liquidity position and limits degence on any single source. We evaluate fundingeteon an ongoing basis to achieve an
appropriate balance of unsecured and secured fgsdiarces. In addition, we further distinguish funding strategy between bank funding
and holding company or nonbank funding.

Today, all new bank-eligible assets in the Unitéates are being directed to Ally Bank in orderaduce and minimize our nonbanking
exposures and funding requirements. During 200%eseived an expanded exemption from the FedersgiRe allowing Ally Bank to
originate a limited amount of GM-related retail amkdolesale assets subject to certain conditiorei®usly, we were more limited in the
GM-related assets that could be originated in Blink due to Section 23A of the Federal Reserve Pt restrictions of Section 23A would
cease to apply to GM-related transactions if GM Al ceased to be deemed “affiliates” under appdbie bank regulatory standards; this
would then allow us to use bank funding for a wideay of our automotive finance assets and toigeoa sustainable long-term funding
channel for the business.

Bank Funding

At June 30, 2010, Ally Bank maintained cash ligyidif $2.6 billion and highly liquid U.S. federabgernment and U.S. agency securi
of $4.9 billion. In addition, at June 30, 2010,yABank had the ability to draw additional unuseglidity of up to $8.4 billion, including $3.0
billion from a shared facility, also available teetparent company, assuming incremental collatggalailable to contribute to committed
secured funding facilities. Maximizing bank fundiisghe cornerstone of our long-term liquidity s&gy. This strategy will allow us to use a
greater diversity of funding sources like
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retail deposits to finance our loan portfolios analximize profitability. Deposits provide a low-casturce of funds that are less sensitive to
interest rate changes or market volatility. We hemetinued to expand our deposit gathering effitsmsugh our direct and indirect marketing
channels. Current product offerings consist of @ewa of savings products including certificatesdefosits (CDs), savings accounts, and
money market accounts, as well as an online chggikioduct. At June 30, 2010, the deposit base lsgtBdnk was $30.8 billion, up from
$28.8 billion at December 31, 2009. In additiometail deposits, Ally Bank has access to fundimgulgh a variety of other sources including
FHLB advances, the Federal Reserve’s Discount Windepurchase arrangements, securitizations, jgriwatding arrangements, and
brokered certificates of deposit. As of June 3Q,R@ebt outstanding from the FHLB totaled $4.5dlwith no debt outstanding from the
Federal Reserve. We continue to be active in thergization markets to finance our Ally Bank rétand wholesale automotive loans. In the
second quarter of 2010, Ally Bank completed thne®motive term asset-backed securitizations tagehi2.0 billion in funding, which brings
the total for the first half of 2010 to five sedirations and $3.9 billion of funding. We also ddished private facility commitments in the
second quarter totaling $7.8 billion, which broutt¥ total credit commitments capable of finandiily Bank’s growing automotive loan
portfolios at June 30, 2010, to $12.0 billion, whincluded $3.7 billion of commitments availablefly Bank or the parent company.

In Canada, we are also focused on growing our dieposing platform. Through our ResMor Trust sulisiy (ResMor), we began
raising deposits in 2009. ResMor launched its entlaposit platform in September 2009, providingaety of products under the Ally brar
As of June 30, 2010, this retail deposit channdldeposits of $626 million. This is in additionadrokered deposit product line that had a
balance of $2.3 billion at June 30, 2010, compé#weiL.5 billion at December 31, 2009.

Refer to Note 12 to the Consolidated Financialeétaints for a summary of deposit funding by type.

Nonbank Funding

As of June 30, 2010, the parent company maintagast liquidity in the amount of $10.3 billion artability to draw additional
committed liquidity up to $8.9 billion, excludin®® billion from a shared facility that is also dahble to Ally Bank, assuming incremental
collateral is available to contribute to commitgstured funding facilities. For purposes of thidtise of the MD&A, parent company is
defined as Ally consolidated less our Insuranceatpms, ResCap, and Ally Bank. As we shift ourd®to growing bank funding capabilities
in line with increasing asset originations at Allgink, we are similarly focused on minimizing usésur parent company liquidity and
reducing the amount of assets funded outside thk. lFainding sources at the parent company genearafigist of unsecured debt, private
credit facilities, and asset-backed securitizations

We obtain short-term unsecured funding from the séfloating-rate demand notes under our DemartgédNorogram. The holder has the
option to require us to redeem these notes atiamgywithout restriction. Demand Notes outstandiregen$1.6 billion at June 30, 2010,
compared to $1.3 billion at December 31, 2009. Pase short-term bank loans also provide stenra funding. As of June 30, 2010, we
$3.7 billion in short-term unsecured debt outstagdan increase of $0.5 billion from December 302 In terms of long-term unsecured
funding, we raised over $5.0 billion in the unsetlbond markets in the first half of 2010, inclglan€1.0 billion issuance in the second
quarter. Refer to Note 13 to the Consolidated FRrarstatements for additional information about outstanding short-term and long-term
unsecured debt.

We maintain various credit facilities in our No#merican and International Automotive Finance opere, including a $7.9 billion
facility in the U.S. that matures in June 2011. &l& have an automotive whole-loan forward floweagnent that provides a commitment
from a third party to purchase U.S. automotiveiresssets. This arrangement expires in October 280 there was $1.5 billion of capacity
remaining as of June 30, 2010. In the first hal2@10, we have been active in the public and peigaturitization markets internationally,
completing a total of eight transactions in Canddexico, and Germany that raised more than $5lbil

Recent Funding Developments

During the first six months of 2010, we completadding transactions totaling more than $25 biléord we renewed key existing
funding facilities, as we realized greater accedsoth the public and private markets. Key fundimghlights from the first half of 2010
include:

. We issued over $5 billion of unsecured debt, winchuded issuances in both the United States amdgean market:
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. We raised over $10 billion from the sale of assatied securities publicly and privately in multipleisdictions, including Ally
Bank-sponsored transactions of $3.9 billion and a $50@omissuance supported by mortgage servicer ades.

. We created more than $10 billion of new committeztlit capacity, including $8.3 billion solely dedted to fund automotive ass
at Ally Bank and new mortgage facilities that pawicommitted credit capacity of $600 millic

. We renewed approximately $2 billion of key privéiading facilities at our International Automotifénance operations and
Mortgage operation:

Funding Sources
The following table summarizes debt and other sesinf funding and the amount outstanding under eatdygory for the periods shown.

QOutstanding

($ in millions) June 30, 201 December 31, 20(
Secured financings (i $ 42,07¢ $ 48,75¢
Institutional term dek 25,53¢ 24,80¢
Retail debt programs (I 14,24¢ 14,62:
Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program (TLC 7,40C 7,40(
Bank loans and otht 2,20( 2,194
Total debt (¢! $ 91,46/ $ 97,78¢
Bank deposits (¢ $ 32,98¢ $ 30,00¢
Off-balance sheet securitizatic

Retail finance receivable $ = $ 6,554

Mortgage loan: 79,66 99,120
Total off-balance sheet securitizatic $ 79,66: $ 105,67

(@) Includes securitization transactions that @amanted for on-balance sheet as secured finantitajing $31,175 million and $32,078 million andu30, 2010,
and December 31, 2009, respectivi

(b) Includes $10,219 million and $10,878 million of ABmartNotes as of June 30, 2010, and Decembe20BB, respectively

(c) Excludes fair value adjustment as described in N8t the Consolidated Financial Stateme

(d) Includes consumer and commercial bank depositslaater wholesale deposi

Refer to Note 13 to the Consolidated Financiale®tants for a summary of the scheduled maturitpiogiterm debt at June 30, 2010.

Funding Facilities

We utilize both committed and uncommitted crediilfaes. The financial institutions providing timcommitted facilities are not legally
obligated to advance funds under them. The amawistanding under our various funding facilities generally included on our
Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Funding Facilities — Operating Segment

Most of our committed capacity is concentratedun Automotive Finance operations, which is consisteith our strategic focus. Our
funding facility capacity for Mortgage operatiosssiourced from private bank facilities, the FedBederve Bank, and FHLB advances. Refer
to Note 13 to the Consolidated Financial Statemfemtadditional information on our funding faciés by operating segment.

Funding Facilities — Bank/Nonbank Funding

As of June 30, 2010, Ally Bank’s committed capaevys $12.0 billion of which $3.7 billion was avdila to both Ally Bank and the
parent company, Ally Financial Inc. Effective April 2010, Ally Bank entered into a $7.0 billion sezd revolving credit facility with a
syndicate of lenders. The facility has a 364-dayuniiy and is available to fund automotive
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receivables. It provides incremental liquidity tdyABank and further diversifies its funding sousc®ther funding facilities available to
Ally Bank are generally composed of Federal ResBamk and FHLB advances, as well as repurchasagenaents with third-party lenders.

Total Unused
capacity capacity (a) Outstanding
June30 Dec31l June30 Dec3l June30 Dec3l

(% in billions) 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Committed unsecure
Nonbank funding

Automotive Finance operatiol $ 0& $ 08 $ 01 $ 01 $ 07 $ 0.7
Committed secure
Nonbank funding
Automotive Finance operations and ot 17.¢ 32.C 8.E 9.C 9.1 23.C
Mortgage operation 1.7 2.1 o2 0.4 1.4 1.7
Bank funding 8.2 — 5.4 — 2.6 —
Shared capacity (k 3.7 4.0 3.C 3.2 0.7 0.8
Total committed facilitie: 32.4 38.¢ 17.€ 12.7 14.¢ 26.2
Uncommitted unsecure
Nonbank funding
Automotive Finance operatiol 1.1 0.9 0.2 0.1 0.¢ 0.8
Uncommitted secure
Nonbank funding
Automotive Finance operatiol 0.4 0.4 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3
Mortgage operation 0.1 0.2 0.1 0.2 — —
Bank funding (c) (d 10.C 13.7 5.C 3.€ 5.C 10.1
Total uncommitted facilitie 11.€ 15.2 5.4 4.C 6.2 11.2
Total facilities 44.C 54.1 23.C 16.7 21.C 37.4
Whole-loan forward flow agreements ( 1.t 9.4 1t 9.4 — —
Total commitment: $ 455 $ 63EFE $ 24 $ 261 $ 21.C $ 37.4

(@) Funding for committed secured facilities is gially available on request as excess collatesidles in certain facilities or to the extent incesrtal collateral is available and
contributed to the facilities

(b) Funding is generally available for assets origiddig Ally Bank or the parent company, Ally Finaridiac.

(c) Included $3.8 billion and $7.8 billion of capacftpm Federal Reserve Bank advances with zero arll$flion outstanding as of June 30, 2010, andeDdwer 31, 2009, respective

(d) Included $5.7 billion and $5.9 billion of capacftpm FHLB advances with $4.5 billion and $5.1 hitli outstanding as of June 30, 2010, and Decemb&08D, respectively

(e) Represents commitments of financial institutionptiochase U.S. automotive retail ass

Committed Unsecured Funding Facilities

Revolving credit facilities— As of June 30, 2010, we maintained $486 milbdrcommitments in our U.S. unsecured revolving itred
facility maturing June 2012. This facility is fulgrawn.

Bank lines— As of June 30, 2010, we maintained $259 milbércommitted unsecured bank facilities in Canada$48 million in
Europe. The European facility expires in March 2@tile the Canadian facilities expire in June 2012.

Committed Secured Funding Facilities
Facilities for Automotive Finance Operatio

As of June 30, 2010, we had capacity of $7.9 bilfimm a syndicate of lenders through our nonbatked revolving credit facility.
This facility matures in June 2011 and is securetdI5. and Canadian automotive finance assetsb@hewers under the facility are
structured as bankruptcy-remote special-purpostesnt
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This nonbank facility includes a leverage ratio@oant that requires our reporting segments, exofudur Mortgage operations reporting
segment, to have a ratio of consolidated borroweds to consolidated net worth not to exceed 11Fbf purposes of this calculation, the
numerator is our total debt on a consolidated Hasisluding obligations of bankruptcy-remote spepiapose entities) less the total debt of
our Mortgage operations reporting segment on oursGlidated Balance Sheet (excluding obligationsasfkruptcy-remote special-purpose
entities). The denominator is our consolidatedwrath less our Mortgage operations consolidateduagth and certain extensions of credit
from us to our Mortgage operations. As of June2B1,0, the leverage ratio was 2.3:1. The followimdge summarizes the calculation of the
leverage ratio covenant.

Adjusted
Less:
Mortgage leverage
June 30, 201($ in millions) Ally operations metrics
Consolidated borrowed fun
Total debt $ 92,25¢ $ 22,21 $ 70,04¢
Less
Obligations of bankruptremote SPE (31,179 (2,536 (28,639
Intersegment eliminatior — (1,369 1,36¢
Consolidated borrowed funds used for leverage $ 61,08 $ 18,3U $ 42,77
Consolidated net wort
Total equity $ 20,77 $ 1,88¢ $ 18,88
Less
Intersegment credit extensio (258) — (258)
Consolidated net worth used for leverage r $ 20,51¢ $ 1,88¢ $ 18,62
Leverage ratio (¢ 2.3

(@) We remain subject to a leverage ratio as cafedlprior to the formation of the June 2008 setuesolving credit facility but on significantly deiced debt balances relative to prior
periods. As of June 30, 2010, the leverage raticadilated based on that methodology was 2

In addition to our syndicated revolving credit fas, we also maintain various bilateral and ntatiéral bank facilities that fund our
Automotive Finance operations. These are primgurilyate securitization facilities that fund a sgiiegpool of assets. Some of the facilities
have revolving commitments and allow for the furgdof additional assets during the commitment perdadof June 30, 2010, there was
$22.6 billion of total capacity for North Americ#&utomotive Finance operations and $7.3 billionaift capacity for International
Automotive Finance operations.

Facilities for Mortgage Operation

As of June 30, 2010, we had capacity of $700 mmiltim fund eligible mortgage servicing rights angaxeity of $350 million to fund
mortgage servicer advances. In the second qudrgfi®, we entered into two new mortgage facilitiest provided $600 million of
additional capacity.

Cash Flows

Net cash provided by operating activities was $blllidn for the six months ended June 30, 2010npared to $2.3 billion for the same
period in 2009 reflecting the improved operatingutés in 2010. During the six months ended Jun&800, the net cash inflow from sales
and repayments of mortgage and automotive loansfbelsale exceeded cash outflows from new origimegtand purchases of such loans by
$8.0 billion. These activities resulted in a nettcautflow of $4.2 billion for the six months endaghe 30, 2009. This is primarily a result of
new auto loan originations in 2010 primarily betigssified as held-for-investment as opposed td-fatsale in 2009. Also contributing to
the year-over-year shift was a surge in mortgatjeaecing activity in early 2009 in response to@ts taken by the Federal Reserve to lower
interest rates during the last nine months of 2008.

Net cash used in investing activities was $808iomilfor the six months ended June 30, 2010, condp@reet cash provided of
$10.2 billion for the same period in 2009. Net cistvs associated with finance receivables anddparciuding notes receivable from GM,
decreased $16.5 billion during the six months erllew 30, 2010. These decreases were partiallgtddysan increase in cash received from
sales and maturities of available-for-sale invesiinsecurities, net of purchases, of $3.6 billionimtythe six months ended June 30, 2010,
compared to the same period in 2009.
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Net cash used in financing activities for the siantins ended June 30, 2010, totaled $12.2 billiompared to $8.9 billion for the same
period in 2009. Cash provided from new equity isees was $8.7 billion in 2009. There were no simglguity issuances in 2010. Also
contributing to the increase in net cash used waaaease of $2.1 billion in cash outflows to lgeshort-term debt obligations, and a
decrease of $2.7 billion in cash provided by basasits in 2010, compared to 2009. Proceeds frensuance of long-term debt increased
$6.2 billion during the six months ended June 31,& while cash used to repay debt decreased $Ho2 bas we managed our funding
profile.

Regulatory Capital
Refer to Note 14 to the Consolidated FinancialeStants.

Credit Ratings

The cost and availability of unsecured financing iafluenced by credit ratings, which are intentiee an indicator of the
creditworthiness of a particular company, secuntypbligation. Lower ratings result in higher bmsing costs and reduced access to capital
markets. This is particularly true for certain ingtonal investors whose investment guidelinesineginvestment-grade ratings on term debt
and the two highest rating categories for shortdebt (particularly money market investors).

Nationally recognized statistical rating organiaat rate substantially all our debt. The followtagle summarizes our current ratings
outlook by the respective nationally recognizeéthtatgencies.

Rating agency Commercial paper Senior debt Outlook Date of last action
Fitch B B Positive January 21, 2010 (i
Moody's Not-Prime B3 Stable February 5, 2010 (t
S&P C B Stable January 27, 2010 (i
DBRS R-4 BB-Low Stable January 19, 2010 ((

(a) Fitch upgraded our senior debt to B from CC, upgdatthe commercial paper rating to B from C, anchgled the outlook to Positive on January 21, 2!

(b) Moody's upgraded our senior debt rating to B3 from Cianaéd the commercial paper rating of I-Prime, and changed the outlook to Stable on Fep®a2010.

(c) Standard & Poc's upgraded our senior debt rating to B from CCé€rraéd the commercial paper rating of C, and charte outlook to Stable on January 27, 2(

(d) DBRS upgraded our senior debt rating to-Low from CCC, upgraded the commercial paper rating-4 from F-5, and changed the outlook to Stable on Januarg@®).

In addition, ResCap, our indirect wholly owned sdiasy, has ratings (separate from Ally) from thaianally recognized rating agenci
The following table summarizes ResCap’s curreribgatand outlook by the respective agency.

Rating agency Commercial paper Senior debt QOutlook Date of last action
Fitch C C Watct-Positive January 8, 2009 (:
Moody's Not-Prime C Stable November 20, 2008 (t
S&P C CCC+ Stable January 27, 2010 (i
DBRS R-5 C Review-Negative November 21, 2008 (¢

(a) Fitch affirmed ResC¢'s senior debt rating of C, affirmed the commerpagber rating of C, and changed the outlook to W-Positive on January 8, 20C

(b) Moody's downgraded ResC's senior debt to C from Ca, affirmed the commengégder rating of N«-Prime, and changed the outlook to Stable on Nover2®e2008

(c) Standard & Poc's upgraded ResC'’s senior debt rating to CCC+ from CC, affirmed toenmercial paper rating of C, and changed the oltto Stable on January 27, 20
(d) DBRS affirmed ResC¢s senior debt rating to C, affirmed the commenpager rating of -5, and changed the outlook to Rev-Negative on November 21, 20(
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Insurance Financial Strength Ratings

Substantially all of our U.S. Insurance operatibage a Financial Strength Rating (FSR) and an t<Stedit Rating (ICR) from
A.M. Best Company. The FSR is intended to be aicatdr of the ability of the insurance company teamits senior most obligations to
policyholders. Lower ratings generally result imér opportunities to write business as insuredgiqudarly large commercial insureds, and
insurance companies purchasing reinsurance hadelmés requiring high FSR ratings. Our Insuranperations outside the United States
are not rated.

On July 20, 2010, A.M. Best removed our U.S. Ineaeacompanies from under review with developinglicapions and affirmed the
FSR of B++ (good) and the ICR of BBB.

Off-balance Sheet Arrangements
Refer to Note 9 to the Consolidated Financial $tatats.
Critical Accounting Estimates

We identified critical accounting estimates thataaresult of judgments, uncertainties, uniquerass$ complexities of the underlying
accounting standards and operations involved caddlt in material changes to our financial comditiresults of operations, or cash flows
under different conditions or using different asgtions.

Our most critical accounting estimates are:

. Fair value measuremer

. Valuation of securitie

. Valuation of loans he-for-sale

. Allowance for loan losse

. Valuation of automotive lease residu

. Valuation of mortgage servicing rigt

. Goodwill

. Determination of reserves for insurance lossed@gladjustment expens
. Determination of provision for income tax

There have been no significant changes in the ndetbgies and processes used in developing theses¢st from what was described in
our 2009 Annual Report on Form 10-K; however, thiation of interests in securitized assets isongér considered a critical accounting
estimate as of January 1, 2010, due to the adopfidiccounting Standards Update (ASU) 2009-Aé¢counting for Transfers of Financial
Assetsand ASU 2009-17mprovements to Financial Reporting by Enterpriseslved with Variable Interest EntitieShe adoption resulted
in the removal of certain retained interests beeauss were required under the new standards to tdasothe assets and liabilities of the
related securitization structures. We now reflagt@onomic interest in these structures primahitpugh loans and secured debt. Refer to
Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statementsifore information on ASU 20-16 and ASU 2009-17.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

We follow the fair value hierarchy set forth in Md8 to the Consolidated Financial Statementsitwifize the data used to measure fair
value. We review and modify, as necessary, ounine hierarchy classifications on a quarterlyisaass such, there may be reclassifications
between hierarchy levels.
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As of June 30, 2010, approximately 17% of totabts$$30.1 billion) and approximately 3% of tofabilities ($5.4 billion) were
recorded at fair value on either a recurring ooaracurring basis. Level 3 inputs were used toutale the fair value of approximately 28%
and 44% of these assets and liabilities, respdgti®ee Note 18 to the Consolidated Financial 8tatgs for descriptions of valuation
methodologies used to measure material assetsadniliies at fair value and details of the valeatinodels, key inputs to those models, and
significant assumptions utilized.

A large percentage of our fair value assets afitias are Level 3. While we execute various Hadgstrategies to mitigate our exposure
to changes in fair value, we cannot fully eliminate exposure to volatility caused by fluctuatiamsnarket prices. In recent years, the credit
markets across the globe experienced dislocatiak& demand for asset-backed securities, partlgilagose backed by mortgage assets,
significantly contracted and in many markets villudisappeared. Further, market demand by whoderlpurchasers also contracted. These
unprecedented market conditions adversely affactemb well as our competitors. As market conditerave, our assets and liabilities are
subject to valuation adjustment and changes iimitgts we utilize to measure fair value.

As of June 30, 2010, our Level 3 assets declinéd, 28 $5.2 billion, and our Level 3 liabilities ir@sed 44%, or $714 million, compa
to December 31, 2009. The decline in Level 3 assatsprimarily due to the $4.3 billion decline aahs held-for-sale measured at fair value
on a nonrecurring basis as of June 30, 2010, caedpgarDecember 31, 2009. During 2009, we reclasbifiortgage loans with an unpaid
principal balance of $8.5 billion from finance ra@bles and loans, net of unearned income, to lbattsfor-sale because we changed our
intent to hold these loans for the foreseeableréutiis a result, we recognized a valuation losappiroximately $3.4 billion during 2009 wh
we adjusted these loans from their cost basiseio thir value. The valuation adjustments recogize2010 were not as significant. Also
contributing to the decline in Level 3 assets wartavorable mortgage servicing rights valuatiorulssbecause of declining mortgage rates
and portfolio runoff, fewer nonrecurring fair valoeasurements related to our commercial financevebles and loans, and a decline in
trading securities because ASU 2009-17 eliminagxthin retained interests we had held. A partitdadfto the overall decrease in the Level 3
assets was a $1.0 billion increase in consumend@aeceivables and loans carried at fair valua meturring basis because of a fair value
option election. The increase in the consumer lo@ass primarily related to the implementation of A3QD9417. The implementation requir
several of our securitization structures previotmid off-balance sheet to be consolidated asrafaly 1, 2010. Upon consolidation, we
elected the fair value option for the consumerriceareceivables and loans, as well as the relaled @he election made to the related debt
was the primary reason the Level 3 liabilities eased $714 million, compared to December 31, 2009.

We have numerous internal controls in place to enthe appropriateness of fair value measurems8igaificant fair value measures are
subject to detailed analytics and management reaiehapproval. We have an established model vaidablicy and program in place that
covers all models used to generate fair value nreasnts. This model validation program ensureswratied environment is used for the
development, implementation, and use of the maatadischange procedures. Further, this program ussk-Based approach to select models
to be reviewed and validated by an independentriateisk group to ensure the models are consistéhttheir intended use, the logic within
the models is reliable, and the inputs and outfsata these models are appropriate. Additionallwjide array of operational controls is in
place to ensure the fair value measurements asemahle, including controls over the inputs intd #me outputs from the fair value
measurement models. For example, we backtest timmal assumptions used within models against bparéormance. We also monitor the
market for recent trades, market surveys, or athemket information that may be used to benchmaréleghimputs or outputs. Certain
valuations are benchmarked to market indices wpenopriate and available. We schedule model andpart recalibrations that occur on a
periodic basis but will recalibrate earlier if sifigant variances are observed as part of the leatikg or benchmarking noted above.

Considerable judgment is used in forming conclusiivom market observable data used to estimateexal 2 fair value measurements
and in estimating inputs to our internal valuatinadels used to estimate our Level 3 fair value messents. Level 3 inputs such as interest
rate movements, prepayment speeds, credit lossgsliscount rates are inherently difficult to esttsn Changes to these inputs can have a
significant effect on fair value measurements. Adawly, our estimates of fair value are not neaafsindicative of the amounts that could
be realized or would be paid in a current markeharge.
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Statistical Table

The accompanying supplemental information shouldela€ in conjunction with the more detailed infotimi, including ourConsolidate
Financial Statements and the notes thereto, whppbkar elsewhere in this Quarterly Report.

Net Interest Margin Table
The following tables present an analysis of netrieét margin excluding discontinued operationgHerperiods shown.

2010 2009
Interest
Interes
income;
income
interest
Average Yield/rate Average interes Yield/rate
Three months ended June ($ in millions)  balance (a expens:  (annualized’ balance (z expens  (annualizec
Assets
Interest bearing cash and cash equival $ 15,49¢ $ 18 0.47% $ 14,23¢ $ 27 0.7¢%
Trading securitie: 177 6 13.6( 812 34 16.7¢
Investment securities (| 10,79: 87 3.2¢ 6,84: 52 3.0t
Loans hel-for-sale 12,67 15€ 4.94 11,00( 84 3.0¢€
Finance receivables and loans, net of
unearned income (c) (i 89,50: 1,62( 7.2¢€ 94,91: 1,68¢ 7.1z
Investment in operating leases, net 12,931 48E 15.0¢ 22,675 447 7.91
Total interest earning asst 141 ,57¢ 2,37z 6.72 150,48: 2,33( 6.21
Noninterest bearing cash and ¢
equivalents 85 1,40¢
Other asset 38,89¢ 30,51(
Allowance for loan losse (2,496 (3,586
Total asset $ 178,06t $ 178,81!
Liabilities
Interest bearing deposit liabilitit $ 32,30¢ $ 15t 1.92% $ 22,23t $ 17¢ 3.2%%
Shor-term borrowings 7,37¢ 10C 5.44 8,021 182 9.1C
Long-term debt () (g) (h 87,96¢ 1,40¢ 6.4z 101,51( 1,57¢ 6.24
Total interest bearing liabilities (g) | 127,64¢ 1,66¢ 5.2¢ 131,76t 1,94( 5.91
Noninterest bearing deposit liabiliti 2,03: 2,041
Other liabilities 27,73¢ 20,09¢
Total liabilities 157,42( 153,90!
Total equity 20,64¢ 24,91(
Total liabilities and equit $ 178,06t $ 178,81
Net financing revenue $ 70¢ $ 39C
Net interest spread (j) 1.4% 0.3(%
Net interest spread excluding original
issue discount (j) 2.5% 1.35%
Yield on interest earning assets (k 2.01% 1.04%
Yield on interest earning assets excludin
original issue discount (k) 2.82% 1.77%

(@) Average balances are calculated using a combinafiamonthly and daily average methodolog

(b) Excludes income on equity investments of $4iomiland $3 million as of June 30, 2010 and 20@8pectively. Yields on available-for-sale debt sities are based on fair value as
opposed to historical cos

(c) Nonperforming finance receivables and loans arkiited in the average balances. For informationwmagcounting policies regarding nonperformingustaefer to Note 1 to th
Consolidated Financial Statements in our 2009 AhReport on Form 1-K.

(d) Includes other interest income of $(4) million &&D million as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, respelsti

(e) Includes gains on sale of $198 million and $116iamlas of June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectivelgluging these gains on sale, the annualized yieldlsdvbe 8.90% and 5.85% as
June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectiv

(f) Includes the effects of derivative financial instrents designated as hedc

(g) Average balance includes $3,876 million and®$2,million related to original issue discount abd 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Interest esgpércludes original issue discount
amortization of $292 million and $275 million ashfne 30, 2010 and 2009, respectiv

(h) Excluding original issue discount the rate on |-term debt is 4.88% and 4.91% as of June 30, 20d®@69, respectively

(i) Excluding original issue discount the rate on tatgrest bearing liabilities is 4.18% and 4.88%0&3une 30, 2010 and 2009, respectiv

() Netinterest spread represents the difference leghiee rate on total interest earning assets anchte on total interest bearing liabiliti

(k) Yield on interest earning assets represents natding revenue as a percentage of total interesingpassets
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2010 2009
Interest
Interes
income;
income
interest
Average Yield/rate Average interes Yield/rate
Six months ended June ($ in millions) balance (a expens:  (annualized balance (z expens  (annualizec
Assets
Interest bearing cash and cash equival $ 14,00¢ $ 32 0.4€% $ 14,34 $ 69 0.97%
Trading securitie: 258 7 5.5¢ 1,07C 57 10.7¢
Investment securities (| 11,23: 18z 3.2¢ 6,47 11C 3.4:
Loans hel-for-sale 14,75t 371 5.07 9,84¢ 16¢ 3.44
Finance receivables and loans, net of
unearned income (c) (i 87,39« 3,24¢ 7.4¢ 96,41¢ 3,40¢ 7.1z
Investment in operating leases, net 13,90¢ 992 14.3¢ 23,79 992 8.41
Total interest earning asst 141,54: 4,82¢ 6.8¢ 151,94¢ 4,80( 6.37
Noninterest bearing cash and ¢
equivalents 467 1,33(
Other asset 38,62 31,76
Allowance for loan losse (2,528 (3,547)
Total asset $ 178,10 $ 181,50:
Liabilities
Interest bearing deposit liabilitit $ 31,38t $ 31c 2.01% $ 21,13 $ 357 3.41%
Shor-term borrowings 7,551 212 5.6€ 9,102 343 7.6C
Long-term debt () (g) (h 88,90 2,84¢ 6.4E 105,04( 3,23¢€ 6.21
Total interest bearing liabilities (g) | 127,84¢ 3,36¢ 5.31 135,27 3,93¢ 5.87
Noninterest bearing deposit liabiliti 1,89 1,86t
Other liabilities 27,68 20,36¢
Total liabilities 157,42¢ 157,50
Total equity 20,675 23,99¢
Total liabilities and equit $ 178,10 $ 181,50:
Net financing revenue $ 1,46( $ 864
Net interest spread (j) 1.57% 0.5(%
Net interest spread excluding origina
issue discount (j) 2.62% 1.48%
Yield on interest earning assets (k 2.08% 1.15%
Yield on interest earning assets excludin
original issue discount (k) 2.92% 1.85%

(a)
(b)

Average balances are calculated using a combinafiamonthly and daily average methodolog

Excludes income on equity investments of $8iomland $3 million as of June 30, 2010 and 20@8pectively. Yields on available-for-sale debt sities are based on fair value as
opposed to historical cos

Nonperforming finance receivables and loans arkidedl in the average balances. For informationwraccounting policies regarding nonperformingustaefer to Note 1 to tr
Consolidated Financial Statements in our 2009 AhRe@ort on Form 1-K.

Includes other interest income of $0 million and $Billion as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, respegti\

Includes gains on sale of $386 million and $157iamilas of June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectivelgluging these gains on sale, the annualized yieldlavbe 8.79% and 7.08% as
June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectiv

Includes the effects of derivative financial instrents designated as hedc

Average balance includes $4,048 million andl8%,million related to original issue discount abd 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Interest esgpércludes original issue discount
amortization of $588 million and $533 million ashfne 30, 2010 and 2009, respectiv

Excluding original issue discount the rate on -term debt is 4.89% and 4.95% as of June 30, 20d®809, respectively

Excluding original issue discount the rate on taigrest bearing liabilities is 4.25% and 4.89%&3une 30, 2010 and 2009, respectiv

Net interest spread represents the difference leetihe rate on total interest earning assets andath on total interest bearing liabilitit

Yield on interest earning assets represents natding revenue as a percentage of total interesingpassets
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Recently Issued Accounting Standards
Refer to Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statats.
Forward Looking Statements

The foregoing Management’s Discussion and AnalgEisinancial Condition and Results of Operationd ather portions of this Form
10-Q contain various forward-looking statementsimithe meaning of applicable federal securiti@slancluding the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995, that are based upain current expectations and assumptions concefatage events that are subject to a
number of risks and uncertainties that could caaseal results to differ materially from those aiptated.

”ou ” HNTH ”ou ” ” o ”ou ”ou

The words “expect,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “farast,” “initiative, plan,” “goal,” ‘project,” “outlook,” “priorities,”
“target,” “intend,” “evaluate,” “pursue,” “seek,May,” “would,” “could,” “should,” “believe,” “potetial,” “continue,” or the negative of any
of these words or similar expressions is intendeidéntify forward-looking statements. All staterteeherein, other than statements of
historical fact, including without limitation stateents about future events and financial performaaieforward-looking statements that

involve certain risks and uncertainties.

objective,

”ou

While these statements represent our current judgorewhat the future may hold and we believe tligdgments are reasonable, these
statements are not guarantees of any events arcfadaesults, and Ally’s actual results may diffeaterially due to numerous important
factors that are described in the most recent temor Forms 10-K and 10-Q for Ally, each of whichyrbe revised or supplemented in
subsequent reports on Forms 10-Q and 8-K. Sucbrfactclude, among others, the following: our ifiépto repay our outstanding
obligations to the U.S. Department of the Treasuirio do so in a timely fashion and without disfaptto our business; uncertainty of Ally’s
ability to enter into transactions or execute sfat alternatives to realize the value of its Restdl Capital, LLC (ResCap) operations; our
inability to successfully accommodate the additiaisk exposure relating to providing wholesale aetil financing to Chrysler dealers and
customers and the resulting impact to our finarstiability; uncertainty related to Chrysler's anfG recent exits from bankruptcy;
uncertainty related to the new financing arrangdrbetween Ally and Chrysler; securing low cost fungdfor Ally and ResCap and
maintaining the mutually beneficial relationshigween Ally and GM, and Ally and Chrysler; our atyilto maintain an appropriate level of
debt and capital; the profitability and financiahclition of GM and Chrysler; our ability to realittee anticipated benefits associated with our
recent conversion to a bank holding company andhitreased regulation and restrictions that wenare subject to; continued challenges in
the residential mortgage and capital markets; titential for deterioration in the residual valueoffflease vehicles; the continuing negative
impact on ResCap of the decline in the U.S. housiagket; changes in U.S. government-sponsored iengetgrograms or disruptions in the
markets in which our mortgage subsidiaries opedisguptions in the market in which we fund Allged ResCap’s operations, with resulting
negative impact on our liquidity; changes in our@amting assumptions that may require or that tésarh changes in the accounting rules or
their application, which could result in an impaatearnings; changes in the credit ratings of Rps&Hy, Chrysler, or GM; changes in
economic conditions, currency exchange rates, litiqad stability in the markets in which we opezaaind changes in the existing or the
adoption of new laws, regulations, policies, oresthctivities of governments, agencies, and sinoitganizations (including as a result of the
recently enacted financial regulatory reform bill)ly undertakes no obligation to update publiclyotherwise revise any forward-looking
statements whether as a result of new informafidgare events, or other such factors that affeetstibject of these statements, except where
expressly required by law.
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Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures abut Market Risk
Refer to the Market Risk section of ltem 2, Managetis Discussion and Analysis.
Item 4. Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and proceduredgéised in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities Brgle Act of 1934, as amended (the
Exchange Act), designed to ensure that informatapuired to be disclosed in reports filed underEkehange Act is recorded, processed,
summarized, and reported within the specified fragods. As of the end of the period covered by thport, our Chief Executive Officer a
our Chief Financial Officer evaluated, with the fi@pation of our management, the effectivenessusfdisclosure controls and procedures.
Based on our evaluation, Ally’s Chief Executive ioéfF and Chief Financial Officer each concluded tha disclosure controls and
procedures were effective as of June 30, 2010.

There were no changes in our internal controls &xancial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-1%ffthe Exchange Act) that occurred
during our most recent fiscal quarter that matrigffected, or were reasonably likely to mateyiaffect, our internal controls over financial
reporting.

Our management, including our Chief Executive @ifiand Chief Financial Officer, does not expect tha disclosure controls or our
internal controls will prevent or detect all errarsd all fraud. A control system, no matter howlwekigned and operated, can provide only
reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the tepstem’s objectives will be met. Further, theigef a control system must reflect the fact
that there are resource constraints, and the hemdftontrols must be considered relative to thests. Because of the inherent limitations in
all control systems, no evaluation of controls pesvide absolute assurance that all control isamésinstances of fraud, if any, within Ally
have been detected. These inherent limitationsidtecthe realities that judgments in decision makigag be faulty and that breakdowns can
occur because of simple error or mistake. Contraisalso be circumvented by the individual actsashe persons, by collusion of two or
more people, or by management override of the otmtfhe design of any system of controls is basgért on certain assumptions about
likelihood of future events, and there can be rmuamce that any design will succeed in achiewmgtated goals under all potential future
conditions. Over time, controls may become inadexjbacause of changes in conditions or deterioratithe degree of compliance with
associated policies or procedures. Because ohtlexént limitations in a cost-effective controltgys, misstatements due to error or fraud
may occur and not be detected.

116



Table of Contents

PART Il — OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

We are subject to potential liability under varigesernmental proceedings, claims, and legal astibat are pending or otherwise
asserted against us. We are named as defendantsimber of legal actions, and we are occasiomallylved in governmental proceedings
arising in connection with our respective businesS®me of the pending actions purport to be @dasens. We establish reserves for legal
claims when payments associated with the claimerhegrobable and the costs can be reasonably éstinfhe actual costs of resolving
legal claims may be higher or lower than any am®ueserved for the claims. On the basis of infoimmaturrently available, advice of
counsel, available insurance coverage, and edtalliseserves, it is the opinion of managementtlieéventual outcome of the actions
against us will not have a material adverse effeaabur consolidated financial condition, result®pérations, or cash flows. However, in the
event of unexpected future developments, it isiptesghat the ultimate resolution of legal mattérsinfavorable, may be material to our
consolidated financial condition, results of opienas, or cash flows.

ltem 1A. Risk Factors

Other than with respect to the risk factors proglibelow, there have been no material changes tRigleFactors described in our 2009
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Risks Related to Our Business
The regulatory environment in which we operate ddwdve a material adverse effect on our businesseannings.

Our domestic operations are subject to various Ewasjudicial and administrative decisions imposiagous requirements and
restrictions relating to supervision and regulatiyrstate and federal authorities. Such reguladiwh supervision are primarily for the benefit
and protection of our customers, not for the beméfinvestors in our securities, and could limiir @iscretion in operating our business.
Noncompliance with applicable statutes or regutetioould result in the suspension or revocatioangflicense or registration at issue as \
as the imposition of civil fines and criminal petied.

Ally, Ally Bank, and many of our nonbank subsidesiare heavily regulated by bank and other regylatgencies at the federal, state,
and foreign levels. This regulatory oversight isabBshed to protect depositors, the FDd@eposit Insurance Fund, and the banking syst
a whole, not security holders. Changes to statogsilations, or regulatory policies including iptestation or implementation of statutes,
regulations, or policies could affect us in subS#m@nd unpredictable ways including limiting ttypes of financial services and products we
may offer and increasing the ability of nonaffiiatto offer competing financial services and présiuc

Our operations are also heavily regulated in manigdictions outside the United States. For exapgagain of our foreign subsidiaries
operate either as a bank or a regulated financganyn and our insurance operations are subjearious requirements in the foreign
markets in which we operate. The varying requirasehthese jurisdictions may be inconsistent WitB. rules and may materially advers
affect our business or limit necessary regulatpmyravals, or if approvals are obtained, we mayhoable to continue to comply with the
terms of the approvals or applicable regulationaddition, in many countries the regulations agaile to the financial services industry are
uncertain and evolving, and it may be difficult f to determine the exact regulatory requirements.

Regulators have recently increased their focuhemegulation of the financial services industrgr Example, on July 21, 2010, the
Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Praiacdict of 2010 (the Financial Reform Act) was sidieto law. The Financial Reform
Act is broad in scope with many of its provisioode implemented through additional regulations dwee. We are unable to predict how
Financial Reform Act or any future laws or regudas will be administered or implemented, and fidssible that the Financial Reform Act
any other such future actions could affect us mstantial and unpredictable ways and could havedaerse effect on our business, financial
condition, and results of operations. We are affacted by the policies adopted by regulatory arities and bodies of the United States and
other governments. For example, the actions oFfRB and international central banking authoritiesatly impact our cost of funds for
lending, capital raising, and investment activitesl may impact the value of financial instrumewméshold. In addition, such changes in
monetary policy may affect the credit quality of austomers. Changes in domestic and internatimoaletary policy are beyond our control
and difficult to predict.

Our inability to remain in compliance with regulataequirements in a particular jurisdiction conlalve a material adverse effect on our
operations in that market with regard to the affdqiroduct and on our reputation generally. No
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assurance can be given that applicable laws otatguos will not be amended or construed diffengrthat new laws and regulations will not
be adopted, or that we will not be prohibited bgaldaws from raising interest rates above cerd&isired levels, any of which could materi
adversely affect our business, financial conditmmesults of operations.

The worldwide financial services industry is highgmpetitive. If we are unable to compete succkgsfuif there is increased
competition in the automotive financing, mortga@ed/or insurance markets or generally in the magket securitizations or asset sales, our
business could be negatively affected.

The markets for automotive and mortgage finandirgpking, insurance, and reinsurance are highly etithge. The market for
automotive financing has grown more competitivenase consumers are financing their vehicle purchas@marily in North America and
Europe. Our mortgage business and Ally Bank fageifstant competition from commercial banks, sagimgstitutions, mortgage companies,
and other financial institutions. Our insuranceibess faces significant competition from insuraocagiers, reinsurers, third-party
administrators, brokers, and other insurarelated companies. Many of our competitors havetsuibial positions nationally or in the mark
in which they operate. Some of our competitors Hawer cost structures, lower cost of capital, arelless reliant on securitization and sale
activities. We face significant competition in \@rs areas including product offerings, rates, pg@nd fees, and customer service. If we are
unable to compete effectively in the markets inalihive operate, our profitability and financial cdimh could be negatively affected.

Ally’s agreements with GM and Chrysler to providgamotive financing products to their dealers anstemers extend through
December and April 2013, respectively. These ages¢sprovide Ally with certain preferred provideanefits including limiting the use of
other financing providers by GM and Chrysler initliecentive programs. The terms of the Ally agresitwith GM change after January 1,
2011, such that GM will be able to offer any inéeafprograms on a graduated basis through thirtlggaon a non-exclusive, side-by-side
basis with Ally, provided that the pricing of thard parties meets certain requirements. Due tdifjlely competitive nature of the market for
financial services, Ally may be unable to extené on both of these agreements or may face lessdlaloterms upon extension. If Ally is
unable to extend one or both of these agreemést®tail financing volumes could be negatively auoted.

GM has recently announced that it plans to acquineriCredit Corp., an independent automotive firmoempany, and it is possible that
other automotive manufacturers could establistcquiae captive finance companies or utilize othesteng companies to support their
financing needs. If we are unable to compete affelgt with these other financing sources or if GMre to direct substantially more business
to its captive on noncommercial terms, our profltgband financial condition could be negativelffexted.

The markets for asset and mortgage securitizatiodsvhole-loan sales are competitive, and otheeissand originators could increase
the amount of their issuances and sales. In additmders and other investors within those martftén establish limits on their credit
exposure to particular issuers, originators, aseétagdasses, or they may require higher returirvsctease the amount of their exposure.
Increased issuance by other participants in thd@har decisions by investors to limit their cregkiposure to (or to require a higher yield for)
us or to automotive or mortgage securitizationg/loole loans could negatively affect our ability ahdt of our subsidiaries to price our
securitizations and whole-loan sales at attragtites. The result would be lower proceeds fromelaesivities and lower profits for our
subsidiaries and us. Further, the recently endéteghcial Reform Act includes a provision thateeffve immediately, repealed Rule 436(g)
of the Securities Act of 1933 (the Securities Agt)is rule had provided an exemption to nationedigognized statistical rating organizations
(NRSROs) from liability as experts for their ratingnder Section 11 of the Securities Act. In respdp this, NRSROs refused to permit their
ratings to be used pending more clarity relateplatential legal exposure. The Securities and Exgaa@@ommission (SEC) has issued
guidance permitting issuers for six-month perio@itat credit ratings from certain registration staents filed under the SEC’s Regulation
AB. However, it is unclear whether the SEC willemxt this six-month period or what the final resiolntrelated to these issues will be, and if
the repeal of Rule 436(q) stands without furtheioa¢ we would likely be limited to only private agritizations, which could have an adverse
impact on our liquidity and cost of funds.
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Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities andse of Proceeds

None.

Item 3. Defaults upon Senior Securities
Not applicable.

Item 4. (Removed and Reserved)

Iltem 5. Other Information

None.
ltem 6. Exhibits

The exhibits listed on the accompanying Index dfibits are filed as a part of this report. Thisérds incorporated herein by reference.
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, the registrant has duly causisdréport to be signed on its behalf by

the undersigned thereunto duly authorized, thisdéghof August 2010.
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ALLY FINANCIAL INC.
(Registrant’

/sl JamMES G. M ACKEY
James G. Mackey
Interim Chief Financial Office

/'s/ Davip J. DE B RUNNER
David J. DeBrunner
Vice President, Chief Accounting Officer, and
Corporate Controllel
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Exhibit Description Method of Filing
12 Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Char Filed herewith
31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuao
Rule 13i-14(a)/15¢14(a) Filed herewith
31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuao
Rule 13i-14(a)/15¢-14(a) Filed herewith

The following exhibit shall not be deeméditetl” for purposes of Section 18 of the Securitieschange Act of 1934 or otherwise subject
to the liability of that Section. In addition, ExXiiti No. 32 shall not be deemed incorporated intpfdimg under the Securities Act of 1933 or
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

32 Certification of Principal Executive Officer andifgipal Filed herewith.
Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section@
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Exhibit 12

ALLY FINANCIAL INC.
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

Six months ende!

Year ended
June 30, December 31

($ in millions) 2010 (a) 2009 (a 2008(a 2007 (a 2006 (a 2005 (a
Earnings
Consolidated net income (loss) from continuing

operations $ 55¢  $(7,0060 $ 490z $(1,879 $ 186: $ 2,05%
Income tax expense (benefit) from continuing

operations 69 77 (131) 514 31 1,08¢
Equity-method investee distributic — — 111 65 651 283
Equity-method investee (losses) earnil (25) (20 53: 5 (512 (142)
Minority interest expens 1 1 1 2 9 (57
Consolidated income (loss) from continuing

operations before income taxes, minority intere

and income (loss) from equity investe 603 (6,939 5,41¢ (1,299 2,04z 3,22t
Fixed charge: 3,421 7,258 10,35 13,79¢ 14,75: 12,03¢
Earnings available for fixed charg $ 4,02¢ $ 31t  $15,767 $12,50¢ $16,79¢  $15,26(
Fixed charges
Interest, discount, and issuance expense on $ 3,40¢ $ 7,217  $10,29¢  $13,73¢  $14,68¢  $11,97¢
Portion of rentals representative of the interastdr 17 36 53 60 66 58
Total fixed charge 3,421 7,25: 10,35! 13,79¢ 14,75 12,03t
Preferred dividend requiremer 594 1,22¢ — 192 22 —
Total fixed charges and preferred dividend

requirement: $ 4,01t $ 847: $10,35.  $13,99( $14,77¢  $12,03t
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges 1.1¢ 0.04 1.52 0.91 1.14 1.27
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges and preferred

dividend requirements (i 1.0C 0.04 1.52 0.8¢ 1.14 1.27

(@) During 2009, we committed to sell certain ofierss of our International Automotive Finance ojtienas, Insurance operations, Mortgage operationd,Gommercial Finance Group.
We report these businesses separately as discedtoperations in the Consolidated Financial Statesa&efer to Note 2 to the Consolidated Finar8tatements for further
discussion of our discontinued operations. All mped periods of the calculation of the ratio ofréags to fixed charges exclude discontinued opemat

(b) The ratio indicates a less than one-to-one ra@eefor the years ended December 31, 2009 and Ha0iings available for fixed charges for the geanded December 31, 2009 and
2007, were inadequate to cover total fixed chargbs.deficit amounts for the ratio were $6,938 imilland $1,293 million for the years ended Decen®ier2009 and 2007,
respectively

(c) The ratio indicates a less than one-to-one @meefor the years ended December 31, 2009 and EHa0iings available for fixed charges and pretedieidend requirements for the
years ended December 31, 2009 and 2007, were inatietp cover total fixed charges and preferredidivd requirements. The deficit amounts for thmratre $8,162 million an
$1,485 million for the years ended December 31928¢d 2007, respectivel



Exhibit 31.1

ALLY FINANCIAL INC.
[, Michael A. Carpenter, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this report on Form-Q of Ally Financial Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomtny untrue statement of a material fact or eengttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrk responsible for establishing and maintainiisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)1%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoreaused such disclosure controls and procedaotas designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made kno
to us by others within those entities, particulatlying the period in which this report is beingared

b) designed such internal control over financiglomting, or caused such internal control over fgiahreporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmare with generally accepted accounting princij

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentiaisineport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; ar

d) disclosed in this report any change in the tegis's internal control over financial reportirtzat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that hagenally affected, or is reasonably likely to maadly affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; a

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of registrant’s board of directors p@rsons performing the equivalent
function):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weases in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information;
and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelmeanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: August 6, 2010
/s/ MicHAEL A. C ARPENTER

Michael A. Carpenter
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 31.2

ALLY FINANCIAL INC.
I, James G. Mackey certify that:
1. | have reviewed this report on Form-Q of Ally Financial Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomtny untrue statement of a material fact or eengttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of opere, and cash flows of the registrant as of, amndthe periods presented in this rep

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrk responsible for establishing and maintainiisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)1%nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13e15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and ha

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoreaused such disclosure controls and procedaotas designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made kno
to us by others within those entities, particulatlying the period in which this report is beingared

b) designed such internal control over financiglomting, or caused such internal control over fgiahreporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmare with generally accepted accounting princij

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentiaisineport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; ar

d) disclosed in this report any change in the tegis's internal control over financial reportirtzat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that hagenally affected, or is reasonably likely to maadly affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; a

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of registrant’s board of directors p@rsons performing the equivalent
function):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weases in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information;
and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelmeanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: August 6, 2010
/s/ James G. M ACKEY

James G. Mackey
Interim Chief Financial Office




Exhibit 32

ALLY FINANCIAL INC.
Certification of Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Seiion 1350

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Ally Bimcial Inc. (the Company) on Form 10-Q for the geéénding June 30, 2010, as filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on thelsatof (the Report), each of the undersigned offioé the Company, certify, pursuant to
18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 90Geobarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to the bestaf knowledge:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

2) The information contained in the Report fairhggents, in all material respects, the financialdition and results of operations of the
Company

/s/ MicHAEL A. C ARPENTER
Michael A. Carpenter

Chief Executive Officer
August 6, 201(

/sl JamMES G. M ACKEY
James G. Mackey

Interim Chief Financial Office
August 6, 201(

A signed original of this written statement requitgy Section 906, or other document authenticaticgnowledging, or otherwise adopti
the signature that appears in typed form within ¢éfectronic version of this written statement regdiby Section 906, has been provided to
Ally Financial Inc. and will be furnished to thecseities and Exchange Commission or its staff umuest.



